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Banque et Caisse d'Epargne de I'Etat, Luxembourg, as fiduciary (the "Fiduciary"), is issuing 6,206.000 Fiduciary 
Depositary Receipts ("FDRs"), each with respect to one A Share, with no par value (each, an "A Share"), of Societe 
Europeenne des Satellites (the "Company" or "SES"), of which (i) 990,267 FDRs are being offered to members of the 
public and institutional investors in Luxembourg by the Luxembourg Managers named herein (the "Luxembourg Offer- 
ing"), (ii) 3,961,066 FDRs are being offered to institutional investors outside Luxembourg and the United States (the 
"International Offering") by the International Managers named herein, (iii) 177,167 FDRs are being offered to the Company 
for distribution to employees and members of the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Employee Offering") and 
(iv) 1,077,500 FDRs are being offered in a designated offering (the "Designated Offering" and, together with the Luxem- 
bourg Offering, the International Offering and the Employee Offering, the "Combined Offering"). See "Summary - The 
Combined Offering". The foregoing amounts are indicative only and are subject to final allocations. All of the A Shares 
underlying the FDRs offered in the Combined Offering, including the additional A Shares referred to below, are being 
offered by the Selling Shareholders. See "Selling Shareholders". The Company will not receive any of the proceeds from 
the Combined Offering. 

The FDRs will be issued in bearer form and will be represented by a permanent global certificate which will be 
deposited with a common depositary for Cedel Bank, societe anonyme ("Cedel Bank"), and hloryan Guaranty Trust 
Company of New Yorlc, Brussels office, as operatbr.of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear"). Bencficial interests in the F D R s  
will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected .only through, records maintained by Cedel Batik or Euroclear. 
Definitive certificates will only be available in certan limited circumstances as described herein. 

Prior to the Combined Offering, there has been no public market for the A Shares and no market lor the FDRs. 
Application has been made to have up to 31.034.000 FDRs. in respect of all issued A Shares. admitted to the Official List of 
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the "LUGE") and to have the FDRs quoted on the Stock Exchange Automated 
Quotation International System ("SEAQ International") of the London Stock Exchange. The FDRs may be offered to the . 
public in Luxembourg. 

SEE "INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS" ON PAGE 14 OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR FOR A DISCUSSION OF 
CERTAIN CONSIDERATIONS RELEVANT TO AN INVESTMENT IN THE FDRs. 

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS INTENDED FOR USE ONLY IN CONNECTION WITH OFFERS AND SALES OUTSIDE 
THE UNITED STATES AND IS NOT TO BE SENT OR GIVEN TO ANY PERSON WITHIN THE UNITED 

STATES. THE FDRs AND THE UNDERLYING A SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE 
REGISTERED UNDER THE U.S. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE "SECURITIES ACT"). 

' 

OFFER PRICE: LUF 6,000 PER FIDUCIARY DEPOSITARY RECEIPT 

Touchstone Securities Limited has acted as a financial adviser to the Company. 

' .  The Joint Global Coordinators, on behalf of the Managers, have been granted an option by certain of the.Selling 
Shareholders, exercisable until 30 days after the closing date of the Combined Offering to purchase up to 755.183 
additional FDRs, each with respect to one A Share, solely to cover over-allotments, if aPy See 'Subscription and Sale '. 

The FDRs offered hereby are being offered severally by the Managers, as specified herein. subject to receipt and 
acccptancc by them and subject to their right to reject any order in whole or in part. It is expected that paytnent for and 
delivery of the FDRs will be made through the facilities of Euroclear apd Cedel Bank on or about 9 July, 1998 against 
payment therefor in Luxembourg francs or an equivalent amount in Belgian francs in same-day'funcis. 
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No person is authoriscd in connection with any offering made hereby to provide any information or to 
make any representation not contained in this Clffering Circular and any infoi-mation o r  rcprcsentation not 
so contained must no t  he rclictl upon 21s having lieen authorised by or on behalf of the Company, any 
Selliiig Shareholders named undci- ”Selling Shareholders” or any Manager. Neither the delivery of this 
Offering Circular nor any sale made hcrcundcr at any time shall. under any circumstances, crcalc any 
implication that there has been no change i n  thc affairs of thc Company since the date hereof 01- that the 
information contained hcrcin is correct as of any time subsequent tu its diitc, nor should anything 
contained in this Offering Circulai- bc relied upon as a promise or rcpresentation as to future events. 

Thc C:ompany accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Offering Circular, provided 
that thc Company does not accept responsibility for tlic paragraph below regarding over-allotmcnt and 
stabilkition by the Joint Cilohal Cool-dinatoi-s and the information set forth in the twelfth paragraph under 
the caption “Subscription and Sale”, h i -  which the Manasers accept responsibility. To the best of the 
knowledge and helief of the Company (which hiis taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), 
the in formation contained in this Offering Cii-culai- for which thc Company accepts responsibility is in 
accordance with the fncts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. 

No representation or warranty. express or implicd, is madc by the Selling Shareholders or, other than 
as set forth iibovc, thc Managers, or any of thcir respective affiliates or any person acting on their behalf as 
to the accui-acy c)r completeness of the information contained in this Offering Circular, and none oi such 
persons has attempted to verify such inl’onnation. 

-1’his (lflcring Circular does not constitute an offer to sell, or the solicitation of an offer to buy, any 
FDRs offc~-cd hereby to any person in any jurisdiction whcrc it is unlawful to make such an offct- or 
solicitation. Thc distribution of this document and the offering o f  FnRs in certain jurisdictions niay be 
restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this document conics arc required by the Company, the 
Scllirig Shareholders and t h e  Managers to inform themsclves about and to observe any such restrictions. 
This Offcrins Circular may not he L I S C ~  for, or in connection with. any offer to, 01- solicitation by, anyone in 
any jurisdictiun or under any circurnstaticcs in which such offer or solicitation is not authoriscd ur is 
unlawful. 

Application has been made to have the PDtis listed o n  the 1,uxSE and quoted on SEA0 Interna- 
tional. No action has bccn takcn to  permit a public offcriiig of the FDRs or the possession, circulation or 
distribution of this Offcring Circular (in prcliminaiy or final form) or any other oflcring matcrial in any 
jurisdiction (other than Luxcmbourg) where action would hc rcquireci for such purpose. 

Cci-taia statements iiicludecl hei-ein niay constitute forward-looking statements that  involve a number 
of risks and uncortaintics. Certain of such fonvnrd-looking statements can be identificd by thc usc o f  
forward-looking Lei-tniiioloky such ;IS “believes”: “expects”, ”mav”, “iirc cxpccted to”. “will”. “will con- 
tinue”, ”should”, “\vould hc”, “socks” or “anticipates” 01- similar cxprcssiuns or the negative thereof or 
compnrable terminology. or hy discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. Such forward-looking state- 
mcnts arc: necessarily depcndcnt on assumptions. data or nicthods that  may hc incorrect or iniprccisc and 
that may not be rcaliscd. The followin_e factors: among other things, could cause actual I-csults and other 
matters to differ materially from such forward-loolung statements: the highly compctitivc nature of the 
satellite and tclccoiiimuiiicatioris industi-y, tcchnulogical developments and obsnlcsccncc of the Company’s 
equipment, changes i n  government regulation oi the Company: its industrlJ or its cust(:)mcrs, thc outcome 
of legal or regulatory disputes and the privatisatim of international satellite organiwt’ ions. 

IN COYNECTION WITH T H E  COMBINED OFFERING, ‘I’H E JOINT GLOBAL COORI)INXl’OKS, 
ON BEH.4LF OF THE MANAGERS, MAY, TO THE EXTENT Pl<HM I‘IIEU BY APPLICABLE LAW AND 

EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH S‘TL4SILISE OR MAIN’AIN ‘L‘HE MARKET PRICE OF THE FDKs 
AFTER PRIOR CONSULTATION WI’CH ‘THE LUXEMBOURG TJEAD MANAGER, OVER-ALLOT OR 

XI. I..EVELS WHICH MTGH’I’ NOT OTHERFVTSE PREVAAIL OK THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH 1‘KANSAC- 
TTOKS IMAY BE EFFECT811 ON THE LUXEMBOURG S‘L‘OCK EXCHANGE, IN THE OVER-THE- 
COUNTER MARKET OR O’I’HERWISE. SUCTT STAUILISING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE UISCON- 
T1NI;EI) A’T ANY TIME. 
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KEY DEFINITIONS 

,4 Shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Annual Ckncral Meeting . . . . . .  

ARCS .................... 

UCEE .................... 

B Shares . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cahier des Charges . . . . . . . . . .  

Contrat de Concession . . . . . . . .  

E S M . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

E S M F . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

FDRs .................... 

Fiduciary Deposit Agrecment . . .  

Global Certificate . . . . . . . . . . .  
G ovcrnmen t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Group .................... 

I T U . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Selling Shareholders . . . . . . . . .  

SNCI .................... 

WRC ..................... 

A Shares, with no par value, of the Company. 

The annual general meeting of the Company’s sharcholdcrs, which 
occurs on or about 15 April of each ycar. 

ASTRA Return Channcl Systcm, a direct return channel system via 
satellite in the Ka-band. 

Banque et Caisse d’Epargnc de l’Etat, Luxembourg, one of the two 
holders of the B Shares and the Fiduciary for the FDRs. 

B Shares, with no par value, of the Company, thc holders of which 
are Luxembourg public institutions. 

The term sheet relating to the Contrat de Concession between the 
Company and the Government. 

The concession agreement bctwccn the Government and SES 
1-dating to the operation of the ASTRA Satellite System. 

Europcan Satellite Multimedia Services SA., ii wholly o ~ i i c d  (less 
onc sliai-C) suhsidiay of ESMF. 

European Satelljtc Multimedia Services Finance S.A., a majority 
owncd subsidiary of the Company. 

Fiduciary Depositary Receipts to be issued by the Fiduciary, each 
with respect to onc A Share of the Company. 

The Fiduciary Deposit Agrccment dated 5 July, 1998 among thc 
Company, the Selling Shareholdcrs and the Fiduciary. 

A permanent global ccrtificate representing the FDRs. 

The government of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg. 

The Company, the Company’s five wholly owncd subsidiaries and its 
majority owncd subsidiary, ESM (which i t  holds through a 53 per 
cent. intcrcst in ESMF). 

International Telecommunications Union. 

‘I’he Company’s sharcholdcrs named under “Sclling Shareholders”, 
with the exception of Romain Hausch, Yves Elseii and Jurgeri 
Schultc. 

Sociiti Nationale de Crkdit et d’Invcstisscment, one of the two 
holders o f  the R Shares. 

World Radio Conference, a biennial meeting of all members of the 
ITU. 
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FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 

The Offering Circular includes audited consolidatcd financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as of and fur thc years ended 31 December, 1995, 1906 and 1997. Thcsc financial statcnicnts 
h a w  been preparcd iii accordance with accounting principles acccptcd in thc Gi-and-Duchy of I .uxeni- 
bourg (”LuxemhourR”), which conform in all material respects with Intcrnational Accounting Standards 
Chimit tee  (“IASC”) recommendations. ‘I’he presentation of the financial infoi-mation in this Offering 
Circular, i tieluding thc financial information under “Incicx to Financial Statements”. differs in certain 
rcspccts from the presentation in the Company’s statutory financial statements. 

Thc Company maintains its accounts in Luxembourg francs. Unless otherwise specified or the coiitcxt 
othenvisc rcquii-cs. references in this Offcring Circular to “1-uxernbourg francs” and “LUF” arc to thc 
Inwf~i l  currency of Luxcn-ibourg, references to “Belgian friancs” are tn the lawful currency of Bclgium, 
references to ”ECU” arc to the European Currency Unit, as  referred to i n  Article 109g of the Trcaty 
establishing the European Community arid as defincd in Council Kegulation (EC) No. 3320/94, that is 
from time to time uscd as the unit of account of the European Coniniunity (“EC”), references to T .S .$”  
and ”U.S. dollars” are to the lawful currcncy of the lJnited Statcs and rcfcrcnccs 10 “Deutschemark” and 
‘TIM’’ arc to tho lawful currency of Germany. The LUF and the Belgian franc arc exchangeable on a parity 
of I : I pursuant to thc Protocolt. entre IC Grand-Duchk de Li.m:-cnzbouig c/ 1. K O ~ C I I ~ I I I P  de Belgiqiie relatit ii 
IXssociariort Moiritczil-c (thc “Belgo-Luxembourg Monetary Union”). Solely for the convcnicncc of the 
readers of this Offering Circular, certain financial informalion of the Company has bccn translated into 
ECN at the rates of LUF 40.78 = ECU 1.00 and LUF 41.02 = ECU 1.00. the rate of cschangc published 
b y  the Financial Tirnes as of 31 lkcemher. 1997 and 31 March. 1998. respectively. Such translations should 
not be construed as a representation that the amounts in question have been, could h a w  bccii or could be 
converted into ECIJ at that or any  othcr exchange rate. On 3 JLI I~+  1998, the rate of cxchange publishcd by  
the Firinncia/ Tinzc.; was LUF 40.87 = ECU 1 ,OO. I t  is expected that the FDRs will he quoted on thc LuxSE 
IT1 I .uxembourg fi-aim until 31 December, 19!)8 and thereafter in Euros, the lawful currency of  the meiiibcr 
states of  the Eui-opcan Union that adopt thc single currency i n  accordance with the Ireat? establishing t h c  
EC‘, ;IS amcnded hy the Trcaty on  European Union (tlic ‘TU’’). 

Ccrtain financial and statistical inhinat ion in this Offering Cii-cular has been roundcd to thc nearest 
wholc numhcr. Accc-)rclingly, the suni of ccrtain nurnbers may not conform to the statcd tutal. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMA’llON 

Thc ( .h ipany  has agrccd t n  furnish the F i d u c i q  with all notices of mcctings of shareholders and 
uthcr reports and communications that are generally niiidc available to holdci-s of A Shai-cs. I n  addition: 
thc C:oinpanT; will provide the Ficluciay with the annual audited consolidatcd financial statements of the 
Conipany prepared in accordance with accounting principles and rcgulations accepted in Lusemhourg and 
semi-annual reports which will include or be accompanied by unauditcd interim consolidated financial 
information prcparcd iii accordancc with accounting principles and 1-cgulations acccptcd in Luxcnihourg. 
‘Ihe Fiduciary will make available such rcports. notices anti cuminunications to all holdcl-s of record of the 
FDKs. Such docuiiicnts will also be available while any of thc FDRs are outstanding at the office of the 
Fiduciary, which, as of the date of this document. is at 1. Placc de Metz, L-2954 Luucrnbourg: and at the 
office o f  Hanque Genkilc clu Luxembourg S.A., as listing azent (tlic “ I  .isring Agent’’), which, as of the 
date hereof, is 50. Avenue .T.F Kennedy L-295 I Luxembourg. 
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The Satellite Broadcasting Industry 

I . ocd :  rcgional and international broadcasters can ~ i s e  one or a cornhination of three principal 
methods t o  makc programming and senices available to t he general puhlic: terrestrial. cable. and satcllilc. 
In  Europc. terrestrial transmission is used to provide ;i lirnilcd number ot’ television and radio scrviccs to 
the public via over-the-air transmission. Most analogue cahlc systems distribute a maximum of 30 channels. 
The introduction o f  fihrc optic and coaxial cablcs gencrallv increased transmission capacity. allowing 
;iciciitional scrviccs to hc made available to the public. Salcllilc trarisiriissiori further inci-cases capacity and 
reaches riunici-oiis locations ovci- vast distances simultaneously. Satellites can also be used for the 
distribution and redisti-ibutioii o f  services by cablc opcrators and tcrrcstrial tclcvision stations. By con- 
verting from maloguc to digilal lraiismissioiis. satcllites, terrestrial and cable systems are able to increase 
the numhci- of channels they offer. Scc “Business - -1’he Satellite Broadcasting Market in Eui-ope - 
Tcchnolugical Advanccs and Declines in Equipment Costs - Digits1 Video Cornpi-cssion Tcchnology”. 

Satellite opci-ators typically provide cithcr satellite infrastructure or the senices necessary to establish 
ti satellite cominunicnlions network. For television programming distribution. thcsc services may consist of 
providing satellite capacity arid providing tclcport transmission facilities and other value-added sewices. 
Scnkcs  for husiness communications networks arc gcncrally morc cxtcnsivc and may  includc providing 
satellite ckipacity: procurcmcnt and installation o f  on-site antennae arid nctwork dcsign, integration, 
managcmcnt, operation and maintenance. 

The C:ompany 

SES is Europc’s lending provider of high quality satellite transponder capacity [or broadcasting 
sc rvices t h i-oug ti wh i ch I c 1 e\,ision, rad io and data b ro adcns t e rs TTI a ke ava i 1 ah1 e free arid pay program mi n 2 
and services t o  thc gcncral piihlic. SES’s satcllites arc principally used hy its customers to broadcast 
prograrriming to  ( i )  households via a single 1-csiclcncc satcllitc dish (dii-cct-to-lioiiic or DTH), 
(ii) communal residences via  a s,ntolliIc dish for rcdistrihution to residents (SMAI’V) and (iii) cnhlc 
opcrators f o r  distribution to cahlc suhscrihcrs. Sl3’s custorncr base includes niariy of the leading public 
and private broadcasters in h r o p c  and intcrnationallv, including the Gci-man public hroadcasters AliD 
;ind ZDI. C;in;il+ (France), CLT-Ufa (Luxernboul-g). BSkyR (IJ,K.). Kirch Gruppc (Germany). ‘Turner 
Broaclcasting (US-4) and Viacotn (USA). All 01‘ SES’s scwiccs iiic mnrkctcd and sold under the AS-I’KA 
hrand namc. 

Thc Coiiipany. cstahlishcd in 1985, owns mid opcratcs tlic ASTRA Satellite System, which hegan 
service in F e t w u ~ y  1989. The Company’s history hits hccn ch;ii-actci-iscd by market drivcn innovation. SES 
wis the first satellite operator wurldwide to succc ~1114. ; ~ p p l y  the coiiccpt of co-locating satellites at the 
~ ; i m c  orbital location (1 9.2’ East) to exploit the entire liu-hand frequency spectrum at such urhital 
location. Further, SES expects to be the fii-st Europcan satcllite operator to exploit cnriimei-cially the Ka- 
hand frequericics for interactive and niultirncdia services in Eiiropc, including Internet-relatcd satcllite 
scwices. ‘loday. the C:omp;iny is the third largest commercial s;ilcllitc opcrator hy rcvcnues worldwide. The 
ASTRA Satellite Systcm cui-rcntlp consists of seven gcoslationai-y s:itcllitcs upcrating in the Ku-hand, six of 
which are locatcd a t  tlic 19.2” East orhital position and onc of which is temporarily located :it thc 28.2” 
East 01-hital pusition. In addition to its seven upcrational satellites. the Company has also contracted for 
the corislruction and deliver? of f m r  acldilion:il satellites, which it expects to deploy helwccn Augiist 1.098 
and the cnd o f  2000. Thcse new satellires will providc additional transponder capacitj in lhc K~i- l~i i id  for 
exjxindzcl lxoadcat  scnkcs  to existing a r i d  ncw mwkcts i n  Europe, 21s well ;is Ka-hand capacity to pcrmit 
SE S to o l l c r  I wo-way ti symrrie t ric: 11 i g ti -spec (1 t 1-ii nsmission of mu 1 t irnecl i a con t en t . See ’’ TI1 c ASTRA 
S ii t c I li t e Sy s t ern ” . 

T h ~ ~ ~ i g l i  the ASTRA S;itcllitc $StelTi. the Compmy currcntly transmits !N analogue arid 219 digital 
television channels and 11101-c than 100 analogue and digit;il I-utlio channels c)vcr 138 transponders. As o f  
31 December, 1997. (:)I ;ill E,uropcan households I-ccciviiig tclcvisiuii by either satellite or cablc. approxi- 
m;rtcly 70.5 rnilliori, 01- 93 pci- cent.. received oiie 01- more channcls via thc ASTRA Satellite System. The 
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AS‘I‘RA Satellite System reached approximately 43 per cent. o f  all European TV households. The volume 
of digital broadcasts transmitted by the ASTRA Satcllite System increased significantly in 1997 and 
management expects to cxpand these services Iurther with the provision of transponder capacity foi- digital 
brautlcasts to the Unitcd Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland via the temporay relocation of ASTRA 1D 
at 28.2” East and subsequently via RSTRA 3A, cimently scheduled to be launched in August 1998. 

The Company, through ESM, also operates ASTKA-NET, a data and multimedia platform that allows 
servicc and content providers to transmit data directly to high-end servers and PCs i i i  businesses and 
homes iicross the 22 European countries served by the ASTRA Satellite System. Fcdlowing the launch of 
ASTRA 11-1, currently scheduled for the fourth quarter of 1998. ihe Company expects to commence 
operations of the ASTRA Return Channel System (“AIICS”), a direct satellite return channel system via. 
the Ka-band. ARCS is designed to serve the growing market in Western and Central Europe for two-way 
asymmetric, high-speed bruadband collection and delivey of multimedia serviccs. See “Business - 
Iiiteractivc and Multimedia Scivices”. 

Strategy 

The Company’s principal goal is to build on its position as thc leading provider of high quality satellite 
transponder capacity and broadcasting services in Europe and establish the ASTRA Satellite System’s 
innovative broadband open infrastructure as ii basis for a global network for entertainment and busincss 
communications. The Company’s s t ra tee  to attain this goal. and to achieve continucd revenue growth and 
etiliancc its market position: consists of thrcc key components: the Company intends to (i) consolidate and 
enhance i t s  position as the leading providcr of broadband satellite infrastructure for television, radio and 
multiincdia in Western Europe by launching the Ka-hand AS’I’RA Return Channel Systcin and hy using 
existing satcllites to seed new markets; (ii) cxpand geographically by launching ASTRA IK to  extend thc 
AS‘I’KA Satcllitc System footprint further into Eastern Europe and Russia as well as the Mcditcrranean 
rcgion and by pui-suing investment and partnei-ship opportunities with satcllite operators in acljacent 
rcgions; and (iii) become thc lcading provider of broadband communications infrastructure in Europe via 
iicst generation satellites fcaturing on-board pi-ocessing and establish a global broadband comnlunication 
systcm. ‘Io support its growth strategy, the Company is currently investing in four additional satdlitcs to be 
launched during the ncxt two years and plans to procure Next Gcncratinn System (“NGS”) satellites in 
2002 and 7003. 
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The Combined Otl’ering 

The Combined Offering: 

‘l’he Luxembourg Offering . . . , . . . 990.267 FDIis are being offered to members of the public and 

The lntcmational Offering 

Thc Employee Offering . . 

The Designatcd Offering . 

Selling Shareholders . . . . . . 

Chcr-allotment Option . . . . 

. . . . . . . 

. . . . . . . 

institutional invcstors -in Luxcmbourg by the Luxembourg 
Managers uamcd undcr “Subscription and Sale”. 

3,961,066 FDKs are being offered to institutional investors 
outside Luxembourg and the United States by the International 
Managers named under “Subscription and Sale”. 

177,167 FDRs iirc k i n g  offered to the Company for distribution 
to employees ol  the Company and mcmbcrs of thc Board of 
Directors of  thc Company (the “Board”). 

Deutsche Telekom has authorisation from the Government to 
hold up to 16.67 per cent. of the shares of the Company. 
Deutsche Telekorn, as a Selling Shareholder, will sell 1.241,OOO 
bYORs and. consistent with its intention to restore its 16.67 per 
cent. intcrcst in the shai-cs of thc Company, will simultaneously 
purchase 1,077,SOO FDRs offered by the Joint Global 
Coordinators and the Lead Manager of the Luxembourg 
Ofruing (the “Dcsigiiatcd Offering”). See “Selling 
Sharcholdcrs” and ”Subscription and Snle”. 

The forcgoing amounts arc indicative only and are subject to 
f in  a1 allocations. 

The Selling Shareholders include two Luxembourg public 
institutions, RCEE and SNCI: which togcthcr own all of the B 
Sharcs, representing 16.67 per cent. of the shares of the 
Company and 33.33 pcr ccnt. of thc voting rights. Upon 
coniplction of the Combined Offering, holders of A Shares and 
FnRs will bcncficially own 83.33 pcr ccnt. of the total number of 
shares of the Company and holders of R Shares will beneficially 
own 16.67 per ccnt. of thc total number of shares of the 
Company. Holders o f  the B Shares will continue to be cntitlcd to 
voting rights in respect of 33.33 per cenl. o f  the total number of 
shares of the Company. See “Investnicnt Considerations - 
Risks Relating to the Combined Offcring - Voting Power of 
Luxembourg Public lnstitutions”, “Description of Share Capital 
- Voting Rights” and “Selling Sharcholdcrs”. 

I n  connectioii with the Combined Offering, certain of the Selling 
Sharcholdcrs have grantcd the Joint Global Coordinators, on 
behalf or the hhniigcrs, an option (the “Over-allotment 
Option”), exercisihlo until 30 days aflcr the closing date of the 
Combined Offering (the ‘Tlosing Date”), to purchase up to 
755,183 additional E‘DKs, solely to cover ovcr-allotiiicnts, if any. 
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Offer Price. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sharc Capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Rcstrictions on Ownership of Shares . . 

‘l’he FDRs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Use of Proceeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Lock-up . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

The Offer Price is LUF 6,000 pcr FDR. The Offer Price was 
determilied by negotiation among the Company, thz Selling 
Shareholders and the Joint Global Coordinators together with 
the Lead Manager of the Luxembourg Offering. Among the 
factors considcrcd in determining the Offer Price, in addition to 
prevailing market conditions. were the future prospects of the 
Company and the satellite industry in general, salcs, earnings. 
cash flow and certain othcr financial and operating results of the 
Company in recent periods, and thc price-earnings ratios and 
market prices of securities of coinpanics cngagcd in activities 
similar to those of the Company. The market price of the FDRs 
may be subject to fluctuations in response to the factors noted 
above 21s well as  othcr factors. See “Suhscription and Sale”. 

The issued Share Capital of the Conipny is T,UF 4,469,000.000, 
consisting of 31,034,000 A Sharcs and 153 17:OOO R Shai-cs 
(collectively: the “Shares”). 

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (the 
”Articles”), 110 one may hold, directly or indirectly, more than 10 
per ccnt. of the Shares, no direct or indirect users of the 
transmission capacities of the Company may together hold inure 
than 30 per cent. of the Shares, and n o  direct or indii-cct 
manufacturer of satellites or satcllitc launch vehicles 01- satellite 
operators may together hold morc than 30 per cont. 0 1  the 
Shares, in each case without the prior written consent of the 
Government. Thcsc rcstrictions on ownership of Shares will not 
apply to holders of FDRs unlcss a holder of FDRs withdraws 
A Shares against thc surrcndcr of FDRs or exercises the voting 
rights attaching to the A Shares underlying its FDRs. See 
“Description of Share Capital-Transfer and Restrictions on 
Ownership of Shares”. 

Each FDR represcnts rights against the FiduciarlJ in respect of 
onc underlying A Share held hy the Fiduciai-y. As the Fiduciary 
is the Icgal owner of the 12 Shares pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of the FDKs. holders of FDRs will bc able t o  exercise 
their rights only through thc Fiduciary. 

The FDRs will be in bcarcr foi-rn and will be represented by a 
permanent glohal certificate I-epresenting all the FDRs (the 
“Global certificate”). The Global Certificate is UIJIY 
exchangeable for definitive certificates in certain limited 
circurnstanccs. See “Tei-ms and Conditions of the Fiducinr?; 
Depositary Receipts”. 

The Selling Sharcholdcrs will receive the net proceeds of thc 
Cornbined Offering (after deducting commissions). The 
Company has agrccd to pay certain expenses associated \vith the 
Combined Offcring but will not reccivc any of the proceeds 
therefrom. 

The Company and the Sclling Shareholders have agreed, sub,ject 
to certain exceptions, not to offer, sell or othenvisc transfer A 
Shares, or securities that ai-o convertible into: or exercisable or 
exchangeable for, A Shares (including, without limitation, 
FDRs), for a period of 1S0 days artel- the date hereof without 
the prior written consent of the Joint Cilobal Coordinators, after 
prior consultation with the Lead Manager of the Luxembourg 
(>ffering. See “Suhscription and Sale”. 
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Votins Rights . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dividends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Taxation of  Dividends . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  Llstlng . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Coiiiitiencenien t of Ti-adiiig . . . . . . . .  

Settlement I’roceclui-cs . . . . . . . . . . .  

Identification Numbers of FDRs . . . .  

Official Listing Name . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Holders of A Shares are entitled to one vote per share. Pursuant 
to  the tc rn i~  01‘ the 1;iduciaty Dzposit Agreement, holders o f  
FDRs will, subject to cci-tain limitations, t x  cntitlcd to inslruct 
the Fiduciary to votc in respect of the A Shares underlying the 
PDRs. Subject to certain limitations, holdci-s (-if‘ FDRs also niay 
withdraw Ihe .A Shai-es iinclerlying the FDRs and vote direclly. 
See “Description of Share Capital” and “Terms and Conditions 
of thc Fiduciary Dcpositary Rcccipts”. Hvldci-s o f  B Shares arc 
entitled to voting 1-ighls in respect of 33.33 per cent. o f  ihc tnlal 
number of Shares and, accordingly, will have the ability to block 
any shareholder vote requiring more than a two-thirds majority. 
See “Investnicnt Chisiderations - Risks Relating to the 
Combincd Oflci-ing - Voting Power of  I .uxcrnbourg Public 
Institutions” and ”Dcscription of  Shai-c Capital - Ti-msfer and 
Restrictions on Owncrship of Sharcs”. 

Holders o f  I-DKs will, subject to the terms of the Fiduciary 
Dcposit Agreement, be cntitlcd to rcccivc dividends paid, if any, 
o n  thc A Shares hcld hy thc Fiduciary for  all diviclcnci accrual 
periods ending after the completion o f  the Combincd Offel-ing. 
Dividcnds. i f  any,  o n  the A Shares underlying the FDRs will be 
paid to the Fiduciaiy in 1.uxciiihourg francs. A slxcial ciivjdcnd 
was paid on 30 June: 1998 to all sharclioldcrs of record on 30 
April, ~11-198. Holders of FDRs purcliascd in the Cornhined 
Offering iire not entitled to the special dividcnd. Scc “Dividends 
and Dividend Policy”: “Tcriiis and Conditions of the Fiduciary 
Deposit:ii-y Receipts” and ”Tixatiuii - Dividends”. 

FUJ- t a x  purposes: any A Shares held by thc Fiduciary pursuant to 
1hc FDRs and any dividend: liquidation proceeds or other 
disti-ihtions paid tu  the Fiduciaiy will be attributable to holders 
0 1  FDRs. Dividelids paid by the Company currently are suhject 
t o  withholding tux at thc rate of 25 per ccnt. which may be 
rcduccd in accordancc with applicable Luxemhourg tax lams. EU 
Directives cu  tax treaties. Scc “Tuxation - Dividends”. 

Prior to the Cornhined Offerins, there has been IIC) public 
market for the A Shares and no market for the FIlRs. 
Application has been inadc to have up to 3 1,033.000 FDKs. in 
ircspcct of all issued A Shares. admittcd to the Official List of 
the LuxSE and to have the FDRs quoted on  SEA0 
In tern i i  tionnl. 

Listing of and tl-adiTig in the FIlKs o n  the I.,uxSE arc cxpcctcd lo 
begin 0 1 1  or about 6 July, LY-18. 

It is expected that payment fo r  and clelivcry of  the FDRs will be 
made through the facilities of  Euroclear and C:cdcl nank on or 
aboul 9 July. 1998 against payment therefor in Luxembourg 
francs or an equivalent amount i n  Belgian francs i n  same-day 
funds. Neither Cede1 Bank nor Euroclear undertakes 10: and 
ncithcr Cede1 Rank nor Euroclzar shall have responsibility to, 
monitor or ascertain the complimcc of any transactions in the 
I*-IlKs with any ownership restrictions. See *“Iki-ms and 
Conditions of the Fiduciaiy DepositaT Receipts”. 

ISIN: LU (3088087324 
Common Codc: OOXXOX7.32 

SES 
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Summary Financial and Other Information 

'T'he s u m m q  financial and other data for the years ended and as of 31 Dccernber, 1995, 1996 and 
I997 set forth below havc bccn derived from, and should be read in con-junction with and arc: qualified in 
their entirety by rcfci-cncc to. the audited consolidated finaiicial statcmcnts of thc Company, including thc 
notes thcrcto, iiicl~ided elsewhere in this Offering Circular. Scc "Tndcx to Financial Statements". 

Year Ended 31 necemher, 
1YY5 1996 1997 1997"' ~ - -  - 

(In L W  millions) (In ECU millions) 
Siiinrnav Profit and Loss Account nata: 
TcXal revenues'" . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ilcpi~ciation and amortisation . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Operating expenses") . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Fraiicliisc [ccs and taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net inco~nc after minorit! inrerests . . . . . . . . . .  

Siirnrnary Balance Sheet nsta: 
Fivcd assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net dcht . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Shareholders' luntls (including minority interests) . . . .  

Other nata: 
EBITIIA margin (5 )"I . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net inccrrnc rnargin (%)") . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

E . '  nt nings per X Share ( I.UF)'7'. 
Kurnbcr' of sarcllites at year end','' 

Return o n  n \~ t -agc  equity (5 )"'I . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital expenditure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . .  

Wciglitcd avei-age number 01 trariqmndcrs available'x) 
Weighted average nurnhcr of tinnspondei-s in commercial use") 

, , 

. .  
10,336 I?,  1 BO 18,074 14.3 
(3.0110) ( 4 3 7 )  (4,629) ( 1  13) 
(2,491) (2,41 I )  (3,586) (88) 

(777) (606) (850) (21 ) 
(1,100) (2,060) (2.606) (66) 
2,858 4.796 0,406 157 

As of 31 necemher. 
1995 1YY6 I997 1997"' - - ~  ~ 

(In LlJY millions) (In ECU millions) 

37,041 46.665 511,048 .I .301 
43,010 53.688 6?,9O!I 1.567 

(12,872) (18.383) (19.231) (472) 
19.802 22.726 26,954 60 I 

As of and for the Year Ended 31 December, 
1Y9S 1996 1997 1997'" - - ~  ~ 

(In LLP millions, except 
ratios, pcr A Share data and 

satellite data) 

(In ECI! millions) 

75.9 
27.8 
14.9 

9.501 
77.3 

i 
A4 
55 

81.0 80.2 
31.9 35.4 
22.6 25.8 

13,207 11,013 
128.8 172.0 

51 5 IO4 
7s I 0 1  

6 7 

SO.? 
35.4 
2i.S 
270 
4.2 
- 

- 
- 

( I )  Luxembourg franc amounts are translatcd, solcly for the convenience of the ~ C ~ , L : I - ,  into ECL' at the exchange rate on 31 
Ilcccrnbcr, 1997 of LUF 40.78 = ECI! 1.00. 

(2) Ttansponder revenues p l u b  olhcr operating income. 
(3) Personnel costs. cxlcrnal charges. other operating charges and results of associaled companies. 
(4) Earnings helore intcrcst, taxes. franchise lee, tieprcciation and amortisation dividccl by total revenues. 
( 5 )  Net inconie d i v i d d  b~ lotnl rcvenues. 
(6) Ket iiicome divitlcd by average of opening and closing shareholders' lunds. 
(7) Earnings pcr A Shai-c arc restated lo account for the new capital slruclurc followins the Extraordinary General Mecting on 20 

Ida?. 1008. Scc "Description 01 Sharc Capital - General". 
(X )  See "The ASTRA Satellite System" (or a description of the AS-I'KA Salellite S>stcm. 
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Summary Satellite Data 

Thc ASTRA Satellite System is currently comprised of seven satellites, six of which (ASTRA I A ,  
ASTRA 1 R, ASTRA 1 C, ASTRA 1 E, ASTRA 1 I-' and ASI'RA 1G) are co-located in geostationary orbit at 
19.2" East and onc of which (ASTRA 1D) is tcmporarily locatcd in geostationary orbit at 28.2" East. In 
addition, four satcllitcs arc undcr construction? two of which will he co-located in geostationary orbit at 
19.2" East and hvo of which will bc co-located in geostationary orbit at 38.2" East. The ASI'RA Satellite 
System presently has capacity dedicated to thc transmission of analogue and digital television and radio 
channels, as well as multimedia scrviccs. For ii description of thc ASTRA Satellite System, see T h e  
ASTRA Satcllitc Systcrn". 

The followins illustration sets fcwth thc current configuration of the AS'lKA Satellite System, 
including uplink and downlink frcqiicncics, the total nurnbcr of ti-ansponders by frequency band and, for 
cach satcllite, the freyucncy band in which it is transmitting and 1hc additional frequencies for- which it is 
configured to provide back-up capacity. 

1 19.2" East * 28.2" East 
SOH0 
User 

Consumer 

I - -  

GHz 

30.00 
Y c 
P 
3 

.- - 
79.50 

......... 
12 75 

12.50 

12.10 

.- - g ..l17O.. 
n 

11  45 

11 20 

10.95 

..... .. 10 70,;.. 
. ,  

RX HUB 
TX BTZ 

Earth Station 

Ffi 
GHz 

1880 * 
.- 

HUB 5 
1830 

0 

14 00 
13 75 
18 10 

17 70 

Y 
1730 5 
1425 4 

14 50 

13 25 

13 00 

14 00- 

1 4 5  

12B. 

ASTRA 1A ASTRAIB ASTRA IC ASTRAIE ASTRA I F  ASTRAIG 

E-Backup E-Backu 

E-Backup 

A-Backup A-Backup 

............................................... 

I 

C-Backup 

c a 
5 

Nov f, 
1994 

ASTRA 10 

TrP 
_. 

Band 
.- 
A 

Ka 

T 

A A  
FSS 

7 
A 

KU 
High 
Band BSS 

T T  
L 

FSS 

LOW 
Band 

KU 

T - ...... __ 

13 



Technical Risks 

Risk of Failure or Delay 

Satellites are subject to significant risks, including launch failure, destruction, damage and incorrcct 
orbital plricctncnt which prcvcnl pi-opcr commercial opci-alion. Since 1986, approximately 16 per ccnt. of 
all insured coniincrcial geosynchronous satellites experienced a launch failure, failure to achieve geosyn- 
chronous orbit from traiisfcr orhit or failure to opcrate upon reaching orbit. Although the Company has 
not suffered any such failures to datc, thcrc can be no iissurmcc that the launches of ASTRA 2A, ASTRA 
113, AS‘I’RA 3B or ASTRA 1K will be succcsslul or that thc satcllitcs will perform as dcsjgrlcd. Although 
h e  Company believes that tlic contingency plans it has in plncc i n  the cvcnt of a launch o r  othci- failure arc 
adequate, a total or constructive total loss of, or significant defects in, any of  these satellites could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of c>pci-;itims. The Company maintains full launch and in- 
orhit insurance in rcspcct of its salelliles, although such insurance does not compensate the Company for 
lost revcnucs, costs or losses associated with business interruption or consequential losscs rcsulting from 
aiiy laioicli 01- other failure or significant delay. Scc ‘‘ - Business Risks - Dependence on Key Suppliei-s” 
;rnd “The ASI’KA Satellite System - Insurmcc”. 

Recently, tlic Galaxy IV satellite manufactured hy Hughes and operated by  PanAmSat cxpcricnccd :I 
total failure, and PanAmSat’s Galaxy VI1 sntcllite, also manufactured by Hughcs, experienced ii siynificant 
anomaly (failurc of thc primary onboard spacecraft control processor). Oiic o f  the Company’s satcllitcs, 
AS-I’RA IC, is of tlic same gcnci-ntion of I luglies salcllites as Gala? IV and Galaxy VII, although to datc 
the Company has not cxpcricnccd any diKicultics with the AS‘I‘RA 1C onhoard spacecraft control 
pi-ocessors. 

liiansponder agreements signed by the Conipany wilh its custmners in advance of the launch of ;I 
particular satellitc generally include provisions allowing the customer: upon notice, to tcrmiuatc the 
agreement if the launch of tlic satellite is dclayed beyond an agreed date or commercial operations o n  the 
satellite have failed to commence by a specified time. An unsuccessful launch of :in ASTRA satellite or a 
significant delay in su5h launch could c;iusc soinc 01- all of SES’s customers for transponder capacity on 
thnt sntcllitc t o  use other satellite operators which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
~ ~ S U I L S  of operations. The launch of the Company’s ASTRA 2A satellite has heen delayed since 
August 1097 and thc current expected launch date is August 1998. The delay in the launch of ASTRA 2A 
has dclaycci the payiiciit lo the Company of certain transponder I-cvcnLics under contracts in respect of 
ASTRA ?A. The Company is able to provide transponder capacity on ASTM ID which, in part, provides 
i-cpl;iuciiicnl capacity for ASI’RA 3A: but any significmt further delay in the launch of ASTRA 2A may 
inipair tlic Company’s planned transpondcr capacity a t  28.2’ East. including the capacity to trnnsiiiit digital 
sei-vices in  the L‘nitcd Kingdom and 1hc Republic of Ireland. See -'The ASTRA Satellite System - 
Satellites Under Constructiun - Orbital Slot at 28.2” East”. 

Lifi? of Sukllites 

All of the Company’s satellites have ricsign lives bctween 1 0  and 15 years and the Coiiipaiiy bclicvcs 
that thcii- opcraliona~ life should, undc I‘ nomial cii-cumslances, exceed design life. A number of factors 
;iffect the operational lives of satellites, including the quality of their construction, thc durability of their 
ctompcinent parts, the amount of  fuel on board, the functionality of battery cells, the launch vehicle w x i ,  
how the satellite js iitiliscd arid the skill with which the satellite is monitored and operated. It is expected 
that the C h i p a n y  will begin replacing the capacity of its existing satellites in 1999 following the I;iui~ch of 
ASTRA I.H, cui-I-cntly scheduled for the fourth quarter of 1998. -1’hrre c;in bc nc) iissiiriincc: howe\,ci-. :IS to 
the spccific operational life of any satellites within the ASTKA Satellite System. Thc Company’s results of 
operations could be advci-scly al‘kctecl in the event thc opci-;itional lifc of satellites within the ASTRA 
Satellite Systcni is significanlly shorter than expcctcd. Scc “The ASI’IW Satellite Systcm”. 
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Chnnges in Yechnologv 

Satellite technology in the broadcasting industi-y i s  in :i rapid a n d  continriing state of' change. While 
[hc Ccimpaiiy seeks to plirchasc sirtcllitcs incorporating statc-of-thc-art technology, there can hc no 
;iss(ir:iIicc that the technology usctl will continue to be thc most advanccd th~-oughout the operatitjnial life 
0 1  cach wtellite. Any technnl(-@al lag which develops during thc opcratic-)n;i1 lift of  :I satellite could result 
in  lowcr transponder reventics nI'lci- the initial contract tcmi lor any give12 transponder. 111 addition, thc 
Coinpariy's l~usincss is subjcct t o  competitivc pi-cssul-c from dcvclopments in  compcting 01- cnhanccd 
technologies, such :is digital tcrrcstrial broadcasting rind digital vidco compression techn<lloby, which could 
in the future 1-csult i n  cxccss supply of satellite transpunclcr cirpacitv :ild:'or result in lowcr 1-cvciiws per 
transponder. See -'Rusincss - Thc Satellite Broadcasting Markct iu  Europe - '1echrlologic;ll Adwncc- 
incn(s :i ld Declines in Equipmcn t Costs". 

Risk of LSateUite 1)aniiige or Loss Jrmi '4rts of I k r ,  Electrosiatic Storm nnd Space Ilebris 

' lhc loss. clama~e or destrLictior1 0 1  ; ~ n p  satcllitc in  the ASlXA Satcllitc Systcm ;IS a result of military 
actions t\i- x t s  of  war, anti-satellite dcviccs, clcctrostatic stai-in. collisinn with spacc debris or other- cit~~scs 
coulil, to the cxtent the losses arc no t  cowrcd by applicahlc insurancc policics. have an  adverse cfkct cjn 
ilic <:(.)11l\J~IIi~. The Cornpany's insuraicc: policies contain customary exclusions including, aniong othcr 
things. csclusiotis from lnsscs i-c.;ulting from (i) military or siniihi- actions. ( i i )  laser, directed cncrsy or 
aucl~ai-  an ti-strtcllitc devices. ( i i i )  irlsurrcctiun and similar :ic,ts 01- got,crnmcntal riction to prevent such x t s  
and (iv) nuclear I-caction or radiation con t;imination. Astronomers have 1orcc:ist that a significant asteroid 
storm niay nppro;icIi Earth in hovcrnl)c~- 1 W8, If any o f  the Cornpany's s:itcllitcs were darnaged or 
destroyed ;is a I-csult of ii collision with ;in asturoid. the loss from such danirigc or destruction could 
:idvcrscIy affcct the Compiiny's results of operations 1.u financial condition to the extent that such loss was 
not covcrcd urider thc Company's current insui-ancc policies. See 'The  ASTRA Satellite System - 
InsurtincG". 

Rrgulatary Risks 

Dispute Relating to Orbiial Slots 

Thc Luxernhourg p c i - n m c n t  is currently rcsponsihlc for filitis and cnordin;lt.ing applications l ~ y  the 
Compan)r for orbital slots with thc Radiocori i r t luni~~i t i [ ) i~ Rurcau of the 11-b (tlic "Riidiocommunication 
Bureau") unticr thc provisions of Ihc Tntcrnational Tclcconimunic~itioi~s Convention. Whcii :I conflict or 
potential conllict is noted in the usi' ot' :in orbit;rl slot hy all'ccting a satcllite operated by tlic Company, 
the Luscm hc ) urg govern me 11 t is i-cspwi \ji bl c fiir t hc n e p  t i ;I tions tu I-c scilvc any inre nd ed usc o r  in t crferc ncc 
CoIicerns. Ilndcr thc Radio l<cgulations of thc I'Tu. dLlril)g thc coordination process a COiiillry i m p  reyLleSt 
the Iiadic-)communication Bureau to assist it in rcsc-hing disputes in connectiori with cxisting or  proposed 
uscs ol' frcqueiicies and oi-bi(d locations. Htxvcvci-, should any such disputes I-cRiain unresolved, arid thc 
coordination process thereforc not bc successfully complctcti. there is no forrnnl dispute resolution 
mcchnnism. Sec -'Regulation - International Regulation". 

'l'he Company's orbital slot at 3 . 7 "  L i h t  may be affcctcd by ii claim brought by Francc on bchalf o f  
Eutclsat to  USZ thc sii~nc frcqtiencics at thc ricighboilriIig orbital slot ilt 79" &st. Any satcllilcs l k tds : i t  
iniglit operate fi-om an :icljaccnt orbital slot using the same 1-0~id of' fi-cqucncics used hy lhc Company 
wo~i ld  intcrfere tvith the ti-:insmissions made by thc Comprly's satellites at 73.2" East and. coi1vci-scIy, the 
C:niiip;iny'> use o f  such l'i-cqucncizs at  2x2' East would intcrfere wilh trmsrnissions frorn any satellites 
Eutclsat might operatc at 29" East. 

I n  I9SC). Fi-ancc filed with the IT17 to estaldish the Europcsat satellite network :it 29" East. Pursuant to  
thc 11'U's rulcs, Francc had to ciitci- thc Europesal network into use by 23 May. 1997 or its frequency 
allocation w)uld cspirc and Luxcmboui-g's filing, datcd 23 ncccmher, 1904, to cxti1bli\h AS'PlIA a t  28.2' 
Eabt would form thc basis for the ITU's frcquency planning process, In June 1096. thc Company 
arinounccd its intenlion to bring in to  use the 28.2" East orbital posiliun. Jn .Dcccmhcr 19%. Euklsnt tcstcd 
its I-lotbird 2 siitellite at 21)" East hcfore rn1oving the satellite to its final posilictn ;it 13" East. By doing so, 
Eutelsat cliiimcd that it had brought thc Europcsat nctwork in to  use at 30' East. 

At the r\lOVcTnbcr 1007 WRC rnecting. ;I decision was tnkcn to i n c l d c  the h rnpesa t  ncltv(.trk in the 
intcrnational frcqucncy plan for brondcasIing satcllite sci-vicci. s u l + ~ t  to clarification as to whctlier the 



network had been “brought into use” prior to the expiry datc i i f  23 May, 1997. LuxemboilrS lodgcd a 
rcscrvation to the inclusion of the Europesat network in the freq~iency plan, arguing that the satellite 
system had not, in fact, bcen brought into usc prior to the expiry date. Thc basis OF thc dispute is whether 
lhc testing of a satcllitc at an orhital slot for ii short period constitutes “bringing lhe satellite into use” for 
purpciscs of the ITU frequency coordination process. 

LJpm application hy Luxcmbourg. the ITU is investigating France’s claim to UYU 29“ East. France 
supplied the ITU with documcntation supporting Eutclsat’s position, and a meeting of thc Riiard of the 
ITU tu considci- the dispute is schcduled to take place during the first week of July 1998. At that meeting, 
the Board of the I ‘ K ‘  could decide in favour of Luxembourg, in which case thc Company w~mld be entitled 
tu opcratc its satellites from 28.2’ East without l~artnful interference from Eutclsat at 2Y’ East. However, it 
is possible that thc: Ronrd o f  the ITU could rcfcr the dispute back to the parties for further discussion oi- 
cc~uld decide in favour o f  Francz. In the cvenl of a decision in favour of France, it is likcly that Luxcmbourg 
would appcal such decision. Nvncthclcss, there can he no assurance that a satisfactory accommodation 
with Francc \vo~ild he achievc,tl. The ITU Board has no binding dispute rcsolution mcchanism, and if 
France and Luxcmlxnu~g were unablc to agree to a resolution, ncither side would bc cntitlcd lo invoke the 
protections of  intcrnatiorial law against in terference. Accordingly, the iniysct of an unfavourable decision, 
and i n  p i ~ ~ i c u l a r  thc, impact of harmful interference to the Company’s transmissions from 28.2’ East 
caused hy ariy scrvicc introduced by Eutclsat from 29” East, would lye significant. However, thc Company 
jnterids to continuc the transmission of digital TV services h-om 28.2” East. Scc “Business - Legal and 
Rcpulatoi? Proceedings - Dispute Relating to Orbital Slots”. 

Restrictions on Export of 7khnology .i_fkcting Lautich of A S T M  2.4 and ASTRA 1H 

Thc C:c:)mpany has contracted with Hughcs Space and Conirnunications, Inc. (“Hughes“) for the 
construction o f  ASiRA 2A and ASI‘RA 1H, which are expected to be Iaunclied in August 19135: and the 
four th  quartcr of IW8, respectively, from the Republic of Kazakhstan, an independent countrq that was 
once a t i x i t o r y  o f  the former Soviet Union. Hughes is required to obtain from thc Unjted States 
government a technical data export licencc and a hardware CX~OI-1  licence to traiisport ASTRA 2A and 
ASTRA 111 t o  the, groposcd launch sitc. While the export liccnce for ASTRA 2A has been obtained. 
Hughcs is still awaiting receipt of the liccncc for ASIXA 1H. In additim, the launch of ASTKA 2A and 
ASTRA 1 € 1  by a Russian launch vehiclc provider is suhjject tri the E.S. - Russia Agreement Regarding 
Intcrnntional ’ h d c  in Clommercial Spacc Launch Sewiccs (the “Spiicc Launch Agreement”), which 
regulalcs international tradc in coinmercial space launch scniccs between thc two countries. See “Rcgula- 
tion - International Rcgulation”. In tho ovcnt such liceiiccs are not granted in a timely niaiiner or, after 
being granted, are rzvoked fcir any reason, including political dcvclopments, the launch of A W R A  2A and 
AS-I’RA IH could be delayed, and any such delay could have a matci-ial adverse cffccl on the Company’s 
financial condition and rcsults of operations. 

P o l i f i d  Risk.y Pertaining lo the Launch Provider 

C h n g e s  in the policies of the govcrnments of the Rcpclblic of Kmkhstan or liussia may have a 
significant adverse impact on the political and economic environment in thc Republic of Kazakhstan or 
Russia. Although thcrc are alteriiativc locations froin which t o  launch a geostationary satellite, any 
political or social instability in thc Republic of Kazakhstan or Russia could affect the cost, timing and 
overall feasibility of  launching the Company’s satellites from the Republic of Kazakhstan. Tlic C‘ompany 
launched ASJRA 1F and ASI’RA 1G from the Kepul-Jlic of Kazakhstan, and currently intcnds to also 
laurich ASTRA 2 h  and ASTRA 1H on a Proton rocke,t from tlic Baikoiiur C*osmndmrr1e in the Rcpublic of 
Kazakhst;in. There can bc no assurance that political or social instability in thc Republic of Kazakhstan or 
Russia would not have an advcrse effect on thc alility of SES to successfully launch ASTRA 2A and 
AS1’1W 1H in  a timely manner, although thc Company bclicves that its dual launch policy could allow it to 
launch cilhcr ASTRA 2A o r  ASTRA I l l  with Aiancspace on an Ariane rocket from Kourou, French 
Guyana. See T h e  ASTRA Satellitc System - Satcllitc Launch Arrmgements“. 



Business Risks 

Limitations on Insurance 

The Company maintains in-orbit insurance coverage for thc satellites comprising the ASTRA satellite 
System which must be renewed every three to five years, depending o n  the policy. Thc Company has also 
obtained launch and initial in-orhit insurance coverage for ASTRA 2A, AS’I’lL4 1H and ASI‘IL4 213 and 
intends to obtain insurance coverage for ASI‘KA 1 K. ‘Ihe Company’s launch and in-orbit insurance 
policies contain standard commercial satellite insurance provisions, including customary exclusions. Scc 
‘+- Technical Risks - Risk of Satellite Damage or Loss from Acts of War, Electrostatic Storm and Spacc 
Debris”. 

There are circumstances in which the Company’s insurance may not fully reimburse the Company for 
its expenditures with respect to launching a replacement satellite (for example, if the cost of rcplaccmcnt 
cxcccds thc sum insured), aiid the insurance will not compensate the Company for business interi-uption 
and similar losses (including. among other things, loss of riiarkct shai-c, loss o f  revenue and incidental and 
consequential damages) which might arise 11-om the lailui-c of a satellite launch and launch of a replace- 
ment satellite or a failure of a satellite to perform to specifications. For a description of the amounts and 
coverage of the Company’s launch and in-orbit insurance, see “The ASTRA Satellite System - Insur- 
ance”. 

Market Demand and Competition 

The Company faces competition from international, regional and national satcllitc operators, and 
from other communications companies which offer competing scniccs using coinpcting communications 
tcchnologics. Some of these competitors, particularly the international satellite operators (‘;TSOs”), niay 
haw access t o  substantially gi-catci- financial resources t hnn thc Company. See “Business - Competition”. 
If tlie expanding supply of international satellite hi-oadcasting facilities. including those of tlie Company, 
cxceeds the demand for such services: such overcapacity could have an  advcrse effect on the Company’s 
financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the use of digital video compression technology 
(which compresses multiple high-quality television, 1-adio and data channels into the same capacity that 
previously carried only one analogue channel) could also inci-case the effective overall supply of broadcast- 
ing capacity in the satellite industry because fcwcr transponders arc I-cquired to transmit the same quantity 
of prograrnming or data. There can he n o  assuriincc that thci-c will he an offsetting increase in the demand 
for transpondcr capacity. See “Rusincss - The Satcllitc Broadcasting Market in Europe - Technological 
Advances and Declines in Equipment Costs”. 

Dependence on Key Customers 

Revenues from the Company’s five largest customers, Gcrman public broadcasters ARD and ZDF, 
BSh-B, Canal+, C.:I:l-Ufa arid Kirch Gruppc, for thc year ended 31 Ileceniber-, 1 Y Y 7  represented 
approximately 74 per cent of total revenues: although no one customer accounted foi- more than 20 per 
cent. of total 1-cvcnucs. Although the Company’s typical transponder :rgmnicnt with its custoiners has a 
term of ten years, the loss of one c)r more of its key customers could have ii material adverse cffcct on the 
Company’s results of operations. Thcrc can be no assurance that the Company’s key customcrs will not 
reduce thcir I-cliancc o n  the Company by developing relationships with other satcllite operators, although 
the Company is currently unaware o f  any  such plans on tlic part of its kcy customcrs. 

Dependence on Key Suppliers 

There are a limited numher of satellite manufacturers worldwide that can design and construct 
satellites that meet the technical and quality specifications of the ASTRA Satellite System. Any consolida- 
tion of satcllitc manulacturcrs niay further reduce the number of suppliers of satellites that meet thc 
Company’s specifications. The Company has contracted with Hughcs for the construction of ASTRA 2A 
arid AS‘TKA 1 I I and has contractcd with Aerospatiale and Matra Marconi Spacc for the construction of 
ASl‘lW 1K and ASTFLA 2B, respcctivoly. Thc a\~cragc construction period of the four satcllitcs currently 
under contract is 28 months. Any delay or failure hy such manufacturers to deliver the satellites on 
schedule would have ii material adverse effect on tlie Company’s ability to provide services on the ASTRA 
Satellite System as currently contcmplatcd due to the limited number of alternative supplicrs, the tinic that 
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would be rcquircd to design and construct a rcplaccincnt satcllitc and tlic significant additional costs that 
coulcl be incurred. 

The C:ompany has contracted with Ariancspace and ILS for the launch of its next four satellites. ‘lhere 
arc otlicr satcllitc launch providers worldwide that thc Company would considci- using to provide launch 
sciviccs. If  Ai-i;incspauc ;ind ILS wcrc each unnblc to  satisfy its commitments under its contract with SES. 
tlic Company wc:)uld cxpci-iencc significant delays and incur additional costs in order to launch its satclljtcs 
in ;I tiincly miinner. Scc “The ASTRA S~tcll i tc System - Satellite I m n c h  Arrangcnicnts”. 

Risks Relating tu Legal and Regulatory Proceedings 

The Company is or has been a party to three lawsuits, one in the United States and two in 
1.uxemhourg. brought by Mr. Clay Whitehead. All of thcsc lawsuits iclatc to an agrccincnt dated 23 
Scptemhei-, 1985 hetween the Company and Whitehead and ccrtain othcr partics, under which 50 founder 
shares. with no par valuc (thc “ h u n d c r  Shares”), in the Company were issued to Whitehead subject to 
certain conditions. Thc Founder Shai-cs and rights thzi-eunder are discussed under “Dividznds and 
Dividend I’olicy - Founder Shares”. Payments to Whitehead under the Founder Shares have been 
withheld by the Company since the 1992 financial ycai- on the ground that Whitehead tireached a non- 
compctitioii olausc contained in the agreement. 

I n  April 1994, Whitehead sought rccovciy of dividend payments for the 1992 financial year in :in 

ui-gency proceeding in the District Court of I ucmboui-g. The matter was ruled not suitable for urgency 
proceedings bv tlic District C‘oiirt. and the Luxembourg Court of  Appeal affirincd in  July 1995. 

I n  April 1997, Whitehead filed suit in the U.S. District Court for the Eastci-ii District o f  Virginia 
against thc C.’ompany, Ronrd member Ms. Candace Johnson and the Governnient. The suit alleged five 
claims Tor 1-elief relating in varying ways to the agrccmcnt between Whitehead and the Company, a n d  
sought compensatory damages totalling U.S.$200 million as thc alleged value of the Founder Shares, :IS 
well 11s statutory and punitive damages in an  amount of thi-cc to  five times Whitehead’s actual damages. 
On 5 Deccmbcr, 1997: the U.S. District Court entered :I final order ol‘ dismissal in favour of all three 
defendants o11 jurisdictional grounds. Whitehead has filed an appeal, and a dccision is cxpccted in the 
scc(.)iid half of 1998. 

In addition, Whitehead served a writ on the Company in  Imemhourg on 31 March, 1998 seeking 
outstanding dividend payments relating to the Foundci- Shares for the finaiicial years 1992 to 1995 
(;ipproximately LUE 357 million) plus interest and damages (LUF 15 million), rcscrviiig his rights to 
dividend paynicnts relating to I996 and subsequent financial years, rights which he claims will continue 
until 2005, and seeking an ordci- prohibiting cancellation or altcration o f  thc FoLinder Shares. No date has 
been set to adjudicate the matter in Luxembourg. 

The Conipmy bclicvcs that it has acted appropriatcly and will defend itself vigorously against the 
claims. 1-lowever, there can be no assurance that the jurisdictional appeal in  the United States will not he 
determined in Whitehcad’s fwour or that his claim will not prcwiil in the court that ultimately decides the 
cast on thc merits. If Wliitehcxl’s claims ultimately are successful, the Company could be suhject to 
significant L‘inancial liability. Scc “Business - Legal and Rcgulatoiy Proceedings”. 

Thc Cornpany has initiated a lawsuit in Germany and is curi-cntly involved in a dispute in Spain 
contending in each c;isc that i t  was not required to pay withholding tax in respect of rcveiiues rcccivcd 
from its custcmicrs in  those countries. Although tlic Company prevailcd in the original Gei-man court 
decision, thc Gci-man tax authoritics arc appealing the judgment. Thcrc c;in bc no assurance that the 
decision will bc uplicld on appeal or that the Company will prevail in the Spiinish disputc. Sce “Business - 
Legal arid Rcgulatory Proceedings”. 

Risks Relating to the Year 2000 

‘171e Company has budgeted additional cxpcnditurcs of LUF 140 million to redesign its iiirorniation 
systems to crisi~rc that they will function effectively beyond 1999. Since starting work on this issue in early 
1997, the Company’s Millennium Tisk Force has identified critical adininisti-ation and engineering systcins 
10 I x  modified. The Company’s financial reporting system is not Year 2000 compliant, although the 
Chipany is in the process of Lipgrading the svstem. The Company is also rcvicwing it.; othcr software, 
including satcllitc operating systems, for compliance. 
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Risks Relating to the Combined Ot’fering 

Voting Power of Luxembourg Public Institutions 

The Selling Shareholders include two Luxembourg public institutions, BCEE and SNCI, which 
togcther own all of the B Shares. Upon completion of the Combined Offering, BCEE and SNCI will 
beneficially own 16.67 pcr ccnt. of the total Share Capital, although they will continue to hold voting rights 
in respect of 33.33 pci- ccnt. of the total Share Chpital. Consequently, BCEE and SNCI will have the ability 
to block any vote requiring more than a two-thirds majority of shareholders, including votes in relation to 
the distribution of more than 75 pcr cent. of the annual profit, the election of Directors and auditors, the 
dcvclopmcnt of new activities within the framework of the Company’s purpose and amendments to the 
Articles. Scc “Description of Share Capital - Voting Rights” and “ - Gcncral Meetings o f  Sharchold- 
ers”. The Voting rights held and the ability to exercise a blocking vote by BCEE and SNCI also may 
discouragc certain types of transactions, including those involving an actual c)r potential change of control 
of the Company, 21s well as limit the ability of the Company to raise additional equity capital in the futurc. 
See “Sclling Shareholders”. 

Absence of a Previous Market for the FDRs; Possible Price Volatility 

Prior to the Combined Offering, there has heen n o  public market for either the FnRs o r  the A Shares 
and thcrc ciin be no assurance that a n  active public markct for thc FDRs will develop or he sustained after 
the Combined Offering or that the initial public offering price will coi-1-cspond to the price at which thc 
FnRs will trade in thc public market subsequcnt tu  the Combined Offering. Thc Company has applied to 
haw the FDRs listed on thc LuxSE and to have the FDRs quoted on SEAQ Intel-national. 

Following completion of thc Combined (ll’l‘ccring, 13.77 per cent. of the total economic interest in the 
Share Capital of the Company, and 11.02 per cent. of the voting rights in rcspcct thereof, will hc held, in 
the form of FDRs, by persons other than thc Sclling Shareholders (15.86 per ccnt. and 12.64 per ccnt., 
rcspectively, if thc Over-allotment Option is cxcrcised in full). The absence of a public market for thc A 
Shares may impair the ability of FDR holdei-s to scll in the Luxembourg markct any A Shares obtained 
upon withdrawal from the FDR deposit facility in thc amount and at the price and timc such holder may 
wish to do so, and may increase the volatility of the price of thc FDRs. 

A Shares Available for Future Sale 

Rccause there has bccn no public markct for the FDRs or the A Shares, no prediction can bc mxlc 21s 
to the effect. i T  nnv, that future sales of FDRs (by convcrsion of  outstanding A Shai-cs into FDRs or 
otherwise) or A Shares or the availabiljty of such FURS or A Shares for future sale. will have on the 
m;rrkct price of the FDRs prevailing from timc to time or o n  the Company’s ability to raise capital in the 
fulure. Sales of substantial amounts of FDRs or A Shares in thc public market, or the perception that such 
sales cc)uld occur, could advci-scly affect the prevailing market price of the FnRs and the ability of the 
Company to raise capital thi-ough a public offei-ing of its equity securities. In connection with the 
Combined Offei-ing, the Company and thc Selling Shareholdcrs have agreed, subject to ccrtain exceptions, 
n o t  to effect certain sccurities transactions in the A Shares, or securities that are convertible into, or 
excrcisable or exchangcablc for, A Shares, fur a period of 180 days after the date of this Offering Circular 
without the prior written consent of the Joint Global Coordinators, after prior consultation with the Lxad 
Manager of the Luxembourg Offering. See “Subscription and Sale”. There can be no assurance that such 
parties will not effect transactions after such date which could adversely affect the prevailing markct pricc 
of the FnRs. 

19 



DMDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY 

Thc Company has distributed annual cash dividends to its shareholders in respect of cach financial 
year since it commenced operations in Februaiy 1989 and anticipates that it will continue to do so in the 
future. Thc Boai-d has adopted a dividend policy, which the Company expects to maintain following the 
completion of Combined Offering, to distribute approximately 50 per cent. of net income as dividcnds, 
including dividends paid in respect of thc A Shares and R Shares and amounts rctaincd in respect of the 
Founder Shares. Any future dividend payments, howcvcr, are dependent on futurc earnings, the financial 
position of the Company, cash flow and levels of investments in tlic satellite network and ground station 
equipment. 

In accordaiicc with applicable Luxembourg law and the Articles, the payment of annual dividends is 
~-ecotnmended by thc Board for approval by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of sharehold- 
ers (the “Annual Gcncral Meeting”), which occurs on or about the 15th of April of each year. Holders of 
the FDRs will he entitled to rcceivc dividends paid, if any, on the A Shares underlying the FDRs for all 
diridend accrual periods ending aftcr the completion of the Combined Offering. See “Description of Share 
Capital”. 

The following table sets forth the total amount of annual dividends and the gross dividends paid by thc 
Company per A Share aiid I3 Sharc on a pro forma basis to give effect to the revised capital structure 
following the Extraordinary General Meeting on 20 May, 1998, together with ccrtain additional informa- 
tion, with respect to cach of the years elided 31 December, 1995, 1996 and 1997. 

For the year ended 31 
necemher, 

1995 1996 1YY7 ~ - -  
Net income (LUF millions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,878 4,796 6,406 
Aggregate dividends paid (LUF millions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,896 2,278 3,043 
Dividends per A Share (LUF) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  50.9 61.2 81.7 
Dividends per A Share/earnings per A Share (per cent.) . . . . . . . . . .  65.9 47.5 47.5 
Dividends per B Share (LUF)(‘) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  20.4 24.5 32.7 

“ )  For the years tip lo a r i d  including the year ended 3 I Dcccmtier, 1997. the holdcr of cach B Share was entitled to 50 pcr cent. of 
thc dividends payable pcr A Share. Following the Extraordinary General Mccting on 20 May, 1908, the holdcr of cadi 13 Share 
is entitled to 40 per ccnt. of dividends payable pcr A Share. 

Special Dividend 

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders held on 20 May, 1998, the shareholders 
approved the payment of a special dividend in the amount of‘ LUF 1,862 million to shareholders on rccnrd 
on 30 April, 1998. The special dividend was paid on 30 June, 1098. Holdcrs of FDKs purchased in the 
Cornbincd Offel-ing are not cntitled to the special dividend. 

Founder Shares 

In coniicction with the formation of the Company, SO Founder Shares, without voting rights, were 
issued to Whitehead, subjcct to certain conditions. The Articles provide that for a pcriod of 20 years from 
1 March, 1985, the date of formation of the Company, the holdcr of the Founder Shares is entitled to a 5 
per cent. participation in thc nct profits of the Company, after tax, rcsulting from television activities 
(except acccssory provision of services), provided that the profits have bccn achieved exclusively within the 
Cotnpaiiy’s purposc as defined in Article 2 of the Articles at the time of its incorporation in 1985, excluding 
all benefits resulting from an enlargement or extension of the initial purpose. Article 2 of thc Articles, in 
turn, established the original purposc of the Company a s  the exploitation, by way nf a concession, of 
communication satcllitcs, using for tclcvision purposes frequency bands attribuled currently or subsc- 
qucntly for fixed satellite servicc o n  one of the orbital positions obtained or to be obtained by the 
Ciovernment of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg ill  conformity with the procedures provided by the 
International Tclccommunication Union. Articlc 30 of the Articlcs provides that, at the expiration of the 
20 year pcriod, the Company shall repurchase the Founder Shares at a price equal to the difference, if any, 
bctwcen the 5 pcr ccnt. participation in net profits described above and the aggregate amount ot  dividend 
distributions reccivcd by the holdcr of the Founder Shares during the 20-year period. The Company has 
ceased making payments in rcspcct of the Founder Shares since thc 1992 financial ycar, and is currently ii 

party to legal pi-occedings in the United States and 1-uxembourg initiated by Whitehead. See “lnvestmcnt 
Considerations - Rusincss Kisks - Risks Relating to T,cgal and Regulatory Proceedings” and “Business 
- 1 xgal and Rcgulatoi-y Proceedings”. 
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CAPTTALIS ATION 

The following table sets forth the short-term debt and capitalisation of the Company as of 31 March, 
1998, as adjusted to reflect the special additional dividcnd payment o f  LUF 1,862 million on 30 June, 1998 
and the annual dividend payment of TWF 3,043 million paid in respect of financial year 1997 o n  30 April, 
1998. See “Dividends and Dividcnd Policy - Special Dividend”. 

As of 31 ,March, 1998 

(In LUF millions) (In ECU millions)(’’ 

Short-term debt (including currcnt portion of long-tci-m dcht) . . 4,250 104 

Deferred income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,803 68 
Long-term debt (excluding current portion) . . . . . . . . . .  23,093 563 
Amounts payable in more than one year . . . . . . . . . . . .  25,896 63 1 

Capital and rcservcs: 
Sharc capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sharc prcmiuin account . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Legal reserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rctaiiicd camings and reserves . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interesls . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total capital and rcsc~ycs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Capitalisation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4,469 109 
220 5 
447 11 

18,683 456 
86 2 

23,905 583 
49,801 1,214 

(1) I,uxembourg franc amounts are translated, solelv for the cunvenience of thc rcndcr, into ECU at the LUF/ECU exchange rate on 
31 March, 1998 01 LUF 41.02 = ECU 1.00. 

~l’here has been no material change in the capitalisation of the Company as set forth abovc since 
31 March, 1998. 
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BUSINESS 

General 

S I 3  is Europek leading provider of high quality satellite transponder capacity and hi-oadcasting 
scrviccs thi-ough which television, radio and data broadcasters make availabk free and pay programming 
and scrviccs 10 the general public. SES's satellites are principally used by its customers to broadcast 
programming to ( i )  households via a single residence satellitc dish (direct-to-home or D'I'H), 
(ii) communal residences via ii satellite dish for redistribution to rcsidcnts (SMATV) and (iii) cable 
operators for distrihution to cable subscribers. SES's customer base includes many of the leading public 
and private bi-oadcasters in Europc and internationally, including the German public broadcasters ARD 
and ZUF, Canal + (France), CLT-Ufa (Luxembourg), BSkyB (U.K.), Kji-cli Gruppe (Germany), 'hrner  
Broadcasting (USA) and Viaconi (USA). All of SES's services arc marketed and sold under the ASTRA 
brand name. 

The Company, established in 1985. owns and operates the ASTRA Satellite System, which began 
service in February 1989. The Company's history has been characteriscd by market driven innovation. SES 
w;is the first satellite operator worldwide to successfully apply the concept of co-locating satellites at the 
samc orbital location (19.2" East) to exploit thc entire Ku-band frequency spectrum at such orbital 
location. Further, SES cxpects to tie the first European satellite operator to exploit commercially the Kn- 
hand frequencies Tor- interactive and multimedia services in Europe, including Internct-rclatcd satellite 
services. Today, tlic Company is the third largest commercial satcllitc operator by revenues worldwide. The 
ASTRA Satellite System currently consists of seven geostationary satellites operating in the Ku-hand, six of 
which arc located at the 19.2" East orbital position and one of which is temporarily locatcd at the 28.2" 
East orbital position. In addition to its seven operational satcllitcs, the Company has also contracted for 
the construction and delivery of four additional satellites, which i t  expects to deploy bctwccn August 1998 
and the end of 2000. These new satellites will provide additional trancporider capacity in the Ku-band for 
expmclcd broadcast services to existing and new markcts in Europe, as wcll RS Ka-band capaciv to permit 
SES tu offci- two-way asymmetric, high-speed transmission of multimedia content. See "The ASTRA 
Satcllitc System". 

Through its ASI'RA Satellite System, the Company currently transmits '3'3 analogue and 201 digital 
tclcvisiori channels rind inorc than 190 analogue and digital radio channels over 138 transponders. As of  31 
December, 1997, of a l l  European households receiving television by either satellite or cable, approximately 
70.5 million. or 93 per cent., received onc or more channels via the ASI'KA Satellite Systcm. The ASI'RA 
Satcllite System reached approximately 43 per cen t. of all European TV households. The volumc of digital 
broadcasts transrnittcd by the ASTRA Satcllitc System increascd significantly in 1997 and management 
expects to expand these serviccs further with the provision of transponder capacity for digital broadcasts to 
the United Kingdom and the Republic of  Ireland via the tcmporary relocation o f  ASI'IIA 1D at 28.2" East 
and subscqucntly via ASTRA ?A, currently scheduled lo be launchcd in August 1998. 

The Company, through ESM, also operates ASTRA-NET, a data and inultinicdia platform that allows 
service and content providers to transmit data directly to high-end scrvci-s and PCs in businesses and 
homes across the 22 European countries served by the AS'I'RA Satellite System. Following thc launch of 
ASTRA 111. currently scheduled for the fourth quarter of 1908, the Company expects to commence 
operations of ARCS, ii direct satellite return channel system via tlic Ka-band. ARCS is designed to servc 
the growing market in Western and Central Europe for two-way asymmetric, high-spccd broadband 
collection and delivery of multimedia services. See "Business - Intcractive and Multimedia Services". 

Stratcy;): 

The Company believes that it benefits from a number of  competitive advantages in the provision of 
satellite transnlission capacity and associated services to broadcasters in Europe. First, the Company was 
thc first satellitc opcrator worldwidc to utilise the entirc Ku-band frequcncy range at one orbital position, 
10.2" East. With six co-located satellites, the Company i s  able to provide sufficient trmspondci- capacity at 
one location to allow its customers to broadcast a wide array of  programming and services which can bc 
accesscd by a single-feed, fixed parabolic satcllilc dish pointed a t  19.2' East. In addition, in the event of a 
system o r  satellite fault, all of the Company's satellites have spai-c equipment on-hoard to provide service 
continuity, and the ASTRA Satellite Systcm has a unique intersatellite protection system which permits 
ti-anspondcrs on one satellite to be replaced by transponders operating in the same frequency on other CCI- 
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lc~cated satellites. 17ie ASTRA Satellite Systcin also transmits the broadest array of broadcast program- 
miny  i n  Europc over a pan-European footprint, and is the leading provider of  satellite Ixx>adcast services 
t o  the European DlH!SMAl-V and cahlc markets. 

The Company’s principal goal is to huild on its position as thc leading provider of high quality satellite 
trarisporlder capacity and associated services in Europe and establish the ASTRA S;itcllitc System’s 
innovative 1,roadbancl open infrastructure iis thc bnsis for a global nctwork for entertainment and business 
communications. The C~onipnny’s stratcky lo  attain this goal, ;ind to achieve continued revenue growth and 
cnhaiicc its markct pusition, consists o f  thi-cc kc! components: the Company intends to (i) consolidate anci 
enhance its position as the Icndjng provider of brosdhand satcllite infrastructure for television. radio and 
multimedia in  Western Europe by launching thc Ka-band ASI’KA Keturn Channel System and by using 
existing satcllitcs to sccd iicw markcts: (ii) expand gcogi-q>hically l y  launching ASTIW 1K to extend the 
ASTRA Satellite Systmi footprint further into Eustcrn Europc and Kussia as well as the Mediterranean 
and by pursuin~ irivestrnent and partnership opportunities with satellite operators in adjacent regions; and 
(iii) become the leading providci- of bi-oiidband cciiiini imications infrastructure in Europe via next 
gcneratioii satellites l‘caturing on-hoard processing and establish a global broadband communication 
system. ‘To support its growth strategy, the Company is currently investing in four additional satcllitcs to bc 
launched during the next two years and plans to procure NGS satcllitcs in 7002 :tnd 2003. 

Consolidate: and Errliarice its LPadiirg Murkrt Position. The Company intends to consolidate arid build 
upon its lcading markct position in Western Europe by cnhnncing cxisting services such as television and 
radio broadcasting and by expanding into new service markcts such as multicasting. In addition to leading 
thc riiarkct transition from ;inalogue to digital transmission. the Company plans to develop asymmetric 
s;itcllitc-hased sciviccs thi-ough ESM (using a telephone return path) and ARCS (using an ASTRA 
Satellite System Ka-hand return path). In addition: the Company will seck to cxploit its end-of-life 
satcllitcs h y  relocating them t o  a new orbital position. where they can be used to provide low cost capacity 
to support kSM and ARCS growth. high-speed Internet access to cnicrging markets and tclcvision and 
I-adio hack-haul scniccs from Central anci l k t c i - i i  Fiiropc. 

Gcvynphic E.rpnrzsion. ‘l’he second component of the Company’s growth strategy is to penetrate new 
markets by expanding the gcographic covci-age of  its satellite system. ‘I’he Company intends to launch new 
sntcllitcs which will C X ~ J : I I J ~  its geographic footprint, such iis ASTRA 1 K. which will expand the C:onipany’s 
covci-age to include such markets as the western part of the Cuiiimonwcalth or Independent States (“CIS”) 
and the Mcditci-ranc;in rcgiun. Furthcr, the Company is actively exploring acquisition and pal-tncrship 
opportunities with I-cgional satellite operators to expand coverage to ncighbouring rcgions. 

frai.iding .Vw ~roadbaiid .%rtditc! .%nYrc!s. The third component is to cstablish ii satellite systom 
capability that will permit the Conipany to offer global point-to-point multimedia services to corporate. 
sniall lwsiness and retail customers. The launch of NGS, a high capacity, 1,andwidtli-con-demand satellite 
system more fully utilising Ka-hand frequencies, possihly with on-hoard processing capabilities, will enable 
the Company to provide the greater Europc;in region with new high speed symmetric and asynimctric 
communications services, and will permit the Coiiipany to intcgrntc its rcgional Ka-band satcllitcs with a 
global Ka-band satellite system to provide seamless global high speed. symmetric and asymmetric cominu- 
nication sei-vices. The Conipanv is actively rcvicwing the optimnl structurc to iinplcincnt the cstahlishmcnt 
of a global Ka-hand systcni. 

‘J’hc Satellite Broadcasting LMarket in Europe 

As of 31 December. 1997. there were 163.9 millic-In TV houccholds in Europe, of which appi-oximntely 
76 million (46 pcr cent.) rcceivcd either satellite or c a l k  television broadcasts. Approximately 29 milliori 
Eui-cipcan TV houscliolds rcceived hroadcasts hy D’TH and SMAl’V. of which approximately 71 per cent. 
was DTH anti approxinintcly 29 per cent. was SMAI’V. Cable served approximately 47 million ot  European 
TV households. 

As of 3 1 I)cccmbci-, 1997. of‘ the 76 million European households receiving television hy either 
satellite or cable, approximately 70.5 million, o r  93 per cent., rcccivcd onc or inwe channels via the 
ASTRA Satellite System. and the ASTRA Satellite System reached approximately 43 per cent. of all 
Europcaii TV households. 
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The following table sets forth the coverage of the ASTRA Satellite System by rcgion in t e r m  of total 
DTH/SMATV and cable market segments as of 31 December, 1997. 

Market (in millions of households) 
A S T M  Coverage 

(Der cent. of households)(2’ 

Regions‘” 
~ 

Ger.!Aus./Swi. . . . . . . . .  
U.K./Irc. (Rcp.) . . . . . .  
Central Europe(’) . . . . . .  
Thc Nordic Countrid4) . . . .  
Spain/Poi-t. . . . . . . . .  
Francc . . . . . . . . . .  
BeNeLux . . . . . . . . . .  
Italy . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total . . . . . . . . . . . .  

39.1 
24.9 
22.3 
10.1 
14.8 
21.3 
11.0 
20.2 

163.9 
- 
- 

DTWSMA’IV 
& Cable 

33.5 
7.2 

10.Y 
6.1 
2.1 
4.5 

10.7 
0.8 

75.8 
- 

- - 

DTHI 
SMATV Cable 

12.6 20.9 
4.4 2.7 
4.5 6.4 
2.1 4.0 
1.5 0.6 
2.5 2.1 
0.4 10.3 
0.8 0.0 

28.8 47.0 

-~ 

-~ 
-~ -~ 

DTHISMATV 
& Cable 

8S.3% 
28.3% 
43.1% 
48.6% 
12S% 
12.3% 
96.2% 
2.4% 

DTHI 
SM‘ITV 

31.7% 
17.4% 
16.7% 
9.2%, 
8.S% 
6.0% 
2.9% 
2.4% 

Cahle - 
53.6% 
11.0%, 
26.3%) 
39.4% 

4.0% 
6.3% 

93.3% 
0.0% 

Source: SES, ASTKA Satellite Monitor for  ycar cnd 1997. 
( I )  The Company’s European TV houscliold market is comprised ol all of the countries lisled in tlic table. 
( 2 )  Figurcs indicate percentagc of homes receiving onc or morc television charincls via ASTRA. 
(3) Includcs Croatia. Hungary, Poland, Slovakia. Slovenia and The Czech Republic. 
( 3 )  Iriclurlcs Denmark. Finland, Nnivay and Sweden. 

Broadcasters utilising the ASTRA Satellite Systcm broadcast programmes in all of the principal 
languages spoken in Europe. As of 31 Decembcr, 1997, the ASTRA Satcllite System was Europe’s leading 
provider of D’I’H/SMATV satellite services. The total satellite broadcasting market in Europe increased by 
approximately 4 niiIIion households in 19137. and approximately 3.5 million of such households became part 
of the RS’TRA audicnce. 

Particularly strong demand growth for DTH/SMATV services was experienced in four of the regions 
covered by the ASTRA Satellite Systcm: Germany, Austria and Switzerland; thc United Kingdom and the 
Republic of Ircland; France; and Spain and Portugal. 

The Company is the largest provider of analogue television channels (31) in thc German language 
tuarkct and has recently begun providing digital broadcasting packages. In 1997, audience figures contin- 
ued to rise in Gcrinany by approximately 3 per cent., and at year end the Company’s satellites served 
approximately 87 per cent. of all German TV households (approximately 33 million). The Company’s 
DTH/SMATV audience in Germany increased by approximately 7 per cent. 10 approximately 11 inillion 
households. The principal German broadcasters using the ASTRA Satellite System include the German 
public service broadcasters ARD and ZDF, and nearly all Gcrnian private broadcasters, including RTL, 
SAT1 and PRO Sicbcn. 

In the United Kingdom and the Republic of  Ireland, the number of DTH/SMATV and cable 
households receiving broadcasts via the ASTRA Satellite System in 1997 increased by approximately 16 per 
cent. The United Kingdom was one of the earliest markets into which satellite television was introduced, 
with BSkyB (then Sky 7elevision) launching four analogue channels in .1989. As of year end .1997, the 
Company provided the largcst number of analogue television channels (48) for thc English languagc 
market in Europe. The Company also provides transponder capacity for digital hi-oadcasters, including 
BSkyB and the BBC, and continues to provide analogue capacity. Other broadcasters that utilisc the 
ASTKA Satclljtc System in this region include Rloomberg, Channel 5, Discover?/, Flextech, Turncr 
Broadcasting, UKTV and Viacom. 

In France, the number of DTH/SMATV and cable households receiving broadcasts via thc ASTRA 
Satellite System increased by approximately 19 per cent. in 1997. As of 31 December, 1997, the Company 
was thc leading provider of UTWSMATV services to the French market, reaching more than 1.3 million 
out of 2.5 inillion French DTH/SMATV households, reflecting a one year incrcasc of approximately 
h20:000 households. The principal French broadcaster that utiliscs the ASTRA Satellite System is Canal +, 
which launched the first digital bouquet in Europe for the French market, Canal Satellitc Numerique, 
transmitted via thc ASTKA Satcllitc System. Following its merger with Nethold in September 1996, 
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Canal + is now the largest digital broadcaster in Europe. covering primarily France, Spain, Thc Nethcr- 
lands and Poland. 

Like ccrtain other European countries, thc Spanish market has low cable densities and, accordingly, 
the Company helieves it is a particularly promising D’THLSMATV market for its digital scrviccs. Otic yciii- 
aftcr the start-up of a Spanish language package of digital telcvision channels, the ASTRA Salcllitc System 
reached 1.4 milliori households at ycar elid 1997, one million of which were rccciving channcls via DTI I/ 
SMATV. The principal Spanish broadcastcr using the ASTRA Satcllitc System is Sogccablc, which is 
primarily owiicci by Groupo Prisa ;ind Canal+. Having commcnccd analoguc broadcasting on the ASTRA 
Satellite Systcni in 1993, Sogecahle launched its digital satellite Spanish bouquet, Canal Satellite Digital 
CSD, in January 1997. 

Thc Company bclicvcs that the satcllitc broadcasting inarkct in Europe is growing and will continue 
to grow as 21 result of :I numbcr of developments, including (i) increased distribution of television 
programming to domestic and regional audiences, (ii) technological advances such as digital satellite 
broadcasting and a decline in reception equipment costs and (iii) growth in thc information serviccs 
market. See “Investment Considerations - Business Risks - Markct Dcmand and Compctition”. 

Increased Distribution of Television Progumming lo Dontestic and Regional Audiences 

Sirice the launch of the Company’s services, the television market in  Europe hris experienced and is 
cxpccted to continue to experience significant growth. both in terms of the number of broadcasters 
creating prugramming and thc numbcr of channcls available to viewcrs. Europe also has thc largest DTH:’ 
SMATV market in thc world. The trend in a number of countries in Europe, including Germany, the 
United Kngdom, France and Spain, has been toward the increased use of satellites to distribute television 
programming. The Company believes that domestic and international broadcasters will continue to expand 
their use of satellites to broadcast a growing amount of prograrnrning to domestic and regional audiences. 
Broadcasting television programming has historically been one of thc largest markets for satellite capacity 
in Europc bccausc satcllitcs arc ideally suited for hroadcasting directly to individual households, for 
broadcasting to intci-national, i-cgional and national markcts and for delivering television programming to 
cable operators or terrestial television transmission stations lor local redistrihution. In addition, as the 
broadcasting infrastructures in Central and Eastern Europe develop lurther. SES believes that dcmand for 
satcllitc-based broadcasting will increase. 

The television niarket in Europc is not miforin and there are numerous regional differences in 
language, culturc and idcoloby as well as in  income levels and income distribution. Broadcasting compa- 
nies that wish to take full advantage of the entire European television market must tailor theii- scivices to 
be respoiisivc to thesc regional differences. Digital transmission technology in particulai- allows the 
Company’s c h i t s  to achicve this objective through the provision of services targeted a1 specific regional 
and national markcts. This in turn has resulted in increased dcmand for additional transponder c:ipncity. 

Technological Advances and Declines in 1:‘quipment Costs 

‘I’he Company bclicvcs that technological advances will increase information carrying capacity and 
reduce transmission and equipinen t costs which in turii should stimulatc dcmand for broadcast and 
communications services. 

High-powered Satellites 

Curircnt satcllitc technology, such as that incorporatcd in the ASTRA Satcllitc Systcni and in thc 
satellites which thc Company currently has under construction o r  contract, generally rcsults in more 
powerful satellites than those launchcd in the 19x0s. These newer satellites can provide a larger number of 
transponders to deliver high quality signals to smallcr dishes aiid can cover a larger footprint than earlier 
satellites. Thc incrcasing use of small, inexpensive dishes is expanding the DTH market for satellite 
sewiccs. See ”The ASTRA Satellite System” and “Business - Interactive and Multimedia Services”. 

Digitul Video Compression E c h n o l o ~  

Digital video compression technology permits the compression of SIX to eight video channcls intu thc 
same transponder capacity that prcviously carried one analogue channel (depending on the programme 
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content). This technology facilitates a significant increase in the number of available video channels with 
improved transmission quality, allows satellite operators to provide satellite transmission serviccs using lcss 
bandwidth and can, as with analogue transmission, be used to scramble and encrypt transmissions. Current 
digital video compression technology is reducing thc cost of delivering programming via satellite and cable 
televisions systems, thereby permitting morc programming options to be provided and niche markets to be 
addressed. Ry lowering per channel costs, digital video compression technology may also permit broadcast- 
ers to offer quasi-local broadcasting platforms, including programming designed for particular domestic 
audiences and particular cultures and languages. While advances in digital video compression technology 
could also increase the effective overall supply of broadcasting capacity in the satellite industry, since fewer 
transponders are required to transmit the same amount of programming, the Company bclicvcs that digital 
video compression technology may also facilitate the efforts of broadcasters to distribute their program- 
ining to multiple audiences. Sce “Investment Considerations - Business Risks - Market Demand and 
Competi t ion”. 

Growth of Information Services Markets 

The market in Europe for information services is cxpccted to continue to gi-ow, both in terms of the 
number of providers and users of such services and the types of services availahle, including those related 
to the Internet. The Company expects that bandwidth-on-demand applications, such as the downloading of 
audio-video and data files to local area networks and personal computers using satellite tcchnologv~ will 
hecome increasingly prevalent. In response, the Company, through ESM, has developed ASTRANET and 
is developing ARCS. As users become more sophisticated and demand data transmissions at greater 
speeds and volumes, the Company expects that demand for thcsc satcllitc-based systems will continue to 
grow. See “Business - Interactivc and Multimedia Services”. 

Broadcasting Services 

The Company is the lcading provider of satcllitc transponder capacity and associatcd scrviccs used to 
e broadcast television and radio programmes to households throughout Western and Central Europe via 

DTTT/SMATV and cable networks. The ASTRA Satellite System is the exclusive saLellitc systcni for  
approximately 18 million DTH/SMATV homes in Europe, and approximately 86 per cent. of all DTH/ 
SMATV households in Europe receive cine or morc channels via the AS‘I’KA Satellite System. DTII/ 
SMATV permits the reception of analoguc and digital television and radio programming directly in homes 
or communal residences through the use by consumers of small, affordable satellite dishes. The Company 
provides transponder capacity and sci-vices for both analoguc and digital transmissions. 

As of .IS June, 1998, 64 of the ASTRA Satellite System’s transponders provided analogue services. 
‘These services consisted of 99 analogue television channels, of which 47 were for the English language 
market, 30 were for thc German language market and 22 wcrc for the pan-European market. Fifty-five 
analoguc radio channels and 78 digital radio channcls wcre also included in the analogue service provided 
by ASTRA. In addition, 74 transponders provided 219 digital television channels and 159 digital radio 
channels. 06 these, 78 television and 41 radio channels were for the German language market, 66 
television and 67 radio chaiincls were for the French language markct, 41 television and 41 radio channels 
were for the Spanish language market and 11 television and nine radio channcls were for the Dutch 
language market. lwelve television channels were for the Polish languagc markct, whcrc 21 coinplctc pay- 
T V  package is currently being launched, and 11 television and one radio channel wcrc for the pan- 
European market. In the United Ingdom,  broadcasters launched digital video services in June 1998 on a 
test basis, with a full commercial roll-out expected by early third-quarter 1998. 

Transponder Agreements 

As of 15 June, 1.998, the ASTRA Satellite System’s total transponder capacity consisted of 120 
transponders co-located at 19.2” East, of which 64 were used for analogue transmission and 56 were used 
for digital transmission. In addition, 18 transponders wcrc available from the Company’s second orbital 
slot at 28.2” East on ASTRA 1D. As of 31 March, 1998, approximately 93 per cent. of the transponder 
capacity of the ASTRA Satellite System at 19.2” East was committed under transponder agreements with 
over 60 customers from various countries, including France, Germany, ‘The Netherlands, Spain rind thc 
United Kingdom. With respect to the orbital position at 28.2” East, 24 out of 28 transponders have all-cady 
been contracted on ASTRA 2A, including to BSkyB (:t4), the BBC ( 2 ) ,  Flextech ( 2 ) ,  Discovery (l), UK’W 
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(1) and Viacorn ( 1 ) .  O n  ASTRA 2L3, 10 transponders in  the Cr-band out of a total of 28 have hccii 
committed to Deutsche Telekoni. Scc -‘The ASTRA Satellite System - Satellites Under Construction”. 

(ienei-all;. the initial term of the Company’s transponder agreements in effect as of 15 June: 1908 is 
approsiniatcly ten ycai-s. SES usually seeks to conirnit as many of a satellite’s transpondcrs as possible prior 
to its launch. 

The initial tcn-year t e r m  of the transpondcr agrcciiicnts in rcspcct uf ASTRA IA  and ASI’KA 1 B 
cxpirc in early 1999 and 2001, respectivcly, and ncgotiations arc U I J ~ C I W I V  to pruvide follow-on capacity on 
ASTRA 1A using the same frequency on the ASTRA Satcllitc System a t  19.2” East. The Cornpanl; expects 
all c~~stoiiici-s on  ASTRA 1A and AS’I’KA 1 E to i-cncw thcii- contriicls prior to their cspiration. 

Commercial and Marketing 

Dui. to  the sti-atcgic importance of the CoInpany’s relationships with its customers, senior rnana_ge- 
rnent of the C h m p a n y  participatc directly in the negotiation o f  11-nnspondci- ;igrcciiicnts with the Corn- 
pariy’s main cuslonici-s and marketing personnel providc owgoing markct support functions. ‘Hie typical 
duration of the Cunipany’s transponder agreements is appi-oximatcly ten years nnd SES’s cornniercial and 
rnarkcting staff maintain regular contact with customers durin9 the cntirc contractual period to cnsurc 
continuing customer satisfaction. 

The Company’s Commercial and Marketing 1)epartment consists of 60 pcoplc based in Betzdorf. with 
affiliate companies in Germany, the IJnitcd Kingdom. Frarice and Spain. The Company also plans to 
establish ii marketing affiliate in Poland. The Commercial and Marketing Uepartriicnt is cngagcd in ii 
continuing sti-atcgy to ensure the smooth tr;insition from analogue to digital LTIH transmission ;ind to 
support the cnicrgcncc of multimedia scrviccs. It is rcsponsihlc for five aspects of the Company’s 
operation: commcrcial rclations; technical ni;ii-kcting scrviccs: market cornrnunicatioris and public I-cla- 
tions; market information: and the rnarketing affiliates, which arc in charge of regional rnarkcting 
activities. 

The Commercial and Marketing Ikpartrnent works in active partnership with broadcasters, service 
providcrs, inanufacturers and retailers to cnsiirc the effective promotion of thc ASTRA brand at the local 
and regional level. ‘This effort has rcccntly included the sponsorship 0 1  cvciits such iis the ’I‘our de Francc 
and participation in industq events, such i is  the Iiitcrnational Fair in Berlin (IFA) i i i id thc Cablc and 
Satellite Fair i n  1.ondon. SES is a founding iiiciiiber of the Digital Video Broadcasting Group. The 
Company hclicvcs that active cooperation with dl industry sectors is essential, especially in connection 
with the introduction o f  uniform reception equipment standards and the promotion of  usor-El-icndly and 
economical reception cquipment. 

Key Ciistomcrs 
~- 1 he Company’s transponder rewnucs h a w  historically l m n ,  and in thc medium term are expected to 

continue lo be, derived primarily f r m i  broadcasting businesses. Domestic, regional and internatinrial 
broadcasters LISC satcllitc transponder capaci ty for (i) television programming distribution. (ii) contrihution 
or “backhaul” operations (the transmission of vidco fccds from one location to another) and (iii) ad hoc or 
“spot” services such :is thc transmission of special events and live n e w  reports 1‘1-mi the scene of an event. 
Thc largcst market for bi-oadcasting services. and the most important segment of ASTRA’s business, is the 
supply of full-time transponder capacity to domestic, regional and international l~madcastcrs that wish to 
transmit television and radio channels to satellite-receiving households (DTH/SMATV) within the ASTRA 
Satcllite System loutpriiits. The Cornpan?; is ii Icading provider of serviccs t o  cablc nctworks. Ne;t-ly all 
cablc networks under the ASTR4 Satellite System footprint receive broadcasting scniccs transmitted by 
the Company. The Company hclicvcs that its estahlishcd ;iudicncc and coniprehensive covcrasc of cable 
networks pi-c-)vidcs ii strong incentive for iicw broadcastel-s t o  contr;ict for transponder capacity on the 
ASTRA Satellite System. 

27 



Thc Company enjoys a large and growing client base which is made up of established customers with 
high market shares in their respective rnarkcts. The following table sets forth certain details relating to 
transponder utilisation by some of the Company’s largest customers: 

Customer 

ARD/ZDF (C’rermany) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

BSkyB (UK) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Canal + (Prance) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
UT- Uf a (Luxcni boui-g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Kirch Ciruppe (Germany) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
PRO Sieben (Germany) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Entcrtainment (Poland) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

BBC (IJK) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Flextech (UK) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Number of Transponders 
Analogue Digital Total --- 

14 3 17 
0 2 2 

19 14 33 
0 23 23 
4 3 7 
6 2 x 
3 1 0 13 
2 1 3 
0 3 3 

Revenues from the Company’s five largest customers for the years endcd 31 December, 1995, 1996 
and 1997 represented approximately 63 per cent., 71 pcr cent. and 74 pcr cent. of total revenues in each 
period. Although the loss of key customers to alternativc satellite operators could have a material adverse 
effect cm the Company’s rcsults of operations, SCS believes such losses would be unlikely. This is due to 
thc unique nature of thc Company’s services (including the co-location, back-up capability and intersatel- 
lite protection scheme of its satellites) and the inconvenience and uncertainty it5 broadcast customers 
would experience moving services from the ASTRA Satellitc System, including repositioning all of their 
DTH/SMATV users’ satcllitc receiver dishes to point to the new orbital slot from which they would be 
hroadcasting. This would make it commercially impracticable for a broadcastcr to switch to another 
operator or lor new hroadca5ters to opt for a competing satellite operator. However, this has not 
prevented certain customers from choosing competing satellite systems. 

Interactivc and Multimedia Services 

?‘he Company believes that Internet growth and increased demand for interactive services will result 
in an expansion of demand for satellite services from one-way broadcasting to two-way asymmetric 
multicasting applications. Markets for asymmetric broadcast and multicast content to the general public 
and to closed-user groups ai-e developing in a variety of areas, including consumer services (on-line 
services, tclc-education and broadcast or multimedia entertainmcnt), personal communications (entertain- 
ment arid home banking), corporate communications and information distribution. 

The hSTIL4 Satellite System began operating in 1489 as a provider of DTH analogue television and 
radio broadcasts. Sincc then, and in furtherance of its strategy of creating a broadband infrastructure for a 
global communications network, thc Company has begun its transition from analogue to digital transmis- 
sion by focusing on the provision ol’ DTH/SMATV digital television/radio broadcast scivices (1 996) and 
DTI I/U‘I‘O PC/TV one-way multicast seivices (1998). In 1999, the Company expects to provide DTH/DTO 
two-way asymmetric broadcast and multicast services, adding Internet Service Providers (ISFs) to its client 
base. ‘The Company will seek to address and service these high-growth markets through its majority owncd 
subsidiary: ESM: which providcs multimedia one-way broadcast and multicast (DTWDTO) services via its 
AS’I’Kh-NET plati‘oi-m, and through the implementation of ARCS, which will allow for two-way asynimct- 
ric, high-speed broadband data collection and delivery via a hub station located in Bctzdorf. 

European Satellilt. Multimedia Services (ESM) 

ESM opcrales ASTRA-NET, a data and multimedia platform using broadband digital satellite 
transmissions. ESM was founded in December 1996 as ii wholly owned subsidiary of European Satellite 
Multimedia. Services Fiiianw S.A. (“ESMF”) [less one qualifying share owned by the Company). ESMF, 
also founded in December 1996, serves as the finance company of ESM, and is owned by the Company (53 
per cent.). The remaining 47 per cent. is owned by Intel Corporation, Deutsche Telekom, Hughes Network 
Systems and lintreprise des Postes & Tilicomrnunications (Luxembourg). ESM began commercial 
operations in Fchruary 1998 with the launch of ASTRA-NET. 
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ASTRA-NET enables service and content providers to transmit data directly to high-end servers and 
PCs in businesses and homcs acruss Western and Central Europe via a convcntional satcllitc dish and a 
plug-in PC card at substantially increased speeds and more cost effectively than standard transmission via 
telephone lines. The use of digital transmission incans that scivicc and content providers ciiii instantly 
deliver to their audiences custom-tailored information in any medium or combination of media, including 
vidco, audio, graphics, text and computer software, in one-to-multiple transmission mode. Examples of 
potcntial ASTRA-NET applications include transmitting presentation videos for display on in-store 
tclcvisions in retail outlets; broadcasting training material to employees’ PCs in the office or the home; 
delivering product and pricing information to sales forces and customers; and downloading computer 
software programs to company-wide networks. In cach c;isc, the infoi-mation transmitted can be vicwcd in 
real time. such as stock prices. or stored in the rcceiving PCs for later retrieval, such as training 
programmes. 

Scrvice and cuntcnt providers that have already chosen ASI’RA-NET for the distribution of their data 
and rriultimedia sewices include: Deuromcdia, a. software and scrvicc provider spccialising in the distribu- 
tion of information to dealer and retail nctworks within thc information tcchnnlogy sector; Satway, :I 

busincss communication and television production company focusing on the distribution of information to 
1-ctail outlets and restaurants; Fainex. a specialised provider of financial data services; Elsacom, a large 
Italian satellite service provider; AxLdia, which focuses on thc distribution of data services for retail 
companies; arid Deutsche Tdekom, Europe’s largest telccommunications company. 

The ASTM Return Channel System (ARCS) 

Following the launch of ASTRA .I 1-1, scheduled in thc fourth quarter of 1998, SES expects to 
commence operation of ARCS, its direct return channel systcm via satcllitc, in the second half of 1999. 
ARCS will scrvc the growing market in Western and Central Europe for two-way asymmetric, high-speed 
broadband collcctjon and dclivcry of multimedia data via a hub situated at the Company’s headquartcrs in 
Betzdort o r  via sccondary huhs located within approximately 400 kilometres of Luxemboul-g. The system is 
designed to mcct the nccds of businesses, the public SCCLOJ and individual coiisunicrs through an open 
technolop platform offering ASTRA Ka-band handwidth on-demand for service and content providers. 
With the introduction of AKCS, the ASTRA Satellite System will bc able to establish three broadband 
communication applications via ASTRA 1 fT and, from the end of 2000, via ASTRA 1K for (i) collectinn of 
data from various sites across Europe into a central hub at Bctzdorf (multipoint-to-point collection), after 
which the data may be uplinked to the ASTRA Satellite System for Ku-band retransmission to other users 
or transmitted to such uscrs via tcrrestrial landlines or other satellite systems, (ii) storage and hosting of 
multimedia data at the Company’s central hub in Betzdorf (value added processing) and (iii) broadcasting 
or multicasting of rnultimedia data via ASTRA Ku-band (point-to-rnultipoint distrihution). In addition, the 
ASTRA Satellite System will be able to offer an end-to-end service providing a combination of thcsc 
applications. AKCS will cxtcnd the scope of the Company’s business from a onc-way satellite delivery 
system (featuring a terrestrial return path if rcquii-cd) to ii two-way sntcllite-based asymmetric comniunica- 
tions system. 

The launch of  ASTKA 1 K, schcdulcd for the end of 2000, will enable SES to extend thc covcragc area 
for satellite-based interactive services to Eastern Europe and the western part of the CIS. ASTRA 1K will 
also provide flcxiblc bandwidth allocation, either concentrating up to half of the entire bandwidth in Ka- 
band i n  one up-link beam or splitting the bandwidth among scvcral 01- all up-link beams. See ‘“l‘he ASTRA 
Satellilc Systcin - Satellites Under Construction - Orbital Slot at 19.2’ East”. 

Competition 

The Company competes with :I number of leading providers of satellite capacity, including publicly 
m d  privately owned intcrnational, regional and domestic satellite companies, as well as companies 
providing competing communications technologies (in particular: digital tcrrcstrial and digital cable service 
providers). Some of these competitors have long-standing customer 1-clationships, substantially larger 
operations and grcater financial resources than those of the Company. Due to the likely privatisation of 
certain ISOs, realignments and competition may incrcasc in the future. ‘l’he Company believes that thc 
technical advantages of its satellite system, its reputation as a i-cliablc operator of satellites and its existing 
custc)nicr rclationships will permit i t  to compete successfully with these organisations, although these 
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satellite opcratoi-s and others nut currently active in Europe may expand operations into the Company’s 
markets. Scc ‘‘Inwstment Considerations - Market Demand and Competition”. 

At present, three principal competing international satcllile systems operate in Europe: Eutelsat, 
Tnlclsat and Panamsat. Eutclsat is active in all European markets, while Tiitelsat historically has been must 
active in the Nordic markct, although i t  also provides feeds for RAT wid Mcdiasct in 1t;ily. Panamsat 
operates satellites orhiting ovci- thc Atlantic and Indian Oceans that also SCIVC Eui-opcan markets. In 
addition, thcrc arc six regional satellite systems operating in Europe: Telenor and Sirius in thc Nordic 
markets; Kopcrnikus in the German speaking markets; Hispasat in Spain; France Tklecom in Fraiice; and 
AMOS in  Central aiid Eastern Europe. Several regional systems have plans to launch satellites with 
hrnacler regional and paii-Eiii-opean fnotprints. Lastly, Tiuksat provides pan-European coverage specifi- 
cally For expatriate Turkish conirniunities. In addition to audiovisual services, all these systems provide 
liusiness aiicl c1;it;i scrvices. 

I n  pro\7iding the infi-astructure for interactive and multimcclia services, thc Conipany faces compcti- 
tion from sevcral curl-cnt arid emerging companies and tcchnologies. In the arcs of ASTIW-NJT’s 
iriultirnedia broadcasting, thcse competitors include HOT (a Hughes Network Systems-Olivetti joint 
vcniurc utilising a non-DVB-compliant platform with thc Lutclsat system), several start-up platforms 
(nsu;illy sqpor ted  by a PC card manufactui-er) and several SES bro;idcast customers (who are generally 
targeting the coiis~inier markct rather than professional seiviccs mal-kcts). I n  the area of ARCS’S return 
chmncl services, cornpctition cc)ni~“s from an emerging clriss of lowcost Ku-band Very Small Aperture 
Terminal (”VSA-I”’) system (which are expected in 1999: and are in general limited to lower data 
Ii-;insmission rates than those possiible with ARCS). conventional VSAT systems (which usually cost scvcral 
times more pcr tcrrninnl than ARCS) and emerging terrestrial technologies. 

Key Slippliers 

The Company has historically procured its satellites from one of f m r  satellitc manufacturers: 1 lughes; 
Adrosp;ilialc; Matrn Marconi Spacc and RCAiGE Astro. Hughes is currently constructing two satellites for 
SES and Adrospatiale and Matra Marconi Space are under contract to construct one satellite each. I n  
additiuii lo these manufacturers, thcrc are a limited numhcr of othci- satellite manufacturers worldwide 
that c m  dcsjgn and construct satcllitcs that meet the technical rind quality specifications of the ASTRA 
Satellite SysLmi. See “lnvestmcnt Considel-ations - Busincss Risks - Dependence on Key Suppliers” ;ind 
“The AS-I’KA Satellite System - Satellites Under Construction”. ‘lhe Company has also contracted with 
J Juglies to supply components with a long-lead timc. allowing for a rapid satcllitc replacement in case of a 
launch failurc. In  general. the average construction period of the four satellites currently under contract is 
28 months. Howcvcr. dclays often occiir at thc manufacturing stagc and can impact the launch date. The 
puymcnt profiles for the pui-chase of satellites vriry significantly depending on  thc supplier and on contract 
ncgot ia t id .  O n  average, 80 pcr ccnt. the Company’s capital expenditures relating to ii iicw satellite are 
incurred during the two years prior t o  launch, with the remaining 20 per cent. incurred in the peal- of 
launch. Ground capital expenditures rclaling to an additional satcllilc are incurred more than 21 year prior 
to thc launch (2.5 per cent.), with the remaining expenditurcs incurl-ed in the 12 months prior to launch (75 
per ccnt.). 

The Company follows ii “dual launch policy” with rcspect to the launch of  its salcllites, as a result of 
which it is undcr contracl with both Ariancspacc and Lockheed!~irunichcv-Energia (“LIE”) for the 
I;tLinch of its ncxt four satellites. ’The contract with Arianespace is for two firm launches and two furthci- 
launch options and the contract with LKE is for  three launches. Thcrc are other satellite launch providers 
worldwide that the Company would consider using. See “lnvestmcnt Considerations - Business Risks - 
Dependeiicc on Key Suppliers” and “‘l’hc ASTRA Satellite System - Satellite Launch Arrangcrnents”. 

Employees 

As of 31 December, 1905, 1996 arid 1997, the Group had 1x1, 210 and 261 full-time employees, 
respectively, and a s  of 31 March, 1998, thc Group had 271 full-tinic employees. ‘llie SES work forcc is 
drawn from 20 different countries, with 94 per cent. of its employees heing European Union nationals and 
28 per cent. being Luxembourg citizcns. As of 31 March: 1998. 61 per cent. of the  Company’s personnel 
mere cmploycd in the ‘l’echnical Department, 16 per ccnt. in Corporate and Finance and 23 per cent. in 
Commercial and Marketing. Thc Company’s employees are stationed at the Bctzdorl headquarters (211), 
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the satellite procurement field offices in El Scgundo, Portsmouth/Stcvcnagc and Toulouse (6), and the 
Company’s marketing subsidiaries in Cki-many, thc IJnitcd Kingdom, Fi-ancc and Spain (29). As of 31 
hlarch, 1998, ESM employed 25 full-time cmployccs. In order for SES to continue to grow in accordance 
with its strategy and to meet futui-c husincss dcvclopment needs, thc Company expects its work force to 
increase to inore than 300 by  2000. Scc “Business - Strategy,". 

The Company’s recruitment strategy placcs cinpliasis on thc hiring of yo~ii ig  graduates with strong 
professional and academic backgrounds. As ii rcsult, the average age of all crnployees is approximately 35 
ycars arid the majority o f  the Company’s cmployccs possess highly spccialiscd skills (with 77 holding a 
mastcr’s dcgrcc (or equivalent) and l h  holding the highest dcgrcc in their ficld (PhD or equivalent)). 

The Company is riot party to m y  collcctivc hargaining agreernent and considers its relations with its 
employees to he good. 

r >  

Properly 

‘I‘he Company’:, pi-incip;il propcrty and headquarters are located in Betzdorr, T.uxcmbourg. ‘Ihc 
Betzdorf headcpartei-s houscs tlic Satellite Control k’acility. which is equipped with comiiiunicatioiis 
harciware for in-orbit hacking. tclcmuty anci uplink facilities as well as -1’VKO (TV Rcccivc Only) 
zcluipmcnt. The sitc is subject to municipal, ciivii-onmcntal and planning regulations. The Company is in 
the pi-occss o f  constructing a ncw office building at its 1icadqu;irtci-s in  Bctzdorf to house the ASI’KA 
Business Centre, which will bc used for commercial. marketing, biisincss dcvclopment and administrative 
functions. The Business Centre is scheduled to hi: coniplctcd by the first half of 2000 a t  an approximate 
cost of LUF 1.250 million. I n  addition, the Company recently leased property south of the city of 
1.uxcnibourg for tlie construction o f  ii back-up satellite control facility. See “~l’he ASTRA Satellite System 
- The ASTRA Master Control Facility”. 

l’he Company maintains 21 marketing office in I h i c o .  Gcrmiiny, Spain :ind thc United Kingdom. The 
monthly lease payments on all of the Cornpany’s lcascd properties is ;ipproximatcly LUF 1.2 million. 

Legal and Regolatory Proceedings 

Whitehead Litigation 

Thc Company is or has been a party io three lawsuits. one i n  the Lnitcd States and two in 
I ,usciiibourg, brought hy Mr. Clay Whitchcad. All of thcsc lawsuits irelatc tu ;in agreement dated 2.7 
Septumbcr. 1985 hetween the Company and Whiteheacl and ccrtaiii othci- pal-tics, under which Founder 
Sharcs i n  the Company were issued to Whitchcad subject to cci-lain conditions. The Founder Shares and 
rights thcrcundcr are discussed undci- ”Dividends and Dividend Policy - Ibundcr  Sharcs”. Payments to 
Whitehead under the Founder Sharcs liavc bccn withheld by the CoInpany since thc 1992 financial year on 
the ground that Whitchcad hreached a non-competition clause contained in the agrcemcnt. 

I n  April 1904, Whitchead sought rccovcry of dividend payments for the 1992 financial gcar in an 
urgency pi-occcding in the District Court of I .uxcmbourg. The matter was ~-ulcd not suitable for urgency 
proceedings by thc District Court, and the I uxoiiibourg Court of Appeal affirmed in July 1995. 

In April 1997, Whitehead filed suit in the US. District Court for thc Eastern Ilistrict of Virginia 
against tlie Company, Board mcmber Ms. Candace Johnson and the Governnient. ‘The suit alleged fire 
claims for relief relating in vai?;ing ways to the agrccmcnt bctwccn Whitchcad and the C:onipany. Onc 
counl. alleged that SES had breached the agrcemcni by  withholding dividend paymcnts o n  the Founder 
Shai-cs; ;I second alleged that the Government and SES liad expropriated the Founder Shal-cs; it thii-d 
alleged that the Govcrnment, SES and Johnson had converted the Founder Shnrcs (and conspircd t o  that 
cnd); a fourth allcgcd that the Government. SFS and Johnson hac1 defamed Whitehead’s business 
reputation and iritei-lei-cd with his business prospects (and conspired to that end); a n d  ;I fifth alleSed that 
the Government and Johnson interfered with IVhitchcad’s contract with SES (and cc-mspircd to that end). 
Tllc complaint sought compensatory darnages totalling U.S.$200 million as thc alleged value of the 
Founder Sharcs, :IS wcll as statutoF and punitivc damages in an amount of thrcc t o  five times Whitchcad’s 
actual damages. On 5 Dcccrnher, 1997. thc IJ,S. District Court entercd ii fin;il orcicr of dismissal i n  favour 
o1 all three defendants C)II .jurisdictional grouiids. Whitehead has filed an appeal, and :I dccision is expected 
in  the second half of 1908. 
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In addition, Whitchcad served a writ on the Company in 1-uxembourg on 31 March, 1998 seeking 
outstanding dividend payments rclating to the Founder Shares for the financial years 1992 to 1995 
(approxirnatcly IJ!F 357 million) plus intercst and damagcs (LUF 15 million), reserving his rights to 
dividenii paymcnis relating to 1996 and subscqucnt fin;incial years, rights which he claims will continuc 
until 201)8, and sccking an order prohibiting cancellation or alteration of the Founder Shares. No date has 
lxcn sct IO adjudicate the matter in I..uxcmhourg. 

Thc C;ompany believes that it has acted appropriately and will dcfcnd itsell vigorously against the 
claims. Howcvci-, there can he no i i~~urancc  that thc jurisdictional appeal in thc Urlitcd Stiitcs will not be 
deterniincd in kivour of Whitehead or that his claim will not prevail in the court that ultimately dccidcs the 
case on the merits. If Whitchead's c la im ultimately arc successful, the Conpnq :  could be subject to 
significant financial liability. See "Investment Considerations - Biisincss Risks - Kisks Relating to  Legal 
cind Kegulatory Procccdings". 

'lirr Disputes 

Thc Company has initiated ii lawsuit against the German tax authoritics arising out of its belief that 
certain payments made to SES by its Gcrman customers frnm 1991 to 1994 were not suhject TO a 5 per 
cent. withholding tax. Although the Company prcvailed in the lawsuit, thc Gcrman Lax authorities have 
appealed thc judgment. The Company has made a provision for LIJF 492 million, the amount of the 
potential liakility, but it cxpccts to be successful on appcal and to release the provision. The Company is 
involved in ii similar dispute in Spain. At ycar cnd 1997, the Company had made a pravision for LUF 76 
million. 'The Company expects to be successful in thc rcsolution of thesc disputes. 

Dispute Relating to Orbital Slots 

Thc I.*r>mpsny's orbital slot at 28.2" East may be affccted by a claim brought by France on behalf of 
Eutclsat to use the srinic frcquencies at the neighbouring orbit31 slot at 29" East. Any sntcllite Eutelsat 
might cipc~ate from an ad,iaccnt orbital slot using thr: sarnc band of freqrmicics used by the Company 
would interfere with thc trsnsmissions made by tlic Company's satellites at 28.2" East and, conversely, the 
Company's usc: of such frequencies at 28.2* East would interfcrc with transmissions from any satellites 
Eutelsat might operate at 29" East. 

In 1989. France filcd with the ITU to  establish the Europesat satellite nciwork at 29" East. Pursuant to 
the ITU's rulcs: France tiad to enter the Europesat network into use hy 23 May, 1997 13r its frequency 
allocation would cspii-e and Luxcmbourg's filing, dated 23 Dcccmber, 1994, to establish ASTRA at 28.2" 
East would form the Ixtsis for the ITU's frcqucncy coordination proccss. In June 1996, the Company 
announcctf its intention to bring into use the 28.2" East orbital position. In Dcccmber tY96, Eutelsat testcd 
its Hutbird 2 satellite at 29" East bcfore moving the satellite to its final position a t  13" East. By doing so, 
Eutclsat claimed that it had brought the Europesirt nctwork into use. 

At thc November 1997 WRC mccling, a decision was takcn to include the Eurupcsst nctwork in the 
internationel frcqucncy plan for broadcasting satellite serviccs, subject to clarification BS to whether the 
nctwork had heen "brought into use" prior to thc expiry date of 13 May, 1997. Luxembourg lodged a 
rescnlation to the inclusion of the Europesat nctwork in the frequency plan, arguing that the satcllitc 
system had not, in fact, heen lmught into use prior to the cxpiry date. The basis of the dispute is whether 
the tcsting of  a satellite at an  orhital slot for a short pcriod constitutus "bringing the satellite into usc prior 
to thc cxpii-y date" for purposcs o f  the 1 ~ l U  frequcncy coordination prucuss. 

Upon application by Luxembourg, the ITU is investigating France's claim to use 29" East. Francc 
supplied the ITU with documeiitatioii supporting Eutelsat's position. and a mccting of  (he Board of the 
ITU to considcr thc  dispute is schcduled to take place during ilie first week of July 1998. At that meeting, 
the Borird of 11ic ITU could ciccidc in favour of Luxcmbourg, in which c ~ s c  tlic Company would he entitled 
to operate its satcllitcs from 28.2" East without harmful intcrfcrence from Eutclsat 81 29' East. However, it 
is possible that thc Board of the ITU could refer the disputc back to the partics for further discussion or 
could decidc in l'avour of Francc. In the event of a decision in favour of France, it is likely that Luxcmbourg 
wcwld appeal such dccisicsn. Nnnetheless, thcre can be no assurance that a satisfactory accommodation 
with France would bc achieved. The ITU Board has no binding dispute rcsolution mechanism, and if 
Frratcc arid Luxembourg wcre unable to agrcc to a resolution, neither side would bc entitled to invoke the 
protccticrns of international law against intcrfcrence. Accordingly, the impact of an unfavourahle decision, 
and in  particular thc impact of harmful interference to thc Company's transmissions from 28.2" East 
caused hy any scivicc introduced by Eutelsat from 29" East, would be significant. However, thc Company 
intends to continue the transmission of digital TV scrvices from 28.2" East. 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION 

The selected financial and othcr data for the years ended and as of 31 Dcccmbcr, 1995, 1996 and 1997 
set forth below havc bccn dcrived from, and should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified in their 
cntircty by rcfcrcncc to. the audited consolidated financial statements of thc Company, included elsewhere 
in this Offering Circular. See “lndex to Financial Statements”. The auditcd financial statements of the 
Company have been audited by Ernst & Young Sociitd Anonyme. See “Auditors”. 

Selected Profit and Loss Account Data: 
Total revenued2) . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ilcprcciation and aniortisation . . . . . .  
Personnel costs . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Oihcr opcrating cxpcnscs‘j) . . . . . . . .  

Operating profit . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Franchise fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Taxat ion . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . .  

hct  income . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . . . .  

. . . .  . .  

Selected Balance Sheet nata: 
Fixed assets in use. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Fixed assets under construclion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ibtal f i xed  assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current issets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tola1 assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Bank loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Shareholder loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
0 t hc r I iabi l i  tics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sharcholders’ lunds (including minorily interest) . . . . . . . . . .  

Other nata: 
EUI’IDA margin (%)”’ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Nct income margin (%)!’I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lieturn on average equity (f%)‘6) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
EUI-I-DA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Operating cash flow‘:’ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capital expcnditurcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earnings per A Share (Llk)“) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Number of satellites at ycar end(”). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Weighred average number of transponders available("' 
Weighted average number of transponders in commercial use“‘) 

. . . . . . . .  
. . . .  

Year Ended 31 December, 
1YY5 1996 1997 1997“’ - - -  ~ 

(In LUP millions) (In ECU millions) 

10,330 14,l(i0 18,074 443 
(3,090) (4.287 (4,629 (1 13) 

(1,976) (1.XlL)) (2,826) (69) 
1,755 7,462 9.85!) 242 

( 5 1 )  (5921 (7601 (19) 
-~~ ~ 

(850) [ziy] ( I$::] ( 1,867) 
(499) (684) (829) (20) 

93 2 
7.878 4,796 6,406 157 

- -~~ ~ 

~~~ 
~~~ 

- 
~ 

As of 31 Decemher. 
1YY5 19Y6 1997 1997“’ - - -  - 

(In LUP millions) (In ECU millions) 

20.soo 30.x90 33.748 828 --,- - - 
.17,1.43 is:ic;c; 19:300 473 
37,643 46,665 53.048 1,301 

1.843 3.180 5.5Y5 137 
3,530 3,843 5,266 120 

43,016 53,688 03.909 1,507 
(14,715) (20,064) (21,076 (517) 

(X,409) (9,3Y8) (12,12Y) 
- (1,500) (3,7501 (‘W 

10.802 22.726 26,Y.i4 

Year Ended 31 December, 
1YY5 IY96 1997 1997“’ 

(!n LUP millions except 
ratios, per A Share’data and 

satellite datal 

- - -  - 
(In ECU millions) 

75.9 83.0 80.2 
27.8 33.9 35.4 
14.9 22.6 25.8 

80.2 
35.4 
25.8 

7.s3.i 11,749 14,4HX 3.55 
h.998 11.81 1 15.372 377 
0.501 13,297 1 1.01 3 270 

77.3 128.8 172.0 4.2 
5 h 7 

(1 4 95 104 - 
55 78 101 

- 
- 

( I )  Luxembourg franc amounts are translated, solely for thc convcnicncc of thc reader, into ECU at the exchange irate on R I  
Dcccmbcr, l!W7 ol LUF 40.78 = ECU 1.00, 

(2) Transponder revenucs plus othcr operating incomc. 
(3) Exlernal charges, other operating charges and results of associatcd cornpanics. 
(4) Earning< belore interest. !axes, franchise fee and depreciation and amortisation divided by total revenues. 
(5) Net income dividcd by total rcvcnucs. 
( 6 )  Net  income di\,ided by average of opening and closing shareholders’ funds. 
(7) Cash generated from operations aftcr working capital movements. 
(8) Earnings per A Share ;ire restated to account for thc ncw capital structure following the Extraordinai-y Cicncrnl Mccting on 

20 May, 1998. See “Dcscription of Sharc Capital - General”. 
(9) See “The ASTRA Satellite System’‘ for a description of the ASTKA Satcllitc Systcm. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONnTTTON AND RESULTS OF OPERA’I’ION S 

‘I’he following discussion aiid analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited 
cc:)nsolidated financial statements :is of and for the ycars cndcd 31 December: 1995, 1996 and 1.907, 
including the notes thereto, which appear elsewhere in this Offering Circular. Tlic consolidated financial 
statements have bccn prcparcd in accordance with accounting principles that conform in all material 
respects with IASC rcconiniendations. 

General 

Revenues 

Substantially all of the Company’s rcvcnucs arc gcncrated hy providing transponder capacity on thc 
ASTRA Satellite System. For the thrcc ycars ended 3 1 December. 1997, trrinspondcr rcvcnucs accounted 
for 9‘3.4 pci- cent., 99.3 per. cent. and 08.9 per ccnt. of total revenues, respectively. Virtually all transponder 
revenues have resulted from the transmission of v i d c ~  and supporting audio channels; transponder 
rcvcnucs from the transrnissioii of radio channels have not been significant. 

The C‘cmipiuiy seeks to contract the transponder capacity available on ;I satellite prior to its launch. 
Actual 1-cvcnuc generation begins on the custoinci- service date, which is typically three to six months 
fc~llO\ViTlg a satellite’s operational service date. The majority of the Company’s transponder agreements 
require payment in adwincc~ although the precise schedule of payments varies by contract. In any case, 
I-cvciiue for transponder utilisation is 1-ecognised on a straight line basis over the period of the relevant 
agreement once the satellite to which such contract relates has bccn brought into operation. Generally, the 
initial term of the Company’s transponder agreements is approximately ten years. 

’The Company’s revenues in a given period arc depcndcnt on  the number of transponders in opcration 
and the period over which they are available, as well as the contracted revenue received in respect of cach 
transponder in operation. Because growth in the number of available transponders is largely dcpcndcnt on  
the Company’s launch ol  new satellites, revenuc growth gcnerally occurs unevcnly. Revenue growth is 
generally rapid wlicn satellites are brought into operation, and. if satellite launches arc dclaycd or are 
Iinsucccssful, I-cvcnue growth may slow due to the lack of additional transponder capacity. 

l’lie Company’s top five customers represciitcd approximately 73 per ccnt. of total rcvcnuc in 1997, 
with no one customcr rcprcsenting more than 20 per cent. SES’s largest custonicrs use a larger number of 
mansponders and typically pay lower per transponder rates than other customers. Average I-cvenue per 
transponder has fallcn rcccntly following the launch of digital bouquets and the Company’s introduction of 
capacity and scrviccs into new markets. 

Operating Costs 

Thc key di-iver hehind changes in opci-ating costs is the launch of new satellites, which directly affects 
thc two largest components of opcrating costs: depreciation and insurance. Depreciation is the Company’s 
pi-incipal expense, representing 55 per cent., 64 per cent. and 56 per cent. of its operating cxpcnses for the 
ycai-s ended 3 1 December, 1995, 1996 and 1997, respectively. As with the devclopnicnt of thc Company’s 
rc\’cn~ics. the Companys depreciation charge is characteriscd by uneven increases based on the introduc- 
tion into service of new satcllitos and their related capital cost. Historically, approximately 85 per cent. of 
the Company’s dcpreciation chrirgcs have been in respect of the space segment, with the rcmainder 
relating to the ground segment (including earth station communications and control equipment), certain 
initial operating expenses, land and buildings, fixtures and fittings and SES’s formation cxpcnscs. Space 
segment costs that are dcprcciated over 10 years, the minimum design life of the satellites to which they 
rclalc, include thc procurement cost of the satellite, launch costs, premiums relating to launch insurancc 
and the first-year premiums paid in respect of in-orbit insurance. Insurancc costs retlect the premiums paid 
i n  respect of in-orbit and third-party insurance. See “The ASTRA Satellite System - Insurancc”. 

Frunchbe Fee and Taxes 

SES pays 21 yearly r1-anchise fee to use the orbital positions and the related frequency bandwidths 
wliicli have heen granted by tlic Cjovernrnent pursuant to the terms of an  agreement hetween the Company 
and the Ciovernmcnt which runs until 2015. Scc “Regulation - The Company’s Contrat de Concession”. 
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The fee is payablc quarterly in arrears and is  based upon SES‘s taxablc income. It is calculated in 
accordance with the following formula: 

Z ~ ~ h l e  Income 
(LUF) Pcrccntage 

0 - 1.3 hillinn 0% 
1.3 - 2.6 billion 20% 

> 2.6 billion 25% 

Pursuant to thc tcrnis of the franchise ngrcciiieiit with the Government (adapted on 12 March, lU!lS>, 
the total chargc in any one year for the Luxembourg taxes dcscribcd below and the franchisc fee will not 
excccd 44 per cent. 0 1  taxable income for the years 19118 through 2000. Pursuant to  the franchise 
agreemcnt. any  increase in Luxembourg taxes after th r  year 20110 cannot result in total I uxcmbourg taxes 
and franchise fces in excess of 46 pcr ccnt of the Company’s taxablc income. 

’Ihe Company is sub-ject to three scparatc Luxembourg taxes. corporate income tax (‘TIT”), munici- 
pal business tax (“MBT’’) and a net worth tax (‘*NWT’*). I n  the last lhrcc ycnrs, the Company’s tax cxpcnsc 
has principally consisted of MRT and N W r  chargcs bccouse investment tax credits wcre available to offsct 
C1-K Both the CTl. and thc MRT arc based on profits for the year, although in calculating CIT taxablc 
profits arc reduced by M R T  already paid. ‘l’hc NWT. which amounts to 0.5 pcl- cciit. of the Company’s nct 
assets after certain adjustments, map as from I January, I998 be credited against CI1’ under certain 
conditiotis. For tax ycars prior to 1997, the Company was also suhjcct to  ii MBT on capiial which was 
ccjmputed in the samc manncr as the NWT. 

Historically, thc Conipanp has had a low cffcctive tax chargo hccnusc of thc availability of iiivestnient 
lax crcdits for expenditures on certain asscts (including satcllitcs). Thc Company is currcntly seelung 
clarification from the Luxembourg tax administration CIS to the appropriatc method to calculatc thcse 
credits. For thc ycars clided 31 Dcccmbcr, 1995, I996 and 1997. the Company was subjcct to a cambincd 
CITiMBT rate of 40.29 per cent.. 40.29 pcr cent. and 39.3.5 pcr ccnt., re,spectively. I lowcver, because nf the 
availiibility of invesinient tax credits, the tax charge represcntcd 15 pcr cent., 13 per ccnt. and 12 per cent. 
csl‘ profits before tax but after the franchise fee, respcclively. For the year ending 31 December, 1998, thc 
combined CITIMBT rate will hc 37.35 per cent. without regard to any available tax credits. 

Recent Developments 

’l’he Company’s total rcvcnucs for the three months elided 3 I March, 1998 increased l y  approximately 
14 pcx cent., coniparcd to the samc pcriod in the prcvious year, from LUF 4,301 inillion to I.UF 5.006 
rnillictn, principally due to the bringing into service of ASTRA 1G with effect 11-om 1 January, 19%. Thc 
bringing into service of ASTRA 1G also rcsultcd in a suhstantial iiicrcase in depreciation charges and an 
increase in other operating expenses. ESM commenced operations during thc first quarter o f  1908, 
resulting in an incrcasc in other operating expenses without an offsetting inci-casc in revenue during thc 
pcriod. Higher hii1Ik borrowings duriiie the first quarter of 1998 to financc the construction of four 
additional satellites rcsulted in an  incrcase in net intcrcst expense comparcd to the same pcriod in the 
pr~wious year. I n  addition, the (:oRlpany”S franctiisc fee and taxes incrcascd due t o  increased operating 
profits. Net income after taxes for the three mtnlhs ciided 31 March, 1998 increased approximately 7 per 
cent. compared to thc siirnc period of the previous y~; i r :  from LUF 1.763 million to LUF 1.894 million. 

13asc.d on current opcraling results and on the assumption that AS’I’KA 2A and AS’TRA 1 I T  arc 
launched successfully during 1 9’38. the Con>pany expects rcsulls o f  operations for thc year ending 3 1 
Dcccmbcrt 19YX 10 bc consistent with the results lor the first quartcr o F  lf198, even though the Company 
expects to record an cxccptional chargc of LUF 2X)  million, net of taxcs, in respect of employce benefits 
and costs incurred in rclation to the Combined Offcring. In addition, Lo the cxtent that thc launch of 
AS-I‘M 2A and,’or ASTRA 1H arc dclayed unt i l  1999, the Company m a y  incur an additional tax liability in 
1998 t u  the extent that investnicnt tax credits in respect of such satcllitcs are not available until futurc 
periods . 



l iesults of Operations 

Gars ended 31 Decembet, 1995, 1996 and 1997 

Ibr  use in the discussions below, the following table sets out certain items and their respective 
percentage of rcvcnucs for each of the past three fiscal years: 

Year ended 31 December, 

(In LUP millions, except percentages) 
1995 per cent. 1996 per cent. 1997 per cent. - - - ~ ~ -  

Protit and Loss Account Data: 
‘lhtal revenues‘‘) . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Person ne I costs . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other operating expenses‘?) . . . . . . . .  

Operating pro fit . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net interest expense . . . . . . . . . .  
Franchise fcc . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
T1xes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. 10,336 

. (3,090) 

. (515) 

. (1,976) 

. 4,755 

. (777) 

. (601) 

. (499) 
- 

. 2,878 

100.0sc 
(29.9) 

(19.1) 
46.0 

(5.0) 
- 

(7.5) 
(5.8) 
(4.8) 
- - 
27.9%, - - 

13,160 
(4,287) 

(592) 
(1,819) 
7,462 
(606) 

(1,376) 
(684) 
- 

4,796 

100.0% 18,074 
(30.3) (4,629) 

(4.2) (760) 
(12.8) (2,826) 
52.7 9,859 

(9.7) (1,867) 

-~ 

(4.3) (850) 

(4.8) (829) 
93 

33.9% 6,406 

- - -  
-~ -~ 

100.00% 
(25.6) 
(4.2) 

(15.6) 

(4.7) 
(1 0.3) 

(4.6) 

54.6 

0.5 
35.5% 

I- 

( t )  Transpondcr teveiiiies plus othcr  operating income. 
(2) Fitcrnal charges and orhcr opcmting charges. 

Totd wvt.nues 

The Cornpany’s total revenues for the ycar cndcd 31 December, 1997 were LUF 15,074 million, 
comparcd to I.UI-’ 14.160 million for 1996 and LUF 10,336 million for 1995. The increase of LUF 3,914 
million, or 27.6 per cent., in total I-cvcnues in 1997 compared to 1996 was due almost entirely to 
transponder I-cvcnws generated by ASTRR 1E and ASTRA 1 F in connection with thc introduction of 
digital sciviccs in France and Spain. Neither satellite was fully subscribed until 1997. See “The ASTRA 
Satellite System - The Existing Satellites - Orbital Slot at 19.2” East - ASTRA 1 E and 1 F”. Analogue 
transponder rewnues generated by A S T M  lA, ASTRA I B and ASTRA 1 C remained stable over thc 
pcriod. The increase of LUT: 3,824 million, or 37.0 per cent., in rcvcnues in 1996 compared to 1.995 
rcflcctcd the introduction of digital services via ASTRA 1E and ASTRA 1F and a significant incrcase in 
aiialogue transponder revenues attributablc to ASTKA 1D. Although ASTRA 1D was operational as of 
January 1995, it did not gciicrate significant revcnuc until 1996 when full utilisation of its transponders was 
achicvcd. See ‘The  ASTRA Satellite System - The Existing Satellites - Orbital Slot at 19.2” East - 
ASTRA 1A - I IS’. 

Other revenues, which wcrc not material over thc period, are comprised of income generated from 
the provision of speciality services, including uplink sei-viccs by SES to customcrs who do not own thcir 
o ~ n  uplink stations. 

Lkpr-eciatiorz 

Depreciation chargcs incrzascd tu J,UF 4,629 million, or by 8.0 per ccnt., for the year ended 31 
December, 1997, fruin I.UF 4:287 million in 1996, which in turn representcd i:i 38.7 per cent. increase over 
depreciation charges of LUF 3:091) million in 1995. The increases in both periods were almost entircly due 
to thc introduction into service of new satellites, specifically ASI’RA 1E and ASTKA I F  in 1996 and 
ASTRA 1C; in 1997. Dcprcciation charges rcpresented 29.9 per cent., 30.3 per ccnt. and 25.6 per cent. of 
total revenues in .1995. I996 and 1997, I-cspectively. 

P m o n  ad cosl.5 

Personnel costs for the year ended 31 December, 1997 totalled LUF 760 million, cornpared to 
T.UF 592 million f u r  the same period i n  1996. The increase of LUF 168 millioil was primarily due to a 21 
1x1-  cent. increasc in staff. The incrcasc of LLJF 77 million in 1996 over salaries of LUF 515 million in 1995 
was principally due to a 14 per ccnt. increase in staff over the period. 
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O t l w  operulittg iqwriscs 

Other operating expenses arc primarily composed of in-orbit insurance premiums. marketing and 
promotional expenses. and include consultants l’ccs, travel expenses. and niaintcnancc and repair expenses. 
Marketing costs, which have historically becn the largest component of the Company’s operating expenses 
after depreciation and third-party insurance prcmiums, arc primarily driven by thc introduction of new 
tcchnological developments in the markets in which the Cmipany operates. In 1995, othcr operating 
expenses included a L E F  700 million exceptional charge taken hy SES in 1945 in respect o f  its suhsidisa- 
tion of the manufacture of Universal I.ow Noise Block (“ULNB”) converters used to rcccivc transmissions 
from ASTRA IT1 thi-ouph ASTRA IC;. See “The ASTKA Satellitc Systcm - The Existing Satellites - 
Orbital Slot at 19.2” East - ASI’KA IR - 1D”. 

Other operating cxpenses for the year ended 31 December, 1997 wcre LUE‘ 2,826 million, compared 
to othcr opcrating cxpcnscs 0 1  LUI: 1.819 million in I996 and LUF 1+976 million in 1995. The increase in 
othcr. operating cxpcnscs of T.UF 1,()[)7 niillion, or 55.4 per cent., in  1097 was due primarily to an increase 
in niarkctiny and promotional expenses, particularly in respect of the branding campaign for the launch of 
digital scrviccs in 1997. additional in-orhit insurance premiums paid in respect of ASTRA 1E and ASTRA 
1F and fccs incurrcd in conncction with the Whitehead litigation: the development of ARCS and an 
accrual cst;ihlishcd to address Year 2000 compliance. Excluding the cxccptional charge noted above, other 
operating expenses increased by 42.0 per cent. from LUF 1,276 niillion in 1995 to LUF 1,819 million in 
1996. ‘l’he increase resulted from additional in-orbit insurancc premiums paid in respect of ASTRA 1D 
and AS-I’KA 1 E, an increase in marketing and promotional expenses and increased consultants’ fccs 
I-elating to sti-atcgic and technical consultancy and assessment of political risks associated with Russian 
hunchcs. 

Ne1 interest 

Set out below is a breakdown of the components of net intcrcst lor the three-year period ended 31 
December. 1997: 

Year ended 31 December, 
IY95 I996 1997 

(In LLY millions) 
- - ~  

1 n t e res t i ncmie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  172 1.42 229 

Loan fee (67) (100) (35) 
Furcign cschange gains/(losscs) 
Kct intcrcst cxpcnsc 

Interest cxperisc on loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (803) (907) (1,137) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (79) 259 93 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (777) (606) (850) 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- - -  
~~- ~~- 

For the year ended 31 Decemher. 1997, the Company had net interest cxpcnsc of LUF 850 million, 
compared to LUF 606 million in 1996 arid LUF 777 million in 1995. The LUF 244 million, or 30.3 per 
cent., increase in net interest expense in 1997 was due largely to a LUF 230 million increase in intcrcst 
expense on outstanding loans used to finance continued investment in satellites m d  lower foreign 
exchange gains. The increase mas offset in part by a decrease in loan fees payable by SES and an increase 
in interest inconic o n  short-tcrm cash deposits and forcign exchange gains resulting from fluctuations 
between the Luxcnihourg fi-anc and both the Pound Sterling and the ECU. ‘l’he LUF 171 Inillion, or 22.0 
per cent. decrease. in net interest expense for the ycai- cndcd 31 December, 1996 compared to 1995 was 
due largely to foreign cxchange gains rcsulting from fluctuations bctwccn the Luxembourg franc and both 
thc Pound Sterling and the ECU. lliese were partially offset by a LUF 104 inillion increase in intcrcst 
cxpcnsc on luuns used to financc satcllite development: increased loan fees and clccrcascd intcrcst income 
on short-tcnn cash deposits. Scc .‘- Liquidity m d  Capital Resources - Indebtedness of the Company” 
and “- Curi-cncy Fluctuatioiis” and “Selling Shareholders - Certain Relationships and Related Party 
Transactions”. As a pcrccntagc o f  total rcvcnues, net interest cxpcnsc was 7.5 per cent. i n  199.5, 4.3 per 
cent. in 1996 and 3.7 pel- cent. in 1997. 

Fruncliise f e t  

For the year ended 31 December, 1997. thc franchise fcc was 1,UF 1,867 million. compared to LUF 
lJ76 niillion in 1996 and LUF 601 million in 199s. Thc increase in hanchise fee payable over the three- 

p i -  pcriud W;IS due to the higher profits before tax earned by the Company over the period. As ii 
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pcrocntage of taxable inconic before the franchise fec, the franchise fee increased from 15.1 per cent. i n  
1905 to 20.0 per cent. in 1996 and 20.7 per cent. in 1997, rcflccling the higher proportion of incomc subject 
to the fl-;inchise fee at the 25 per- ccnt. rate. See ”- General - Franchise Fee and Tkixes”. 

liivw.s 

For the year cnticd 31 December, 1997, taxes payable were LUE 829 million compiircd to LIJF 684 
million in 1996 m d  J.UF 499 million in 1995. Thc 1,UF 145 million increase i n  taxes in 1997 compared to 
1996 reflectcd an increase in MBT payable and a provision for ClT offset in part by a decrease in NWT 
payahle. ‘The LUF 1x5 million increase in taxes payable in 1996 comparcci I O  IYYS was almost entirely due 
to a LUF 164 million increase in MBT payable. 

Nei incnrrre 

Thc result of the itcms dcscribed above was :I 33.6 per cent. increase in net income Trom LUF 3,796 
1TlilliOTl in 1996 to LUF 6,406 million for the ycai- ended 31 December, 1997. ‘I’he 1996 figure w a s  LUF 
1.915’ million, or 66.7 pcr ccnt., higher than net income for the year cndcd 31 Decemhel-, 1995 of LUF 
2,878 million. 

Liquidity and Capital IZcsuurces 

SES has gcncl-ally financed its short-term working capilal requirements from cash provided by 
operations and mcdium-term borrowings. The Company had cash at banks and on dcposit of LUF 1,843 
million, i,UF 3,180 inillion nnd LUF 5,595 million as of 31 December, 1995, 1996 and 1997, respcctivcly. 
Cash generated from operating activitics wiis I..LTF 6,998 million, 1,UF 1 1,811 million rind LUF 15,372 
million in 1995, 1096 arid 1997, respectively. Operating cash flows have grown iis rcvcnucs havr: increased 
I)ecause thc Company does not I i i i ~ c  a significant working capital funding rcquircment. 

Cash outllovi relating to investing activities was T..UT: 9,502 million, T,UF 13,339 million and LUF 
11:020 million as of 31. December, 1995, 1996 and 1997, respcctivcly. This primarily reflcctcci the 
Conipaiip‘s capital cx~xnditure in additional satellites, which totalled LUF 8?476 million, LUF 12.727 
l T l i ~ l i ~ 1 1  and LUF 111,193 million in 1995, 1996 and 1997, respcctivcly. As a general niattcr m d  assurning n o  
construction delay, cash outflows in respect of satcllites tend to bc relatively predictable, as contractual 
payrneiits arc made pursuant to construction niilestoncs which are sprcad ovcr the two to thrce ~ I J  
construction period. 1 lowever: launch insurance paymcnts iirc typically made in two instalments, 5 pci- 
cent. at signing and 95 per cent. 30 days prior to launch. Accordingly, cash outflows in respect of satellites 
tend to increase significantly onc month beforc launch. 

Cash inflow fmrn financing activities was LUF 4,013 million, LUF 4,978 rnillinn and LUF I, 177 
million in 1995, 1990 and 1997, respectively. In 1095, cash inflows rcsdted primarily frorn LUF 7,048 
inillion i n  new borrowings under two syndicated bank facilities: offset in part by :I LUF 837 million 
repaymcnt (-11 outstanding loms arid a LUF 2,207 million dividcnd payment. In 1996, cash info~vs resulted 
primarily from L.UF 10,077 million in additional borrowings under thc existing syndicated loans plus a new 
syidicatcd bank facility and a subordinated loan facility which the Company arranged in July 1996, partly 
olfset by ;I LUF 3,228 million repayment of outstanding loans and 21 LUF 1,896 million dividend payment. 
I n  1 997, cash inflow resulted from LUI’ 7.755 million in additional drawc-towns on the Company’s cxisting 
syndicated loan fxililics and a final drawdown on the CCHIipaTly’S subordinated loan facility, offset in part 
by a L U F  4,393 million repaymcnt on loans outstaliding m d  a LUF 2.275‘ million dividend payicnt with 
respect to thc fiscal year cndcd 31 December, 1906. 

The mansgement of thc Company bclicvcs that cash from opei-ating activjtjcs and ILiiids availablc 
from other sourccs arc adequate to fund its working capital arid the capital cxpcnditure requircmcnts 
ncccssa~-y to complete the ASTRA Satellite System and to mairitairi the Chipany’s preseiit lcvcl of 
(qxrations. 

Iitdebtedness of the Company 

SES currcn tly has three bank loans outstanding with syndicates of I,u?tembourg and forcign 1)anks and 
onc subordinated Ionn facility from certain of the Company’s shareholders. ‘I’he ternis of each loan provide 
a set facility against which sums may be drawn dui-ing scheduled dl-iIW down periods. Di-awclown periods 
under the loans reflect anticipated capital expenditure schedules under thc Company’s satellite construc- 
tion cc:)ntracts. Accordingly, constructic:)n delays can result in excess cash balances which the Company then 



dcposiits on ;I short-term hasis in interest-hcaring hank accounts. Oncc the drawdown period expires, no 
additional sums may be advanced under thc loans. The drawdown periods under all of thc Company’s 
loans had expired as of 31 March, 1998. On such date, the following loans remained outstanding: (i) two 
syndic;rtcd loans with Dcutschc Rank Luxembourg, ;IS agent, in the amounts of LUF 5,257 million (duc 
2000) and LUI-’ 11.750 million (due 2001), (ii) a syndicated loan with Dresdner Hank J.,uxcmbourg, as 
agent, i n  the amount of LUF 6.764 rnillion (due 2000) and (iii) a subordinated loan made by certain of the 
Company’s shareholders i n  tlie amount of 12LF 3,750 million (due 1999). As of 31 March, 19%, thc 
avcrage interest rate on the loans ranged between 4.75 per ccnt. arid 5.56 per cent. on  thc bank loans and 
6.84 pel- cent. on thc subordinated lom. All of tlic loans except tlic suhordinatcd loan are secured l y  
insurance policies covering certain of SES’s satcllitcs and the LUF 5,257 million ;ind the LUF 6.704 million 
loans described abovc arc sccurcd by the assignment o f  specific customer contracts. 

The Company has established a revolving facility in the amount o f  LUF 2 billion with BCEE, 011 

behalf of a syndicatc of Iuxcmbourg sharclioldcr hanks. In addition. SES has arranged a LUF 11,500 
million syndicated loan facility with Drcsdncr Rank Luxci-nbourg, :IS arranger, which has been fully 
undcrwritten hy certain shareholder hanks. See “Selling Shai-cholders”. 

Capital Expenditure 

‘The Company’s principal nccd for capital has been and is expected to continue to be substantial in 
ordcr to fuiid thc construction and launch of satcllitcs. Tnvcstmcn ts in  sntcllitc construction and launch 
consist principally of thc costs of constructing the satellite, the costs of launch and the costs of insui-ing thc 
1;iunch of tlic satellite. Of total capital costs. appi-oximatcly 40 to 50 per ccnt. generally consists of 
construction ctmts, 30 t o  3S pci- ccnt. consists of launch costs and 15 to 20 per cent. consists of launch and 
first-year in-orbit satellite insurance costs. For tlie three years ended 31 December. 1997, the Company’s 
capital expenditure was LUF 9,501 rnillinn. LUF 13,207 million and LUF 11.,013 million, respectively. ’The 
following table scts forth the Company’s planned major capital cspcnditui-cs for the periods indicated, 
based upon the C.hnpany’s current construction scliedule. Actual capital expenditure may d i k i -  from tlic 
amounts set forth below. In particular, although the Company has entered into construction contracts lor 
all four satellites, it could incur additional cspenscs due to  changes in contract specifications 01- delays. Scc 
“Tnvcstnient Considerations - Technical Risks - Risk of Launch Failure or Delay”. 

Year ending 31 December, Ciiiriiiln t ive tn 
31 ncccmbcr, 

1997 1 w x  1999 2000 ‘1ot:iI‘” 

19.2” E U S l  
ASTRA IH . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.655 
ASTRA 1K . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  207 
25.2” East 
ASTRA 2A . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4,648 
ASTRA 2R . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.351 

Total . . .  13,861 

-~~ 
(In IAIF millions) 

3,022 288 - 7,965 
2:483 4,822 4,519 12.031 

2,4m 25 1 - 7,302 
3.263 

11,171 5,697 4,519 35,248 

336 - 7,950 -~~ 
-I ~ ~ -~~ 

[I: 

Currency Fliictuations 

A suhstan tial portion of the Company’s capital expenditure is denominated in currencies other than 
the Luxembourg franc. principally U.S. dollars and ECUs. Rcvcnucs arc dcnoininated principally in ECUs 
and Dcutschcmarks. Accordingly. fluctuations in the value of thcsc cui-I-cncics, particularly in relation to 
the Lusemho~u-g franc, e m  have a significant cffcct on the translation into Luxembourg francs of foreign 
currcncy revenues and expcnses. As the Luxembourg franc hiis rcccntly tracked the Deutschemark, thc 
Coiiipany has not  bccn exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations between these currcncics. However, there 
have been fluctuations hctwccn tlie Luxembourg franc nnd the ECU which resulted in significant gains in 
1996 and 1997. 

It is the Company’s practicc to hedge most significant U.S. dollar - denominated capital cxpcnditurc 
transactions to cover foreign cxchange risk. As of 31 Dcccmhcr, 1997, the Company had pui-chased 
Ioiwar.d excliange contracts totalling U.S.$lOO million irnd sold forward exchange contracts totalling DM 
145 million. 

Comprised 0 1  sxtellite costs (spacccraft. I;iurlch. iiis~~r;iiicc and applicalilc consulting) but not grourrd cq~iipineiit. 



OVERVIEW OF THE SATELLITE BROADCASTING INDUSTRY 

Local, regional and international broadcasters can use one or a combination of three principal 
methods to make programming and services available to the general public: terrestrial, cable, and satellite. 
I n  Europe, terrestrial transmission is used to pi-ovide a limitcd number of television and i-adio services to 
the public via over-the-air transmission. Most analogue cable systems distribute 21 maximum of 30 channels. 
The introduction of fibre optic and coaxial cables generally iiicrcased transmission capacity. allowing 
additiorial sci+xs to tie madc available to the public. Satellite tmnsniission further incrcascs capacity and 
i-caches numcrous locations over vast distances simultaneously. Satellite can also be used for the distribu- 
tion and redistribution uf services by cable operators and tcrrestrial television stations. By converting from 
analogue to digital transmissions, satellites, tcrrestrial and cable systems arc ablc to increase the iiunibcr of 
channcls they offcr. Sce “Busincss - The Satellitc Broadcasting Market in Europc - Tcchnological 
Advanccli and Declincs in Equipment Costs - Digital Video Comprcssion ‘Ikchnology”. 

Satellite syslcms currently operate in thrcc types of orbit, low-Earth orbit (‘*I .EO”), medium-Earth 
orbit ( “ M E W )  and gcostationary orbit (”GEO”). As 1,EC) and M E 0  systems are not gcostationaq, they 
are noi i~ble to continuously cover thc same area on Eai-th and, accordingly, are impractical for broadcast- 
ing iind traditional tclecornmunications usage. In contrast, GEO satellites. such as those comprising the 
ASTRA Satcllitc System. arc located in a fixed geostationary orbit approximately 36,000 kilometrcs above 
the equator. GEO satellitcs ilrc capable of covci-ing a large portion of thc Earth’s surface at o n c  time and 
are thus well suited for point-to-multipoint transmission. GEO satellitcs are also well suited for connecting 
a nuinbcr of locations that cannot be connected efficiently or cost-effectively by tcrrestrial transmission 
systems, 21s tlic cost of satellite services docs not increase with distance and there are no additional costs for 
connecting domestic, regional and international networks. With broad coverage capability, GEC) satellitcs 
have commonly been used for distribution of (i) television and radio signals to cable operators and local 
tclcvision and radio stations for redistribution, DTWSMATV transmissions of video and audio program- 
ming which allows video and audio transmissions to be received directly from the satellite to homes and 
communal residences using receiver dishes as small as 18 inches and supplemcntay terrestrial transmission 
networks for the distribution of television and radio programming in rernotc areas, (ii) international and 
ciomestic trunk tclcphony complementing fibrc optic and coaxial cable and microwave backbone networks 
and (iii) busincss services, pi-incipally for voice, data and video transinissions to private networks, such as 
VSAT nctworks, and pi-ogram exchanges between tclevisiori broadcasters, including satellitc news 
gathering. 

Satellite opcrators typically provide either satellite infrastructure or thc services necessarv to establish 
a satellite communications network. For televisioii programming distrihution, these services may consist of 
providing satellite capacity and providing teleport transmission facilities and other value-added services. 
Serviccs for business coininunications networks arc gcnerally moi-c extensive and niay includc providing 
satellite capacity, procurement and installation of on-site antennae and network design, integration. 
managcrnent: opci-ation and maintenance. 



THE ASTRA SATELLITE SYSTEM 

General 

The ASTRA Satcllitc System is currently comprised of sevefi satellites, six of which (ASTRA lA,  
AS'I'KA 18, ASTRA lC, ASTRA I E, ASTRA 1F arid AS1'Kh 1G) are co-located in geostationary orbit at 
19.2" East rind one of which (ASTRA ID) is temporarily located in geostationary orbit at 28.3' East. In  
addition, Ioui- satellites ;ire under construction. two o f  which will he co-located in gcostationary orbit at 
19.2" East and two of which will hc eo-located in geostationai-y oi-hit at 28.2' East. Thc ASTRA Satellite 
System presently has capacity dcdicated to the transmission of analogue and digital tclcvision and radio 
channels. as well as multimedia services. 

Broadcast satellites a r t  evaluated on their coverage arca, the quality o f  thc signal transmitted to the 
coverage area and the ;ivailability of the transpondel-s. Footprint is a mcasurcnicnt of the breadth of  a 
satellite's coverage. A key niciisurcmcnt of signal quality in seivices like DTI I tclcvision broadcasting is the 
intensity of transmission power in the coverage area. A strongcr signal enables a cuslomcr to use a smaller, 
lower-cost icccption dish on the ground. Availd%lity is dcterinincd bv considering a satellite's operational 
"lifetirne" as well :is thc nuinbcr of transponders cnpnhlc o f  providing scwicc. The Company considers all 
thrcc factors in determining whether a particular satellite is appropriate for its needs. 

Broadcast satcllitcs typically transmit signals using cithcr C-band (4 GHz) or Ku-band ( 1 1GHz). 
C-band is uscd worldwide for satellite communications to transmit signals with minimum intcrfcrcnce from 
atmospheric conditions. C-band lrcquencies are also uscd by gi-ound-bascd microwave svstems. In certain 
parts of the world, C-band satellite transmission dishes must he located far from ccntres of population to 
avoid interference with ground-based systems. Since thc ITU has allocatcd portions of the Ku-hand 
spcctrum to the exclusive usc of satellite communications (callcd Fixed Satellite Service (FSS) and 
Broadcast Satcllitc Service (BSS) bands), Ku-band transponders can be used in urban arcas without similar 
interference concerns. Because of higher available transmission power. Ku-band frequencies C R ~  be uscd in 
cori~iunction with dishes that are smaller than dishes that are used in conjunction with C-band frcqucncics. 
Ku-band is genci-ally uscd for the same purposes iis C:-band 21s well as for satellitc news-gathci-ing 
(transportable dishes) and in some VSAT applications. The combination of high-power transmitters and 
small dishes also makes Ku-hand suitablc for direct-to-home television. Ka-band f'rcqucncies constitute a 
poi-lion of the radio frequency spcctruni, approximately 20 t o  30 GHz. which is higher than the Ku-band 
frequencies. K;i-band frequencies have only rcccntly started to he exploited for commercial services. 

Thc footprint of the ASTRA Satellite System provides pan-European coverage. The size of the 
antenna required to receive progr;ininics from ASI'RA satcllitcs is dependent on the footprint. type of 
transmission (malogue or digital) and thc gcuyqhical  location o f  the receiving dish within the footprint. 
Within the main covci-agc ai-ea, 60 cm dishes arc gcncrally required for D'I'H analogue reception and SO 
cm d i sks  are generally required for UTH digital rcccption. For SMA'I'V. slightly larger dishes are 
recorninended to provide additional margin and IO compe.nsate for noise and signal dcterioration in 
redistribution. 

Signals from the ASTRA satellites co-located at 19.2" Last can be received on a singlc-feed, fixed 
parabolic sritcllite dish fitted with 21 single. twin or quatro Universal LNB, now the de facto standard across 
Europe. Reception of the digitally transmitted pi-oglanimes from ASTRA 1b to ASTRA 1G is possible in 
the majorily of  Western Europe and much of Eastern Eui-ope with ii 50 cm dish. I t  is expected that thc 
footprint of ASTRA IK will cover two distinct areas with two separate beams, one of which may be 
receivcd in the United Kingdom and the Iiepuhlic of Irclrind with a 60 cm dish for DTH/SMA"V analogue 
reception. and the other of which may be received in Ccntral and Eastern Europe as well as the European 
part of the CIS with a 50 cm dish for digital receplion. Trransniissions of digital pi-ogramrnes from the 
Company's satcllitcs located at 28.2' East, currently ASTRA ID (and ASTRA 2A when it xplaces A S T M  
ID at 28.2' East) and, suhsequcntly, ASTRA 2t3, can bc received in the United Kingdom and the Republic 
o f  Irclrind with a 50 cni dish. For an illustration of the footprints of  cadi satellite in  the ASTRA Satcllitc 
System, the expected footprints of ASTRA I H, ASTFW 1 K, ASTRA 2A and ASTRA 2B, arid an indication 
of the minimum antenna diameter required for satellite dishes in  DTT-I installations, see "Annex I3 - Thc 
Satellite System Footprints". 
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The following table sets forth certain data concerning the current and future ASTRA satcllitc flcct. 

Launch date . .  . .  . .  

Orbiinl posiriori . . . . . . 

Expcctcil l i feti ine at launch 

Crment expected lifitime 

Transponder capacit!--End v l  

. . 

(years)", , , .  

L i k  {Ku-band) 

Trnnspniider handwidth 
(MHz) 

I? 12+ 1s 12 14 15 15 I5 I3 I 5  14 

( I )  ASHW I A  and AS I R A  1TI were manutactured by GE Astro Spacc (now Lockticcil-Mnr,tin TelecOlllmtiiiications Curp.) and AS'I-IM IC:. :\SI I<A 
I I ) .  ,\STRA IE. ASTRA IF, ASTIU I t i  ;id ASIKA ?A were manhractured bp Huehes. :\Sl.lU 1H i> undcr ci:mcIriirlior1 I)! Ilu$cs. .4STR.\ 2B 
i s  under cnnsttuctinn by %lam-Miircurii Space and ASTRA I K is undcr cnn~truction by Airocpatinle. 

( 2 )  Fqiecred. 
(3) Anricipared availablz fucl likurimo. 
(4) Can he reconl'ipurcd I O  provide fwn Ka-hand transponders and a minimum 131' I 6  Kwhnnil transpnndt.rs. 

The Existing Satellites 

~l'he Company's satellite transponder capacity can be used for the transmission of either analogue and 
digital sciviccs. T I  used for analogue transmission, the capacity on each transponder enables the C:onipany 
to transinit cine analogue video channel and scvei-al audio channels. Gcncrdly, a customer will use the 
video channel plus two audio channels to provide stereo sound, leaving the remaining audio channels, 
known as sub-carriers, available for radio transmissions. Digital compression technology enables the 
transponders to broadcast between six to eight video services per transpondcr, depending on 
programming. 

Thc Company's satellites arc I-clativcly new, with five of thc scvcn satellites having heen operational 
for less than five years. One common characteristic of all cxisting SES satellites is that each transponder 
operates at a unique frcquency range in each of two polarisations (horizontal and vertical) so as not to 
interfcrc with the other transponders on the satellite. Another featurc common to SES satellites is the 
provision ol' additional on-board cyuipmcnt to provide service continuity in the event of an equipment 
fault. In addition, because of the co-location of the Company's satcllitcs. transponders on one satellite can 
be replaccd by similar transponders on anothcr satellite operating in thc samc frequency. l b  date, the 
intersatellite protection system has been used as a means of balancing transponder load between satellites 
and to allow the timely start of new services at 28.2" East by frcoing up the entire capacity of ASTRA 1 D at 
19.2' East. See "- Orbital Slot at 28.2" East". 

Thc initial design life of the Company's satellites ranges from I O  t o  15 years from deployment. At a 
satellite's "end of life", traffic is switched to a replacement satellite using standard procedures and the 
satellite is placcd in :I higher altitude circular orbit. End of  life is reached when the quantity of on-board 
fuel is just sufficient to "de-orbit" thc satcllitc. 

Orbital Slot at 19.2" East 

'I'he Company cominciiced operations of the ASTRA Satellite System at the orbital slot at 19.2" East 
in 1.988. Hy locating six of its satellites at the same orbital slot, the Company is able to provide 1.20 active 
transponders that can be accessed by a single-feed, fixed pal-abolic satellite dish. This allows customers to 
receive a full range of channels and other scrviccs with ;I single fixed dish. 

ASTRA / A  - If) 
Opci-ating at 19.2" East, the first four satellites in the ASTRA Satellite Systcm, ASTRA 1A-l n. carry 

analogue 'I'V and radio services, the majority of which arc intended for vicwcrs in Ckrniany, the United 
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. These satcllitcs operate in the frcqucncy range 10.70-I 1.70GHz. 
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which is known as the ASTRA I,ow Rand. and each transpondel- can broadcast one analogue TV channel, 
with thc ;iss(:)ciatcd stereo soundtracks, and up tu four ;idditinnal soundtracks or radio stations and a 
number of ASTRA Digital Radio services. 

Launched in 1988. ASTRA 1A is currently capable of opcrating up to 14 transponders simultaneously. 
I .aunchcd in  J 9 0 1 ~  ASTRA 1B is currcntly capable of operating up to 16 transponders simultaneously. 
Each of ASTRA I A  and ASTRA 1B's transpondcrs has a bandwidth of 26 MHz r ind a nominal signal 
power 01: SI rlRW. ASTRA 1A providcs 16 channel capacity in the 11.20-11.4SGHz frcquency range (A- 
Rand), whilc ASTRA 1B providcs 16 channel capacity in the 11.45-11.70GHz frequency range (B-Band). 
Both satellites wcrc designed to opcratc continuously for 10 years in spacc froin initial deployment and 
have suflicicnt propellant t o  opcratc in cxccss of  12 ycars. The Company cxpccts to take ASTRA I A  and 
AS'l-RA 1 B out of regular service at the 19.2" East oi-bital position at the end of their respcctivc ten-year 
lifetimes. 

ASTRA 1C and ASTRA ID were launched in 1993 and 1994. respectively. Each satellite has 20 Ku- 
band triinspondcrs having 21 bandwidth of 26 Mhz each in FSS (AS'lXA ID has additional selectahle 
channcls with 33Mhz of bandwidth in BSS). ASTRA 1C provides 34 channel capacity (providing 1~111 back- 
up for ASTRA 1 A) m d  ASTRA ID provides 60 channel capacity: in the 10.70GHz-12.1OCiHz frequency 
range (providing lull back-up for ASTRA IC, ASTRA 1B and ASTIW E ) .  ASTRA :IC and AS'I'KA 11) 
were dcsigned to opcratc continuously f o r  15 ycars in space from initial deployment and have sufficient 
propellant on-board to operate for 15 ~ ' C R I - S  and 12 y c m .  rcspcctivcly. ASTRA ID has bcen temporarily 
rclocatcd to the Company's orbital slot at 28.2" East. 

I n  1993, SES introduced thc ULNR to thc rcccption equipment manufr-icturin_e industry. ~ l h e  ULNB 
C O V C ~ S  the whole KLi-band spectrum of frequencies from 10.70 to 12.75 GHz. As the industry was not 
willing to invest in the production of ULNBs bcfore ASTRA I €  and ASTW IF were operational, SES 
decided in 1994 to inti-oducc 21 schcmc to subsidise the manufacturers for each ULNB produced and sold 
into the ASTRA market. Rctwccn 1905 and 1996, the Company paid manufacturers of such equipment 
LUF 79X million. the maximum agi-ccd amount of the subsidy. As a result, approximately 5 million ULNRs 
wcrc sold into the ASTRA market. crcating thc equivalent number of digital ready houschnlds. Scc 
"M:inagcmcnt's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of 
(Jperalions - Years Ended 31 December, 1995, 1906 and 1997 - 0 t h  Opcrating Expenses". 

ASTRA 1E and 1F 

AS-I'RA 1 E and ASTRA 1F arc currently being used to dclivcr digital TV and radio programming 
packages 1'01- FI-ancc, Germany, Spain. lblancl, Switzcrlmd, Austria and the Bcnclux countries. These 
satellites transmit o n  fi-cqiicncics in ;I scgrnent of the AS'TRA I ligh Rand ( 1  1.70-12.75GHz) and, together 
with AS'17RA 1 (.i, occupy all the awilahle broadcast frcclLicnc?; in the ASTRA High Band at 19.2" East. 

Lii~iiichcd i n  .I (395, ASTlL4 IE can opei-atc LIP to  20 Ku-band transponders for the first fivc ycars and 
18 thereafter. having it bandwidth of 20 Mhz each i n  FSS a n d  33Mhz in BSS. Sciving :is full hack-up for 
cithcr AS'l'lLI 1J3, ,ISTRA IC or ASTRA ID, AS-I-KA 1E pimvides 66 channel capacity. In its primary 
1-olc. ASTRA 1F will provide digital tclcvision scr-vices in the BSS band and i n  its sccondury role, will 
pi-ovidc back-up to AS'I'IU 1A. ASTRA lF, which was launched in 1996, can operalo up to 22 K ~ i - b ~ i d  
transponders for the first five ycai-s and 20 thcreafter, having a tiandwidth 0 1  26 Mhz cach in FSS and 
33Mhz in BSS. Its prima? function will bc to provide digits1 television channels in thc BSS band. AS'I'RA 
1E and ASTRA 1F each have a design lifc of 15 years. 

ASTI2A IC 

' Ihc launch of ASTRA 1 Ci on 3 Dcccmber, 1997 completed the C.knpany's ohjcctive of establishing 
itself as the first proviclcr of transponder sciviccs in the entire Ku-frequency range ( I1).70-~12.75GHz) at 
C)IIC orbital position, 19.2" East. ASI'KA 1 G is currently being used to deliver digital proyrainiiiing 
p a c k a p  across E L I I - o ~ ~ .  ASTRA 1G has also s e n d  to enhance the overall flexibility of tlic ASTRA 
Sa tcllite System due to its addcd transponder capacity, which has permitted the temporary relocation of 
ASTRA 1 I) to 28.2" East in March 199X. Scc "The ASTRA Satellite System - The  Relocation of ASTRA 
1Ls'. 
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ASTRA I Ci can operatc up to 28 Ku-band lranspmders siniultancously for the first five years having a 
bandwidth of 20 Mhz each in FSS and 33Mhz in BSS. ASTRA 1Ci has a design life of 15 years. 

Satcllitcs Under Construction 

111 addition to its ~ c w n  operational satellites, thc Company also has four satcllitcs undcr c ~ ~ ~ i s t r ~ c t i ~ r i  
with thi-ce of the world’s leading satellite manufacturers. I lughes (ASTRA 2A and ASTRA 119, Matra 

launch of these four catcllitcs, the Company intcnds to consolidate its Icading market position in Europe. 
expand the ASTRA footprint to ncighbouring markets in the CIS and Russia, further develop the provision 
0 1  digital services in thc European market and initiate return path capability. 

M, ( i i m i i  .. Space (AS’TRA 2B) and Aerospatiale. (ASTRA IK). See “Business - Key Suppliers”. With the 

Orbital Slot ut 19.2’ East 

ASTM 1H 

Currently scheduled to be launchcd during the fourth quarter ol‘ 1098, ASTRA 1H is expcctcd to 
provide additional in-orbit security for thc ASTKA Satellite System at 10.2” East, providing full digital 
back-up capability for either ASTRA IE, ASTRA 1F or ASTRA I G as well as full rcplaccmcnt capacity for 
ASTRA IA. In  acldition, ASTRA 11-1 will be the first ASTRA satellite carrying two transponders in the Ka- 
band frequency spectrum (29.50-3O.OOC:iHz) capable of prOVidiTlg a direct satcllitc path that will permit any 
user to have a terminal permanently connected to a fully integrated two-way inultimedia/data/video/audio 
communication network via satellite. See “- ASTRA 1K” and “Business - Services - Interactive and 
Multimedia Scrviccs - The ASTRA Return Channel System”. This frequency spectrum, which is higher 
than the Ku-band frequency spectrum (10.70- 12.7SGHz) used by the ASI’RA Satcllitc System for l>road- 
casting, will enhance the AS-I’RA Satcllitc System’s ability to transmit large quantitics of data at high speed 
m c l  will allow thousands of users to iicccss services concurrently at faster speeds than is possible along 
current hardwired systems. 

AS‘I’KA 1H will have the capability to operate up to 32 Ku-band transponders simultaneously lor the 
first rive years and 26 thereafter (assuming n o  Ka-hand transponders are operating) having ii bandwidth of 
26 Mhz each in FSS and 33Mhz in BSS (the Ka-band transponder has 500 MHz bandwidth). ASTRA 1H is 
cxpcctecl to providc 56 channel capacit!/, in frequency bands 1-anging from 1 1.7OGI-Iz to 12.75GHz: 
assuming no Ka-band transponders arc operating. If the hvo Ka-band transponders arc operating. ASTRA 
1H will have the capacity to operate a minimum o f  16 Ku-band transponders. ASTRA 1H has a design life 
of IS years. 

/lhY71U IK 

ASTRA 1K \vi11 be tbc largest and most vcrsatilc satellite in thc ASTRA Satellite System. It will he 

ASTRA I K will have the capability to operatc up to 52 Ku-band transponders simultaneously and two 
Ka-band transponders simultaneously for the first five years of opcration and 46 Ku-hand transponders 
and two Ka-hand transponders a t  the end of its life. Its transponder handwidth will be 2h MHz in thc KU- 
band and 5OOMHz in the Ka-hand. ASTRA 1K has a desigil life of 13 years. 

The Conipany has commissioned thc construction of ASTRA 1K by Airospatiale to serve threc 
distinct missions. First, ASTRA 1Kwill provide full replacement capacity for ASTRA 1 R: plus partial back- 
up capacity for ASTRA 1C arid ASTRA ID. The satellite will also providc full switching capability for at 
least 40 of 04 FSS frequency bands (10.70-11.70GHz) on a pan-European coverage which will allow 
ASTKA IK to, for  instance, rcplacc up to three ASTRA satellites in t h e  low Ku-band. This mission will 
permit ASTRA customers to continue to broadcast analogue scrviccs well into thc ncst millennium. 

Second, ASTRA I I< will crcatc additional transmission capacity at 19.2” East and extend the 
geographic coverage area of the ASTRA Satellite System to Central and Eastcrn Europe through thc re- 
use of Ku-hand frequencies on two beams. One beam will COVCI- pi-iniarily the Unitcd Kingdom and Ireland 
whilc thc other beam will cover Central and Eastern Europe and the Europcan portion of the CIS. Each 
bea1Jl will he able to support up to 24 ti-ansponclers sirnultaiicously, a i d  ti-ansmission capacity lnay he 
oustoinked for individual broadcasters targeting spccific markets. When operated in full frcqucncy re-use 

located at 19.2” East following its scheduled launch at the end of 7000. 
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mode, ASTRA 1 K will incl-case the owl-all transmission capacity at 19.2’ East from 120 transponders to 
143. 

Third, ASTRA I K will feature the Company’s second Ka-band payload for two-way asymmetric 
satellite communications. As well as providing full back-up capacity for  ASl’Kh 1 H’s return path Ka-band 
payload, ASTRA 1K will also provide for a gcographical cxtcnsion of AKCS to the same regions covered 
by thc satcllitc in tlic Ku-hand (Central and Eastcru Europcan and the European portion of the CIS). 
Furthermore: to rncct changing communications traffic dcmand, SES will be able to distribute variable 
portions of the cwerall 500 MHz Ka-band frequency spectrum within 16 regions in the covered area. 

AS‘I‘RA 11-1 and AS‘I’KA 1 K will provide a technically advanced hybrid Ku/Ka-band satcllitc systcm 
wcll in advance of the next generation systems being developed in the industry which are not expected to 
be opcrational until 2003 for geostationary satellites and 2005 for low-orbit satellites. 

Orbital Slot at 28.2” East 

To mcct the growing dcinand from broadcasters for additional transmission capacie, and particularly 
the dciiiaiid for digital satcllitc services: and as the entire range of Ku-band frequencies at 19.2” East was 
being utiliscd, the Company recently opened a second orbital slot at 28.2” East. Although the Company is 
authorised to utilise only a portion of the frequencies available at 28.2” East, the new capacity at the 
sccond orbital slot will enable broadcasters to use the ASTRA Satellite System to deliver hundreds of 
digitnlll; compressed ser-vices direct to custorriers in Europe. The Company originally intended to open the 
second orbital slot at 28.2” East with the launch of ASTRA 2A during the third quarter o f  1997. Hnwevcr, 
due to satellite construction delays and dc lay  caused hy the investigation of thc launch failure of AsiaSat3 
in Decembei- 1997 o n  a Proton launch vchiclc, thc Company opened the second orbital slot by temporarily 
relocating ASI’KA 1 D to 28.2’ East to transmit digital television sci-viccs to the United I n g d o m  and the 
Republic of Ireland pending thc launch of ASTRA 2A. The ability to relocate ASTRA 1D was made 
possible by the spare capacity (21 transponders) which became available after the launch of ASTRA 1 G. 
ASI’KA ID W ~ I S  sclcctcd because it can operate 18 transponders in the €-Band (1 1.70-12.10GHz) 
downlink. It is expected that AS’i’Kh ID will be rc1oc;itcd back to  its original oi-hital slut at 10.2” E a t  in 
A L I ~ U S ~  19% following the launch and deployment of ASTRA 2A. The relocation has had no cffcct on the 
ASTRA Satcllitc Systcm at 19.2” East. and the effect on the lifetime of ASTRA ID  is cxpcctcd to he 
minimal. 

On 19 June. 1 998, the Company agrced with the Nordiska Satellitaktiebolaget (“NSAR”) to lease 
transmission capacity on NSAB’s Sirius 3 satcllitc, scheduled to be launched in the third quarter of 1998, 
for 21 period of up to 12 months. The satellite will be used by the Company to provide back-up capacity for 
ASTRA 2A. In addition, Sirius 3 will make available additional transponder capacity to meet demand for 
ti-ansmission capacity from broadcasting customers targeting the U.K. and Irish markets. 

ASY’HA 2A 

ASTRA 2A is currcntly cxpected to be launched in August 1998 and will provide digital television and 
radio programming to the United l n g d o m  and the Republic 0 1  Ireland, and will transmit on frcqucncics 
in thc ASTRA High Band. ASTRA 2A is cxpccted to have the capacity to operate up to 32 Ku-band 
transponders simultancously for the first five years and 28 thcrcaftcr having ii bandwidth of 26 Mhz each in 
FSS and 33Mhz in RSS. ASTRA 2A has a design lifc of 15 years. 

ASlKA 2B, which is under contract with Matra-Marconi Spiicc, is currently expected to be launched 
in the second quarter of 1999. ASTRA 78  is expected to provide digital tclcvisioii and radio progl-amming 
to the United Kingdom and the Republic of 11-eland and provide services other than D’I’H/SMATV to 
Dcutsche ‘Telekoni. Like ASTRA 2A: A S T M  2B will transmit o n  frcqucncics in the AS’i’lL4 High Band 
and thus provide back-up capacity for ASTRA 2A. ASI’KA 1B will have the capability to opcratc up to 30 
Ku-band transpondcrs simultaneously for thc first fivc years and 25 thereafter having a bandwidth of  26 
Mhz each in FSS and 33Mhz in BSS. ASTRA 2B has ii design lifc of 15 years. 



Satellite Launch Arrangements 

The C’ompany operates a dual launch policy pursuant to which it contracts with both Ariancspacc aiid 
I .KE for the Company’s planned satellite launches. This enables the Company to maintain flexibility in the 
cvcnl of  technical difficulties or a request from a launch provider for ii significant pustponcincnt. 

Prior to the lauiich of ASTRA 1F and ASTRA 1G by, LKE on Proton launch vehicles, all of the 
Company’s satellites had been launched by Arianespace on Aririiic launch vehicles. In Dcccmbcr 1 W 7 ,  thc 
Company signed a long-term agreement with Arianespacc (the “Ariancspacc Launch Contract”). Thc 
AriancspaL-c Immch Contract. as amended, covers three ASTRA launchcs on Ai-iailc 4 o r  Arianc 5 launch 
vehicles with an option for one additional launch, all of which must take place between 1 Januaiy, 199’3 and 
30 June, 2001 and all of which are defined as sharcd launches. Thi: Arianespace Launch Contract provides 
that, with the exception of the launch rcscn/atinn Tor ASTRA 2B in 1999, the Company may reschcdulc 
any launch reservation, provided that a corresponding written request is rcccivcd by Ariancspacc no later 
than 24 months prior to the first day of the relevant launch period. The Ariaiicspacc Launch Contract 
pi-ovides for a replacement launch in case of a launch failure, the cost of which must be paid by the 
Company. 

111 September 1993: the Company signed a long-term agreement with LICE (the ”LKE Launch 
Contract”). ‘I’he LKE Lriuiich Contract, as amended, covers five launches bctwccn the first quarter of 1.996 
and the third quarter o f  1909. ASTRA 11; and AS’l’Kh 1Ci were successfully launched by I.KE on 9 April, 
1996 r i n d  .? Tlcccmhoi-, 1997, respectively. Following tlic launch of ASTRA 2A, two launch periods will 
rcmain undci- the LKE Launch Contract. Tlic launches on Proton are single Inunchcs. The LKE L~i~i ic l i  
Contract provicles for a replacement launch in case of a launch failure: the cost of which must be paid by 
lhc C‘c:)mpany. For any Proton launch, both the Company and LKE have the right to postpone cithci- the 
launch period or the launch slot, provided that  liquidated damages are paid by the postponing party i f  the 
postponcmcn t exceecls six months. 

Thc Company expects to launch ASTRA 2A on a Proton launch vehicle froin LKE’s launch base in 
Kazakhstan in August 1998 and cxpccts to launch AS-I’M 2B on an Arianc launch vehicle fi-oi~1 
Ariancspace’s launch base in Fi-ench Guyana in 1 9 9 .  ‘llie desigii of ASTRA I IT and ASTRA I K will 
permit their launch on cithcr a Proton or M a n e  launch vehicle. 

Thc AS’I’HA Master Control Facility 

’The Company opcratcs a Master Control Facility, which ii~cludcs the Digital Transmission Facility, tlic 
Satellite Control Facility, the lxwxplant: the Back-up Satellite Control Facility and the Central DeliverJI 
Point. at its hcadquarters in Betzdorf. Eyuippcd with the latest satellitc communications hardware aiid 
dishes for in-orbit tracking, telemetry and uplink facilities ;-is well as television-receive-onlv equipment, the 
facilitp monitors the ASTRA satellites 24 hours a day, 31% days a year. SES was the first company in the 
world to opcratc :is many as six co-located satcllitcs, which places additional demands on tlic Company’s 
p u n d  faciljtics. SES ernploys approximately 40 experienced satellite and commuilications specialists and 
cnginccrs t o  control and monitor continuously ASI’Kh’s satellites in a geostationary orbit. ‘Ielemety, 
tracking and command (“TT&C”) operations with the ASTRA satellites are carried out at the M;istci- 
Control Facility. 

Once a satellite is placed at its ol-hital location, it is controlled and maintained until the end of its in- 
orbit life. The Company’s cnginccrs pci-iodically make necessary rninoi- adjustments to each satellite’s 
attitude and conduct east-west and north-south stationkeeping niiiiiociivrcs: thiIs ensuring that the 
Company’s satellites rnaintaiii their proper orientation and orbital position. In addition, commands 
transmitted froin the Master Control Facility can switch transponders in and out of service, control thc 
charging ; I J ~  discharging of the batteries, activate back-up equipmcnt and engage other control functions. 

The Master Control Facility currently opcratcs 10 anteiinac and transmission facilities as well as 
equipmcn t iiiid facilities. such as  radio frequency equipment, baseband units: ground monitoring systems, 
ciat;i processing systems and communication traffic monitoi-ins systems. Each antenna is capable o f  
controlling any of tlic Company’s satellites. The Master Control Facility maint;iins its own co-generator 
systcrrls to provide a coiltintlous supply of electricity in the case of a power outage, and ils air conditioning 
mid ventilation systems back LIP each other. 



The Master Control Facility currently is dcsiyned to control arid monitor up to  eight satcllitcs. As 
additional satcllitcs are brought in to  thc ASTRA Satcllitc Systcm, thc Company intends to cspand its 
'ITt!!C operatioris arid will obtain ;tdcfitional adjnccnt property for that purpose. Scc "Rusiness - 
Pmpcrtics". 

The Master Control Facility operates with scvural back-up systems in place. I n  the event of x i  
opcrational failure of thc fxility's main computcr, :I stand-by cornputer will coiiic into operation to 
operate thc ASTRA Satellite Systcm. Additionally, a scp~rrarc building in Uctzdorf tiouscs cicvelopmerit 
cquipment which can also be brought inlo iisc should the main and stand-by computer cquipmcnt in the 

d'Or. which is qpwximatcly 3 kilometres from I3ctzdorf. .]'he Chmpany cxpcts  this f x i l i t y  lo bc 
copcratiunril ly the end of lO!M. 

p- u '1' Ity bccotne iaopcrahlc. The CTonipany is currently constructing a back-up control facility in Clochc- 

Bcfoi-c uplink cotnrnunication wirh its satcllitcs is pcrmitted. the Company's customcrs are requii-cd t o  
iiicet the C:onipany's perforinancc and upcratiotis specirieations. Thc purpose o f  thcsc requirements is to 
confirm that thc customer's equiprnent opcrates within thc Cmipany's spccifications in ordcr to minimise 
intcrfcrcnce with othcr custoincrs on the sarnc satollite or uscrh on nciglibouring satellites. The Company's 
erigiriecrs will meet with the custonicrs to ;idvisc o n  thc ndjustrnents requircd to hc made to thc customer's 
equipment. in order t o  miniinisc interferencc. Sincc the launch nl' ASTRA IA in 1988, SES has qualified 
for uplink 10 thc ASTIW Satcllitc Systein 89 main tclcvision uplinks arid rive transportable earth stations. 
?his rcyriircd perfomling 133 acceptance tests on uplink facilities and 4 1 on transportablcs. 

Onc of the C'ompan\;'s main functions is Lo provide technical support to c~~stomers. The Company 
helps customers determine and cvaluate their cquiplncnt configuration, crirricr modulatinn. hundwidth and 
powcr 1-cyuireinents. dcsign thcir iietworks ;ind crilculate link budgcts. 

Thc: NOC: and D I N 0  wcrc designcd iind impletiientcd by the C'otupany t o  nitinitor and niensure 
coiiini~ n icalion s p r t i  me te rs ;:it t he Co mpmy 's ti crr dq uit r t crs in Bet zdor I. Thc- NOC and I N 0  arc also 
uscri to assist in customer carth stcition qualification rind anrilysis of' anr)m;ilics. The N O C  ;ind ,DIN0 
I T ~ ~ W I I - ~  power, f'i-cquciicy, bandwidth. carrier-to-noisc rtitio atid other cc-)rnmunic:itions performance 
charxtcristics. 

Insurance 

The C.hnp;iny maintains launch, in-i~rbit nntl third-party insurancc far all i)f its salcllites currently in 
oi-bit as well as for ASl'lU 2A. ASTRA It-I and A S T M  3B, which iii-c currently expcctcd t o  be launchcd 
in A U ~ L J S ~  1998. thc fourth quartel- of .1998 and the scccmd quarter of 1 ?W, respectively. The Cornpimy is 
not awa-c of any rc:twn why it wauld n o t  be able to rcncw cxistiri~ insurancc for its satellitcs o n  iiormal 
c(>Il1nlerciiil tcrrns. The C.hiipany's insurance policies h;ivc standard provisir:)ns and customary csclusions. 

Laiinch and ln-orbit Insirrance 

The Company ina i n t a i ns 1 a unch and in -orbi t insu rance with lcading intern at ional ins lira nce compa nics 
and ii nurnher 0 1  1 h y d s '  syndicatcs. The launch m c l  initial in-orbit insurance policy, in thc amounl o f  ECU 
201) million fw w c h  of ASI'KA 1G and RSTRA 1H and ECU 725 million for each of ASI'KA 2A and 
ASTRA 2B, provides coveragc Ibr the partial loss of the satcllitc's communicatinns cqxtcity and the total 
ICISS, clc>truciion tor failurc of the satcllitc. Constructivc total loss is dcfincd as loss of more than 50 pci- 
w i t .  of the satcllite's communications capticity. The launch and initial in-orbit iiisuraricc policy provides 
cwcragc I'i:)i- claims arising from occurwlccs up to Iivc ycars after thc launch of th? satellite. The launch 
a n d  initial in-orbit policy currcntly in effect is cffcctive for fhc later of 36 months  from 1 Septcmbcr, I!)% 
o r  five ycars from the tirnc of the launching of the satclliti: (provided that thc launch (~ccurs prior to the 
cxpiry dste of tlic policy o n  1 Scptembcr-. 1999j. 'I'hc Company pays premiums which vary by satellite in 
thrce instalrncnts. ?'he first payment is paid upon execution of the insurancc policy, the sccond instalrrient 
is paid 30 d a y s  prior t o  the launch of the satcllitc and ttic final instalrnent is pnid uii the second mniversary 
tsl' the launch of the satelliic. Thc insitrancc premiums Tor thc first y e x  in orbit arc cnpitalised and 
iricludcd in the vduc of  the satellite which is dcprcciated. 
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Thc fdowing tablc sets forth dctails regarding the launch and initial in-orbit insurance cover and the 
launch datcs for ASTRA lG, ASTRA lH, ASTKA 2A and ASTKA 2B. 

Sum Sat ell i le Launch Date Launch Vehicle 

ASTRA 1 C i  . . . . 3 December, 1997 Proton ECU 200 million (1.UF 8,156 million) 
ASTRA 1H . . . 4th Quartcr 1998 Ariane or Proton(3) ECU 200 million (LUh' 8,156 million) 
ASTKA 2A"' . . . . August 1998 Arianc or Protod3' ECU 725 million (LUF 9,176 million) 
ASI'KA 2B . . . . 2nd Quarter 1999 Arianc OJ Protodj) ECU 225 million (LUF 9,176 million) 
ASTKA IK . . . . 4th Quarter 2000 Arianc or  Proton Under negotiation 

~ ~~ 

(1 )  Ayrccd sums. although may hc reiisgoliated by the Company. 
( 2 )  E(:t! amounts i i w  Iimislated. solely for the cnnvenience of ttrc reader, into I.uxctiihourg francs ai thc cxctrange t-ate on 

31 Decernhcr. 1997 (if LLF 40.7X = ECU 1.00. 
( 3 )  Sul>ject I U  nu l  being launched or1 Ariane 502 o r  503. 
(4) Sutijccl 1 0  full tcclinioal bi,icfitig and acceptaricc by all iiisui-;itice untlcrwt-itel-s. 

In-orbil Insirrance 

The Company maintains in-orbit insurance with respcct to periods subsequent to a satellite's first year 
of operation with leading international insurance companies and ii number of Lloyds' syndicates. The 
Company has purchascd satellite, in-orbit insurance, which covers all satellites in orbit (cxccpt AS'I'KA lG, 
for which in-orbit insurancc will conic into effect in 1999) ror three ycai-s beginning 1 Scptcmber, 1997 
(subject to valuation and carnings potential). Such insurance provides protcclion only against thc total loss, 
destruction, damage to or failure of the satellite to operate in accordance with design specifications. 
Constructivc iota1 loss is dclined as thc loss o f  more than SO per cent. of the satellite's communications 
capacity. The first ycar of in-orbit insurance is includcd in the amount of the satcllitc to be capitaliscd. 

'l'he following tablc scts forth the amount of in-orbit insurance cuvci- for AS'I'IW IA, A S T M  18, 
AS'1'RA .IC, ASlKA ID, ASTRA 1E and ASTKA 1E As the table illustrates, the Company maintains in- 
orbit insurance cover significantly in excess of the book value of its satellites. 

Satellite 

ASTRA 1A . . 
ASTRA 1R . . 
ASTRA 1C . . 
ASTRA 10 . . 
ASTIL4 1G . . 
ASI'RA IF . . 

-- Insured Value as of 31 December, 1997") Net Book Value as of 31 December, 1997(" 

ECU 75 million ( IUF  3,059 million) ECU 14 million (LUF 562 million) 
ECU I25 million (LLJF 5,098 million) 
ECU 180 million (LUF 7,330 million) 
ECU 195 million (LUF 7.952 million) 
ECU 210 inillion (LUF 8,564 million) 
ECU 200 million (L,UUF 8.156 million) 

ECU 51 million (LUF 2.082 million) 
ECU 94 million (LUF 3,844 million) 
ECU 130 million (LUF 5,282 million) 
ECU 150 million (LUF 6.100 million) 
ECU 131 million (LUF 5.345 million) 

( I )  ECU arnouiits are lrarrslatcd, solely for thc convenience u l  ttrc rcader. into I.uxcmhourg lrancs at the cxchange rille on 31 
Drccrrlbct. 1997 ol' L,UF 40.78 = ECU 1.00. 

Third-party Insurance 

The Company maintains separate third-party insurance in the ainount of ECU 400 million for 
damagcs lor physical injury and/or property damage arising from a n  occurrence with a satellite. 
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REGULATION 

Luxembourg has jurisdiction ovcr the satellites comprising the ASTRA Satellite System. Luxembourg 
is a mcmbcr of the ITU, thc body responsible for establishing the regulatoy framework for international 
tclccoinmunicatioiis. As a member of the l ‘ l l j ,  Luxembourg has the same rights as other ITU mcmbcrs to 
LISC frcqucncy spectrum and corresponding orbital positions. 

The Company was first granted rights by the Chvcrnmunt in Scptcmbcr .I 988 undcr ii conccssion 
agreement, or “Contrat de Concession”, and an associated term sheet, or “Cahier des Charges”, enabling 
the Company to opcratc satellites at the orbital slot at 19.2’ East. The CoInpany entered into a new 
Contrat de Concession with thc Government on 27 July. 1993, at which time the Government issued a new 
Cahicr des Charges. Both were adapted on 12 March, 19% to includc iisc of thc Ka-band and the orbital 
slot at 28.2” East. 

International Regulation 

The l‘W, a specialiscd agency of the United Nations of which most countries in the woi-ld are 
nicmhcrs: establishes rules and regulations relating, among other things, to thc co-ordination of the 
international use of the radio freclumcy spectrum and corresponding orbital positions. See “Regulation - 
Allocation of Frequency”. ‘ lhe Company is required to coinply with all provisions of thc TTU Convention 
and other applicahlc international treaties to which Luxembourg is a party. 

Allocation of Frequency 

General 

The ITU’s Radio Regulations arc dcsigncd to coordinate the use of frequencies and associaicd orbital 
positions and to prevent harmful interference. ‘I’he assignment process for the usc of frcqucncies and 
orbital slots consists of four stagcs: advance publication, coordination. notification and registration. The 
Government is responsible for undcrtalung all of these steps on behalf of the Company. Scc “- Thc 
Company’s Contrat de Concession”. 

Once an orbital slot has ~ W I J  requested and the Radiocommunication Bureau is notified, other 
countries may inform the RadiocominunicatioIi Bureau of any conflicts with their prcscnt or planned use 
of thc orbital slot. When a contlict or potcntial conflict is noted. countries must negotiate in an effort to co- 
ordinate thc proposed uses and resolve any interference concerns. The Kadiocommunication nurcau may 
be askcd t o  assist in resolving any dispute arising in connection with proposed uscs of frequencies and 
orbital locations. I Iowcvcr, no binding dispute resolution mechanism exists, and if there is no agreement, a 
satcllitc system will not be cntitlcd to protection from intcrrcrcncc undcl- international law. Any country 
may place a satellite or earth station in operation without co-ordination and notification. However, if it 
does so the satellite or earth station is not entitled to registration in the ITU’s Master International 
Kegistcr and to agreed freedom from interference. In addition, within the European Union, the Radio 
Regulations and anv changes thereto ai-c suljcct to reservation if such changes conflict, or might conflict, 
with the ‘Ikeaty of Rome (21s amended) (the “EU Ti-c-caty”) or community law. 

Thc Company’s orbital slot at 19.2’ East is registered in the Master International Register of the ITU 
with frccdoiii from interference. 1-Iowcvcr, the Company’s slot at 28.2’ East is subjcct to a frequency claim 
from Fr:incc at the neighhouring orbital position at 29’ East foi- the usc of the same frequencies as SES. 

Orbital Position at 28.2‘ East 

Based on market developments, the Company identified the nccd for additional orbital positions as 
110 further txoadcasting frequencies were availablc at 19.2” East. In 1994, eight tilings wcre made by the 
Government on behalf of the Company for frcqucncy spectrum and corresponding orbital positions, 
including for the orbital position at 28.2” East. ?Wo prior filings existed that were close to 28.2’ East. The 
first was for the Keplcr project filed in January 1988 on behalf of Deutsche Telekom at 28.5” Bast. The 
second was for the Europcsat project filed in Mav 1989 on behalf of Eutelsat at 39’ East, which had been 
based around thc D2 MAC broadcasting standard which failed to achieve comnicrcial acceptability and 
W:IS abandoned by thc broadcasting industry in 1.992. On the basis that the projects had not been brought 
into we within the relevant period of eight years, the corresponding filings for thesc projects were 
expected to expire in January 1997 and May 1997. 1-cspcctivcly. As a result, the Company concluded that it 
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would not encounter interference at 28.2” East and decided to pursue this slot :IS its sccoiid orbital 
position. 

1 Iowever, Luxembourg and France, acting a s  the nolifling authoritics for SES and Eutelsat, respec- 
tively, are involvcd in conflicting claims over the USC of frequencies at the orbital arc at 28.2”/29” East. Scc 
“Business - Legal and Regulatory Proceedings”. 

‘rhe Company’s Contrat de Concession 

Consistent with the Mddia Electroniques law of 30 July, 1991 (thc “Mkdia Electroniques Law”), t h e  
Company is currently operating under a Contrat dc Coticession and a Cahier des Charges, both of which 
were adaplcd on 12 March: 1998. Under the Contrat de Concession and the Cahier des Charges: thc 
Company has, suhject to thc Government having sccurcd or securing such frequencies from the ITU for 
the Company, lhe exclusive right to set up and operate a 1,uxemhourg satcllilc system including a system 
operating at the  orbital positions at 1 9.0°-19.2” East and 28.0°-28.2” East using the Ku frequency bands 
(FSS and BSS) and Ka frcqucncy bands. The concession may be cxtciided to orbital positions at other 
orbital arcs. The concession comprises the right to make transponder capacity available to uscrs for the 
transmission of programmes and services. The Company’s conccssion also includes the right to establish, 
on Luxernbomg territory, one or morc carth stations to assist in the operation of its satellites. to perform 
Tl’CErC opcrations and to provide communication links with its satellitcs. Apart from its concession, the 
Company is not required undcr thc Media Electroniqucs Law to obtain any other licences or regulatory 
authorisations in order to provide space segment capacity for broadcasting activities. 

The concession granted to the Company is non-transferable and expires on 31 December, 2015 but 
may be rcncwcd. The conccssion provides that good faith negotiations on the renewal of the concession 
shall commence at the request of either party starting 2012. If no agrccment is reached by 1 January. 2014, 
thc conccssion will automatically be extended on a non-exclusix basis for the operational life of any of  the 
then cxisling satellites. The Company is aw;irc of n o  reason why its concession would not hc 1-onewed. 

‘The Company’s Cahier des Charges 

Exploitation of concession 

Under the Contrat de Concession and the Cahier des Charges, the Coinpany is required to make due 
effort to ensure continuous and regular cxploitation of its conccssion at an optimum level to obtain long- 
term maximum financial profitability. SES is required to constantly improve its services to users through 
thc implementation of economically justifiable new techniques, endeavour to c:)btain the maximum bcnefit 
from the exploitation of its concession and collaborate with the Ciovernmcnt to develop new activities 
rcl;itcd to its concession. The Company may not ahandon o r  interrupt the cxploitation of its concession 
olher than in cxccptional circumstances or as a result of force majeure. The Company shall not be 
considercd to have abandoncd or interrupted the cxploitation of its concession as long as it  operates at 
least onc satellite. 

The Company pays an annual concession fec to the Luxembourg treasury. See “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - General - Franchise Fee 
and Taxes”. 

Users 

?‘he Company is authorised to cnter into agreeincnts for the usc of transponder capacit), with users on 
such commcrcial and other t e r m  as the Company may agree, subject to such uscrs undertaking to bc 
bound by and comply with thc relevant conditions of  the Cahicr dcs Charges and to thc Government not 
having objccted to the user after notification by the Company. To date, thc Govcrnment has not cxcrcised 
this right of rcfusal. In addition, users are requircd t o  comply with their relevant national legislation and 
any applicable international conventions. Scc “Regulation - Broadcasting Regulation”. Any total or 
partial transfer of its transponder capacity by a usci- is subject to the Company’s approval. 

If a user sericiusly hrcaches either its transponder agreement or the provisions of thc Cahier des 
Charges and continues to do so notwithstanding notice given by the Company, the Government can 
require the Company to suspend transmission of the user’s broadcasts. In thc event the transpondci- 
contract is suspended for such a breach, n o  compensation will be payable to the user by cilher the 

so 



Company oi- the Government. To date, the Government has not rcquircd the Company to suspend a user’s 
broadcasts. 

Government Supervi.rion 

The Government is cntitled to appoint up to three cornrnissioncrs to supervise the Company’s 
compliance with the Contrat de Concession and the Cahier des Charges. Currcntly, the Ciovci-nment has 
appointed one commissioner, who may participate in general meetings o f  sharcholders and meetings of the 
Board or any Board committees of the Company or its subsidiaries. The comrnissioncr may oppose any 
rncasure taken 01- envisaged by the C:c:)mpany that would be contrary to national law or international 
conventions applicablc to Luxembourg, thc C‘ontrat dc Concession. the Cahier des Charges or  the vital 
intcrcsts of Luxembourg. The commissioner may suspend any mciisure which he opposes and the 
Company would have five days to appeal against such suspension, failing which the suspension becomes a 
permanent veto. The Company’s right of appcal is to the Government which is req~iii-cd to decide any 
appeal within 2.1 days. 

Thc Articles may nol be modified willlout the Ciovernrncnt’s prior written approval. In addition, 
certain allocations or transfers of shares in tlie Company I-cquirc the Government’s written approval. See 
“Dcscription of Share Capital”. 

Modipcation of the Cahier des Charges 

If the Cahicr des Charges is modified in a manner which affects the financial and commercial balance 
of the Contrat dc Concession unfavourably to the Company, the Chvcrnrncnt must compensate the 
Company for any losscs and any shortfall in earnings, failing which the Company can tei-minatc its 
concession on 12 months’ notice without liability for compensation. Any modification of the Cahicr des 
Charges which pcrmancntly disrupts the financial and commercial balance bctwcen the Govcrnment and 
the Company will bc treated as a withdrawal of thc concession and the Govcrnment will be liable to 
cornpcnsate the Company for losses incurred and othcr damages, together with any loss in futurc earnings. 

The Governrncnt is not responsihlc for any loss the Company suffers i f  the conditions within which the 
Company operates chanyc dramatically in a manner which could not have heen rcasonably foreseen at the 
time thc concession was granted. Howcvcr, if such a change occurs. the Company has the right to require 
that the Cahicr des Charges be revised to reflect the new circumstances. If thc Government refuses to 
amcild the Cahici- des Charges or the proposed amendment is considered insufficient by thc Company on 
reasonahlc grounds, the Company may terminate its conccssion on 12 months’ notice without liability for 
compensation. 

Withdrawal or Suspension of Concession 

The Company’s concession may be withdrawn in whole 01- in part t or one of its subsidiaries remains 
in serious hrcach of the Contrat de Concession or Cahicr des Charges, having failed to coinply with a first 
notice to remcdy the specified breach within ii rcasonablc time sct by the Ciovcrilnient and having then 
continued to fail to remedy such breach after a further noticc within the time spccified in such further 
notice. Any such withdrawal is subject to the Ciovei-nmcnt having requcstcd SES and the commissioners to 
prcsent their views in writing. Subject t o  the same pi-occdure, the Ciovcrnmcnt may deprive the Company 
o f  all or part of its exclusivity if the Companv fails to continuously arid regularly exploit its concession at an 
optimum level to obtain long-term maximum financial profitahility. 

llpon tlie withdi-awal of the concession by reason of a serious breach by the Company or one of its 
suhsidiaries of the Coiitrat de Concession or tlic Cahier dcs Charges, the Company will forfcit all rights 
associated with its concession and the Government shall be entitled to become the owner of thc 
Company’s satellites, control facilities and other equipment and to he substituted as ii party to any 
agrecmcnts neceswy for the exploitation of thc withdrawn concession. The Company will hc cntitled to 
fair and equitable compensation beforc any property rights arc s o  transferred. If the Government decides 
to  withdraw thc Company’s concession in whole or in part for any other reason. the Ciovcmment must givc 
12 months’ noticc and the Company is entitled to compensation for all damages suffered by it, including 
any loss in  future earnings. 



Thc Company bclicves that the Government has no present intention to withdraw the Company’s 
concession. 

Insurance 

Thc Company is required to purchasc third-party liability insui-ance at reasonable premiums to cover 
any damage that may be caused by an ASTRA satellite and to dcsignate the Government 21s ii eo-insured. 
See “Thc ASTKA Satellite System - Insurance”. 

Compliance with Laws 

The Compmy is ~ l s o  required to comply with Luxembourg laws and intcrnational conventions in forcc 
in 13uxembourg which are applicablc to its activities, including the provisions of the ITU Convention and 
the Radio Regulations ;IS well as the Final Acts of relevant ITU conferences, as soon as such final acts 
come into force in Luxeniboui-g. 

Broadcasting Regulation 

The European Union’s Television Without Frontiers Dircctivc is particularly important to the business 
of the Company (Directive H9/552/EEC on the coordination of certain provisions laid down hy law, 
regulation or administrative action in Member States concerning the pursuit of television broadcasting 
activities). The purpose of the ‘Mevision Without Frontiers Directive is to establish minimum standards 
regarding programme content which member states arc required to impose on broadcasters whose 
transmissions originatc from the nicniher state’s territory. These standards do not apply in respect of 
broadcasts intended foi- reception only in the state of transmission. The applicable law of a broadcast is 
that of thc member statc in which the broadcaster is established. The Directive provides, among other 
things. that television programmes properly licensed in one member state of the European Union may be 
permitted to be frccly rctransmittcd in other membcr states. To thc extent the broadcasters whose 
programmes the Company transmits are appropriately licensed in a member statc: there are no additional 
Immdcasting liccnsing requirements on the Company. This adds significantly to the ease with which the 
Chnpany ciin undertake its business. The Company undertakes contractual duc diligence to ensure that 
broadcastel-s are properly licensed and rcquests a copy of the relevant licence in each case. Thc original 
Directive has becn implemented in Luxembourg by the Midia Elcctroniques Law of 30 July, 1991. The 
revisions to thc Tclevision Without Frontiers Directive (Directive 97/3h/EC), which have not yct been 
implemented into Luxembourg law, do not have any significant effect on the Company’s business. 

The EL!% Advanced Tclevision Dircctive (Directive c)S/47/ECj regulates conditional access systems 
used for pay television serviccs and standards for the transmission of digital television signals. It provides 
for, among other things, non discriminatory acccss to conditional access serviccs and the licensing of 
intcllcclual propcrty rights in such systems. 

‘The Company itself rcquires no licenccs in relation to the encryption of programmes broadcast from 
thc ASTRA Satellite System and the encryption inothod used, i f  any, is left to the discretion of the 
Coni pany’s cus tonic rs. 

‘I’clecommunicatiuns Regulation 

The Company will rcyuire a telecommunications licence from thc Government in the future in respect 
of the provision of its direct return channel system, ARCS. See “Business - Services - The ASTRA 
Rcturn Channel System”. Thc Company envisages no particular problems or delays in obtaining an 
appropriate licence in Luxembourg at the rclcvant time. However, the Company or its customers will also 
ncecl telecommun~cations liconces in othcr countries in relation to the use of ARC‘S and othcr new 
services. 

Competition Law 

I n  addition t o  domestic competition law in Luxembourg, Articles 8.5 and 86 of the EC ‘Treaty are 
applicable to thc Company. These provisions prohibit anti-competitive agreements and abusc of a 
doininant position. Competition guidelines on the application of the EEC competition rules in the 
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tclccommunications scctor (91/C233/02) (OJ 6.Y.91 C233) illustrate the European Commission’s scrutiny 
o f  the dcvelopment o f  competition in space services. 

Thc Company is not involved in any current domestic or European Uninn competition investigations 

Historically, the Company has been involved in two cases. The first o f  thcsc was the ASTRA case 
(Cuminission dccision of 23 Dcccmbcr. 1992, IVi32, 745ASTRA) (93/50/EEC OJ 28.1.93 L20/23), in 
which thc Commission dccidcd that an agrccmcnt bctwccn the Company and British Telecommunications 
plc (“BT”) (thc “RT Agreement”), pursuant to which the two companies agreed to cooperate in the joint 
provision of satellite distribution sciviccs to tclcvision coinpi-inics, was in breach of Article 85(1) and did 
not qualify for an cxcinption from Article X5(1) under Article XS(3). Thc main conccrn undcr Arti- 
cle 8S( I )  relatcd to the bundling of serviccs. Custorncrs wishing to transmit their programmes via A S T M  
1A would have been unable to conclude separate contracts for up-link services and the lease of transpon- 
der capacity. ‘Ihe B I ’  Agreement was terminated by the parties. 

The second case, the IClnncvik CBSC, relatcd to four analogue transpondcrs contractcd by thc 
Company to Industrifiirvaltnings AR Kinncvik (“Kmncvik”). knncvik wanted to sub-liccnsc thc transpon- 
der capacity, which had bccn contractcd to it for use in Scandinavia, for use in Germany. The Company 
refused to permit l n n c v i k  to do so. l nncv ik  filcd a complaint with the Commission which was settled. 
The Commission wrotc on 6 July, 1996 that it had closed the file. 

The Company notified its standard foi-m of contracts for the L I S ~  of transponder capacity for analogue 
and digital transmission and principles for change of use of transponders to the European Commission on 
14 May. 1996. The notification sought either assurancc that the contracts were not within Article 85 of  the 
EC Treaty or, alternatively, that they were exempted rrom that provision under Article 85(3). A notice was 
puhlishcd in the Official Journal on 21 January, 1997 inviting third party comments. As yet, no decision has 
k e n  madc o n  the notification. 

or cases. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT 

Board of Directors 

The Board meets regularly and is responsible for the management of the Company. Each Director is 
requircd to be a natural person hut does not need to be a holder of A Shares or B Shares. Dircctors are 
electcd at general meetings of shareholders by a niajority of more than two-thirds of the votcs. The number 
of Dircctors, their remuneration and their term of office (which shall riot exceed six ycai-s) may be 
modified by more than two-thirds of the votcs of shareholders at a general meeting. A Director may be 
removed from office at any general meeting. Under the Articles, the Board is to be composed of (i) a 
number of Dircctors, based on a list of candidates nominated by holders of B Shares, equal to one-third of 
the total number of Directors, (ii) a number of Directors representing the employccs of the Company, as 
required by Iuxembourg law, and (iii) a number of Directors, based on a list of candidates nominated by 
holders of A Shares, equal 10 the difference between the total numher of Dircctors and the sum of the 
Directors under (i) and (ii) above. The Board is currently comprised of 22 Directors, of which 11 were 
electcd by the shareholders based on a proposal by Class A shareholders, eight were appointed bascd on a 
proposal by Class B shareholders and thrce are employcc representativcs. None of the Directors rcpre- 
seiitiiig the employees hold senior managcment positions. Curl-ently, therc arc two vacancies on thc Board. 
Vacancics may he filled by the remaining mcmbers of the Board until the next general meeting of the 
shareholders at which such appointment must be approved. 

'The resolutions of the Board are adopted by a simple majority vote, except that morc than two-thirds 
majority of  the votcs is I-equired for (i) the issue of Shares within the authorised capital, (ii) thc conclusion 
of ii concession agreement and the acceptance of the Cahier dcs Charges, (iii) thc appointment and 
dismissal of mcmhers of the Management Committee of the Company (the "Managcment Cornmittec"), 
(iv,) the appr0\7al of interim dividends and (v) the development of new activities within the franicwork of 
thc Company's corporate purpose. 

'I'he following table provides certain information ahnut the Board as of 5 July, 1998: 

Kame 

Ken6 Stcichen~') . . , . . 
Roland de Kergorlaiy(') 
Joachim Krijske'" . . . . .  
Ccorges ScIimjt(') . . . . .  
Cieorges Bollig(" . . . . .  
Paul-Henri Dcnuit(2) . . .  
Heriri Gcrincauxi') , . . 
Kichard Goblct d'Alviella'') 
Marco Goeler''' . . . . .  
Joscph Gonner(3) . . . . .  
James Hallett(3' . . . . .  
Can dace .I ohnson(" . . .  
Rayinond ffirsch' ' ) . . .  
Murtina Maas(') . . . . .  
Paul MeycIs(') . . . . .  
Erik Ouistgaard") . . . . .  
Gaston Reincsch' I )  . . .  
Victor Kodc') . . . . . . .  
PhiIippe Sahut d'1zard2) . 
Gaston Schwertzer(') . . .  
Ekkchai-d Storck") . . .  
E Otto W c n d P  . . . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. *  . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. .  * .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. . . .  

. .  * *  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(1)  Appointed or elec~cd hy the shai-choldcrs based on a proposal hy Class R Shntcholders. 
(2) Elected by ttic shareholders based on a proposal by Class A Sharcholdcrs. 
(3) Emplo>cc rcpresentalive. 

Position 

. Chaii-inan 

. Vice Chairman 
, Vice Chairman 
. Vice Chairman 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Dircctor 
. Director 
, Ilirector 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Oirector 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
. Director 
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The pi-cscnt principal occupation and employment and educational histories of the members of the 

Re& Steichen, born 27 November. 1943. Mr. Stcichcn bccamc ii Director on 1 June, 1995. Hc was 
elected Chairman o n  IS April. 1996. Prior to that time he was ;-I member of the Luxembourg government 
(.1.954-1993) and member o f  t h c  European Cornmission ( I  !W-~lO!l5). He is currently a senior partner of  the 
law fii-m Arciidt QL Medernach. and mcinbcr of the bars of I.uxcnibc,ui-g and  Brussels. He is also a nicnibcr 
of thc Eoard of Directors of Banquo Tntcrnationale i Luscmhourg, CL.T-Ufa and Luxempart S A .  Mr. 
Steichen ctudicd law and political science i n  Aix-en-Provence and Paris. He graduated with ii degree in law 
anci also earned the final dcgrcc in economics and finance from the Institut d’Etudes Politiqucs of Paris. 

Roland de Kergorlay, born S October. 1926. Mr. cic Kergorkiy became a Director o n  1 March, 1985. He 
was re-elected Vicc-Chairni:iii on 17 April, 1989. Mr. de Kergorlay is also a member of thc Board of YA- 
TV (Young Asia Television) (Sri I m k a ) .  Mr. de Kergorlay graduatcd with a dcgree in economics I‘rom 
McCJl University (Canada) and also received an MPA from Haivard University (U.S.). 

Joachim Krijske, born 19 January, 1044. Dr. Kriiske became a Director on 7 July, 1994. He was elected 
Vice Chairman on IS April, 1990. Dr. Kroskc is ii member of the Board of Managcmcnt and Chief 
Financial Officer of D C L I ~ S C ~ C  Tclc kom. Dr. Ki-ijskc gr;iduated with a degree in business administration and 
a doctc)i-atc in political science from the University of F1-ankfurt (Gcmianp). 

Georges Schmit, born 19 April, 19-53. Mr. Schmit became a Director on  12 November, 1992 and w;is 
clected Vice C’hairmaii on 29 May, 1997. Mr. Schmit is Secretary Gcncl-al of the Ministry nf Economy, 
Luxembourg. (:hainnan of SNCI. Director of K E E ,  Vice Chairman of the Board of Arbed S.A. and ii 

Director of Paul Wiirth S.A. Lusernbourg. Mr. Schrnit graduated with R dcgrcc in economics from thc 
Catholic University of Louvain (Belgium) m d  an M.A. in Economics from the University of Michigan 

Gcorges Bollig, boi-n 2 November, 1947. Mr. I3ollig became a Dircctoi- on 17 April, 1989. Mr. Rollig is 
tlic: Executive Director of SNCI-Luxembourg and ii member of the Boilrd o f  nircctors of Cargolux Airlines 
Internalional S.A. and Paul Wiii-th S.A. Luxernhoui-g. Mr. Bollig graduated with il degree in economics 
fi-om University of Nancy (France). 

Paid-Henri Dcnoit, born 14 July, 1934. Mr. Denuit bccamc ii Director on 12 December, 1991. He is a 
nicmber o f  the Board of Directni-s and the General Managcmcnt Committee of‘ ‘Tractcbel (Belgium), 
Mmaging Dircctor of Coditel S A .  (Bclgium), Chairman of the Board of Directors of Worldcom SA. 
(Belgium), Director of Chdcnet S.A. (Belgium)+ Chairman of thc Board of Directors of Datatrak S.A. 
(Belgium), Director of United States Cellulai- Corporation (U.S.) and Director of Prime Cable Group 
(U.S.). MI-. Dcnuit graduated with degrees in law from Universite I ,ibrc de Bruselles (Belgium). 

Hcnri Germeaux, born 21 Novcmbcr, 1440. MI-. Gcrmcaux became a Director cui 15 April, 1996. 
Mr.Gcrmeaux is the Deputy Chief Executive Officer and nircctor of Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de 
I’Etat, 1.uxcmbourg. Mr. Gcrmcaus graduated ~ i t h  a degree in economics from H.E.C. (France). 

Richard Goblet d’AlvieIla, born 6 J u ~ ,  1938. Mr. Goblet d’Alvicll;i bccamc a Director on 15 April, 1998. 
Mr. Chblct d’Alviella is the Administratcur ddligue of Sof‘ina S.A., ii Director of ADSR Tclecommunica- 
tion and ii Director of Tractcbel S.A. MJ-. Goblet d’Alviclla graduated with a d ~ g r c c  in economics 
(Commercial Engineer) from the Univcrsite Libre de Bruxclles (Belgium) arid also holds an M RA fi-om 
Harvard University (U.S.). 

Marco Goeler, born 17 July, 1963. Mr. Goclcr had initially served ils nircctor from 7 July, 1994 to 
26 October 1095 and wiis reappointed to the Board o n  30 October, 1997. Mi-. Gocler is an inspcctor at 
SNC1-Luxembourg. Mr. Goclcr graduated with ii degree in cconomics from the Ecolc dc Cornnierce el de 
Gcstion (Luxembourg). 

Joseph Gonner, born 10 October, 1953. MI-. Gonncr became a Dii-cctor on 15 April, 1989. Mr. Gonrier 
has bccn an enginccr at SES siricc IOSS. Mr. Gonncr graduated with a dcgrcc in engineering from the 
Fedei-a1 Institute of Technology (ETIJ) in Zurich (Switzerland). 

James Hallett, lwi-n 9 March. 1944. Mr. Hallett hccamc ii Director on 15 April. 1996. Mr. llallctt has 
been a senior satellite controller at SES since 1988. Mr. ITallctt holds a Highel- Technical Certificate in 
clectronics (HTC) from I-lighbury Collcgc (U.K.). 

Board arc as follows: 

(U.S.). 



Candace Johnson, horn 20 December, 1952. Ms. Johnson becamc a Director on 15 April, 1988. 
Ms. Johnson is president and founder of Europe Online A.s.b.l., foundcr and Director of Loral-Orion 
Europc CimbH, Director of FMN, founder and speaker of the Board of Directors of the Global 
‘ielecoiiimunications Network (London/Cologne) and a mcmber of the Supervisory Board of Starburst 
Comniunications Inc. (U.S.). Ms. Johnson was also Vice President of Government Affairs and Telecommu- 
njcations Policy of Iridium L.L.C. (U.S.) from 1994 to 1996 and the founding President of VATM. 
Ms. Johnson graduatcd with a B.A. from Vassar College (U.S.), an M.A. from Stanford University (U.S.) 
and the University of Sorbonne (France). 

Raymond Kirsch, born 18 January, 1942. Mr. Kmch became a Director on I March, 1985. Mr. Kirsch is 
President and Chief Executive of Banquc et Caisse d’Epargne de I’Etat, Luxembourg, Vicc Chairman of 
the Conseil d’Etat and a rncmber of thc Board of Directors of Bourse dc Luxembourg, La Lux- 
embourgeoise, CLT-Ufa, Cargolux Airlines International S.A., Paul Wiirth S.A. Luxembourg and 
SIDMAR. Mr. Kmch graduatcd with a degrcc in law and in economics from Univcrsiti Libre dc Bruxelles 
(Belgiuoi) and Institut d’Etudcs Politiques (France). 

Martha Maas, born 24 May, 1964. Ms. Maas becamc a Director on 15 April, 1996. Ms. Maas has been 
Senior Accountant of SES since 1992. Ms. Maas graduated with a degrce in tax law and accounting 
(Gchilfin in steucr-und wirtschaftsberatenden Berufen) from thc Steuerbcraterkammcr (Germany). 

Paul Meyers, born 12 March, 1937. Mr. Meyers became a Dircctor on 1 March, 1985. Mr. Meyers is 
Managing Director at Ranque Gknirale du Luxembourg S A . ,  Chairman of thc Luxembourg Bankers’ 
Association and Vice Chairman of the Luxembourg Charnbcr of Commerce. Mi .  Meyers graduated with a 
degree in law arid political science in Nancy (France) and Paris (France). 

Erik Quistgaard, born 3 June, 1921. Mr. Quistgaard hecamc a Director on 1 March, 1985. Retired since 
1985, MI-. Quistgaard was previously General Director of the European Space Agency and a member of 
the Roard of Directors of LEG0 (1974-1991). Mr. Quistgaard graduatcd with a degree in Mechanical 
Engineering (M.Sci) from the Technical Univcrsity of Denmark and participated in an AMP at I Iarvard 
University (U.S.). 

Gaston Reinesch, born 17 May, 1958. Mr. Reincsch was appointed Director on 11 June, 1998, effective 
1 July, 1998. Mr. Reinesch is General Administrator of the Ministry of Finance, Luxembourg, Professor of 
Economics at the lcgal and cconomics department of the Centre Univcrsitaire de Luxembourg and a 
mcmber of the Board of Directors of SNCI, Arbed, P&T and Europcan Investment Bank. MI. Reinesch 
was economic advisor at the Chamber of Commerce of Luxembourg from 1984 to 1989 and Cioverrimcnt 
Commissioner with the Banque Internationale i Luxcrnbourg from 1989 to 1995. Mr. Rcinesch graduated 
with ii degree i n  cconomics from the London School of Economics (U.K.). 

Victor Rod, born 26 April, 1950. Mr. Rod became a Director on 23 Novcmber, 1995. He is President of 
Commissariat aux Assurances, Chairman of the Board of Directors of Banque ct Caisse ‘d’Epargne de 
I’Etat, 1-uxembourg and a mcmber of the Cnnseil d’Etat. Mr. Rod graduatcd with a degrce in law from the 
Univcrsity of Nancy (France). 

Philippe Sahut d’lzarn. born 26 July, 1935, Mr. Sahut d’lzarn became a Director on 15 April, 1993. 
Mr. Sahut d’1zarn was President of Bancxj Communication until 1994, Directeur Ginera1 Adjoint of Havas 
until 1997 and is currently Associk gdrant of PSI-Conseil. Mr. Sahut d’Ixarn graduated with an cngineering 
dcgi-ee from Ecole Polytcchniquc (France). 

Gaston Schwertzer, horn 18 J d y ,  1932. Mr. Schwcrtzer became a Dircctor on 12 Scpternber, 1992. 
Mr. Scliwertzer is currently Administratcur dklegud of Luxempart and Audiolux, mcniher of the Roarcl of 
Dircctors of Audiofina, Banque International de Luxembourg, Ccgcdel, SEO, and Paul Wiirth S.A. 
Luxcmhourg. Mr. Schwertzer graduatcd with a degree in law from thc University of Grenoble (Francc). 

Ekkehard Storck, horn 20 June, 1933. Dr. Storck became a Director on 1 March, 1985. Dr. Storck was 
the Managing Director of Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. until 1 July, 1998. Dr. Storck graduated with a 
degree in law from the University of Hamburg (Germany). 

E Otto Wendt, born 25 February, 1937. Mr. Wendt became a Director on 17 April, 1990. Mr. Wendt is 
the Managing Director of Dresdner Bank Luxembourg S.A. 



111 addition to the members set out above, Mr. Pierre Werner. rcmncl- 1,umnbourg Prime Minister, 
was appointed Honorary Chairman of  thc Board on 15 Api-il, I996 after serving for seven years as 
Chairman (1 989- 1996). 

Mr. Jean-Paul Zens is the Luxcmbourg Government Chmmissioncr who is entitled to participate in 
the incctings of the shareholdcrs. the Board and the Board comniittccs. 

No member of the Board directly owns any securities of the Company or is engaged in any unusual 
transactions (within the mcuning of the LuxSE Listing Regulations) with the Company. In addition, the 
Cmipaiiy has riot madc any loans o r  guarantees to any member of the Board. All mcmbers of  the Board 
can be contacted at thc registered office of the Company. 

Committees os the Board of Directors 

Thc Board has created thrcc committees, the Burcau of the Board, the Advisory Finance Committee 
and the Advisory Technical Committee. All committees arc chaircd by the Chairman of the Board. 

The Burcau of the Board is in charge of approving the following transactions or decisions madc by thc 
Management Committce: (i) transpnndcr agrecments; (ii) dettrmination of  rcrnuneration policies to be 
applied within the Company; (iii) approval of noli-budgeted specified capital invcstment projects above 
LUF S million and up t o  IUF SO million in caw of urgency; and (iv) other urgent matters, if the Board 
cannot he convened within a reasonable time frame. Such matters have to be reportcd to be the Board. 
The Bureau of the Board is comprised of Rene Steichcn, Paul-Henri Denuit, Roland de Kergorlay, 
Raymond Kirsch, Joachim Kroske, Georgcs Schmit and Ekkchard Storck. 

T h c  k a r d  may call upon the Advisoq Icinancc Committee to deal with spccial financial matters. The 
Advisory Finance Cornmittcc advises on the placcment of Company funds, on thc creation of pi-ovisions 
a i ~ d  on the conclusion of foreign exchange spot and forward transactions and positions, among other 
matters. The Advisoiy Finance Committcc is comprised of Rend Steichen, Georges Rollig, Raymond 
Kirsch, Paul Meycrs a n d  E Otto Wendt, all of whom (except Mr. Stcichen and Dr. Storck) are Luxem- 
hui-g-based bankers. 

The Advisoiy Technical Committcc deals with special tcchnical matters. The Advisoq ‘Iechnical 
Committee advises on dcvclopment of orbital positions and on ncw tcchnical activities and scrvices, as well 
as 011 procurement ol spacecraft and of launch services, among other matters. The Advisory Tcchnical 
Committee is comprised of Rend Stcichen. Paul-I Tcnri Denuit, Henri C’Icrmc;iux, Joseph Gonncr: Candace 
Johnson, Erik Quistgaard and Philippe Sahut d’lzarn. 

Thc Management Committee 

The Managcmcnt Committee w;is established by the Board in 1992. and is comprised of thc Director 
General, who serves as Chairman, and the Directors o f  the functional dcpartmcnts of the Company. The 
Board delegatcs to the Management Committee the daily management of the Company as well as thc 
rcprcsentation towards third partics in relation to such function. Furthermoi-e, thc Board mandates the 
Managcnicnt Committee with the preparation and planning of ovcrall policies and strategies of the 
Company as well as decisions reaching beyond the daily management for discussion and dccision by the 
Board. 

The following table provides certain information about the Management Committcc as of 5 July. 
1498. 

kea r 
Appointed to 
Management 

Name Current Position Committee Age - - 

Romain Rausch . . . . . . . . . .  Director General 1995 44 
Yvcs Elsen . . . . . . . . . . . .  Commcrcial and Marketing Dircctor I992 40 
Aldis Grinbergs . . . . . . . . . .  ‘I’echnical Director 1996 52 
Dean Cllrnstead . . . . . . . . . .  Director of Business Development 1998 42 
Jurgen Schulte . . . . . . . . . .  Director of Finance 1992 55 

The Management Committee officially meets once a week. although it typically meets on a daily basis 
to discuss ongoing daily rnanagemcnt issues. The prcscnt principal occupation and employment and 
educational histories of thc members of  the Managenicnt Committee arc as follows: 
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Romain Bausch, born 1953. Mr. Bausch became the nircctor General and the Chairman of the 
Managemcnt Committee in 1995, following a career in the Luxembourg civil service. Mr. Rausch occupied 
key positions in thc banking and media sectors and spcnt a five year term as a Dircctor and Vice Chairman 
of SES. Mr. Bausch graduated with a degree in cconornics (specialisation in busincss administration) lrom 
Univcrsity of Nancy (France). 

Yves Elsen, born 19%. Mr. Elsen became the Director of Commercial and Marketing in 1998. Mr. Elsen 
joined the Company in 1986 from IC1 plc where he worked in markctiiig positions. In 1989, Mr. Elsen 
bccame the Company Secretary. Mr. Elsen graduated with an MSc. in enginwring from the Federal 
Institute of Technology, Zurich (Switzerland) and an MEA from TNSEAD (France). 

Aldis Grinbcrgs, born 1946. Mr. Grinbergs bccame the Technical Director in 1996, having previously 
worked for Motorola Inc. and Tclcsat Canada in various opcrational and technical positions. 
Mr. Grinbergs had pi-eviously worked with SES as Technical Dircctor from 1985 to 1988. Mr. Grinbergs 
graduated with a dcgree in electrical tcchnology-electronics from the Kyerson Polytechnical Institute 
(Canada) . 

Dean Olmstead, born 1955. Mr. Olmstead became Director of Business Developmcnt in 1.998, having 
previously workcd for I Iughes and NASA in various new business development positions. Mr. Olmstcad 
holds :I dcgrcc in economics-mathematics from Western Washington University (U.S.), an MS in engineer- 
ing-economic systems from Stanford University. School of Engineering ( U S . )  and a PhD in cconomics at 
the American University (U.S.). 

Jiirgen Schulte, born 1943. Mr. Schulte became the Director of Finance in 1991. Prior to that time he 
worked for General Electric in various financial management positions in both the United States and 
Europe. Mr. Schulte graduated with a degree in Business Administration from the University of Miinstcr 
(Germany). 

No mcmbcr of the Managcmcnt Committee is engaged in any unusual transactions (within the 
rncaning of the LuxSE Listing Regulations) with the Company. All members of the Managcmcnt 
Committcc can be contacted at thc registered office of the Company. 

Directors and the Management Committee’s Cornpens A t’ ton 
The aggregate remuneration, including salary, bonuses and bcncfits in kind, paid by the Company to 

the membcrs of the Board and the Management Committee was LUF 89 inillion for the year endcd 
31 December. 1997. 

Other Employees 
Roland Jaeger, born 1952. Mr. Jaeger hccamc Secretary Gcncral in 1997. Prior to joining thc Company 

in Scptcmber 1995, Mr. Jaeger held the position of lcgal counsellor to the Directorate Gcncral of C X I ’  
(IWh-1995) and lcgal counsellor to the Directorate General of Entrcprisc des Postes Sr 
Tdldcommunications (Tmxcmbourg) (1980-1986). Mr. Jaeger holds a dcgree in law and a PhD in political 
scicncc h-om the Univcrsity of So rhnne  (Francc). 

Ken Saunders, born 1936. Mr. Saunders joined the Company in 1987 :IS Acounting Manager and 
bccainc the Treasurer of the Company in 1995. Prior to that timc, he was Director of Manpower Control of 
ITT Corp. (European headquarters). Mr. Saunders is an English chartcrcd accountant and is expectcd to 
rctirc at the beginning of 1.999. 

Employee Share Option Scheme 
In connection with the Combined Offering, the Company has established an cniployee share option 

scheme (the “Warrant Schcmc”) pursuant to which eligible employccs and members of thc Board will be 
granted ~ii i-rants that are convertible into FDRs beginning three years following the Closing Date of the 
Combined Offering. The number of warrants to which each employee will bc cnlitled will depend, in the 
case of all non-Dircctors of the Company, on seniority and salary level and, in thc case of Board members, 
on their seniority and position on the Board. Thc Company will notify eligible participants of thc number 
of warrants to which they are entitled prior to 17 July, 1998 and options to purchase warrants must he 
taken up by participants by 31 July, 1998. Options that are not taken up by such date will cxpirc. The cost 
to thc Company for the Warrant Schcmc will not exceed LUF 150 million, which represents a conversion 
price pcr warrant that will bc approximately 15 per cent. below thc Offcr Price per FDR in the Combined 
Offering. 

The Company may also consider establishing an additional employee share option plan in thc future. 
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SELLING SHAIWHOLDERS 

' lhe FDRs being sold in the Combined Offering are being offered by all of thc Company's sharehold- 
ers named hclow cxcept Romain Bausch, Yvcs Elscn and Jiirgen Schultc (collcctively, the "Selling 
Sharcholdcrs"). The Company will not rcccivc any of the proceeds of the Combined Offering. In addition, 
certain Selling Shareholders have grantcd the Joint Global Coordinators an option for 30 days to purchasc 
up to an additional 755,183 FDRs at the initial public ol'fering price pcr FDR, less the selling concession, 
solcly to cover over-allotments, if any. Thc table below sets forth ccrtain information regarding thc 
owncrship of thc Share Capital of the Company bcforc and after the Combincd Offering, and assumes that 
the Over-allotment Option is not exercised. 

Effective Share Ownership 
prior tu the Combined OfTering 

Econumic Voling 
Niitnber Interest Interest 
of Rcprcsentcd Rcpreseiited 
Shares by Shares by Shares 
Held Ileld"' Beld'?l 

Number of 
Shares 
Transferred 
to the 
Fidiiciary 
Against 
Issuance 
of FnKs 

A Shares 
Ilcutschc lclckom . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,448.000 20.00% I0.00G 1.241.000 
Drcsdncr Bank Luxenihout-g S . / L ' ~ ' ' ' ~  . . . . . . . . .  3.528,000 0.479 7.58% 588,000 
Sl-li\ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.735.000 X.hO".h 6.9S'Z 539,000 
C.E.F. (Tractebel) S.A. and Telfin S.A.((" . . . . . . .  3,091,000 8.30% 6.64% 51 6,000 
Moon  Lakc S.A..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.900,OOO 5.10% 4.08% 3 17.000 
Deutsche Dank Luxemhourg S.A.") . . . . . . . . . .  1.8!16,000 5.00 5; 4.07% 31 6.000 
L.uxernpart S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I,hOh,OOO 4.3 1 c$ 3.454 268.000 

2.6.1 $6 202,00 Sofina S.A. and 'liufidce . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.215,OOO 1.26'2 
Uanquc (Xnkralc du Luxembourg S.A.(5''X1 . . . . .  1,164,000 3.135, 2.50% 194,000 
Benson Holding S A .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,031.000 2.77% 2.21% 172.000 
Audiolux S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  YS0.000 2.55% 2.045% 15!).000 
Aachener Munchener (AMB) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  938,000 2.0456 158,000 
Space Equipment S.A. . . . . . . . .  I .  1 2 4  86.000 
NatinvcsL S.A.H , . , , , . , , , , . . 0.96% 0.76"i 59.000 
Sofiriirn S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.915, 0.73% 56,OOO 

0.58% 45.000 SG Capital Dcvcloppement'" . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  269,000 0.72% 
Ulster Television plc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  167,000 0.45% 0.36% 28,000 
A dc 1,iedekerkt: Heaulorl . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  55,000 i).iw 9,000 
Lurodistributioii (UAP) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26,000 0.07% 5,000 
Eurodeveloppement (UAP) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26,000 0.07% 5,000 
1-1 de Liedekerke Beaufort . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.000 0.02% 0.02% I .on0 
RITA . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,000 0.02% 0.01 4b 1.000 
Yves Elsen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.000 0.01% 0.0 I G/b 
Romain Bausch . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.000 
.I urger1 Schultc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.000 0.0 1 %  0.01 
BCEE'")("'J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  620,500 I .67% 1.33 620,i ()( 1 
SNCl"'). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  620,500 1.679 1.33% 070,500 
UCEE. as Fiduciary I - 
X.)tiIl A Shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31,034,000 83.33'Z 66.67% 6,206.000 

UCEE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7,759:ooo 8.33% 16.67% 
SSCI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.758,000 8.3356 I6.07c; 

Total B Shares - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15,517,000 10.07% 33.335 

Total Sharcs - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36,551,000 100.003 100.00% 

I 

0.01 5 0.01 ?;'c - 

- 

- - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

R Shares 
- 
r- - -- 

Effective Share Ownership after 
Comnletion of the Combined Offerinn 

Economic Voting 
Tntercsl Interest 

Number Represented Represented 
of FDRs/ by FnRs/ hy I.'l)Rs/ 
Shares Shares Shares 
Held Held"' Held'21 

7,758.500 20.83% 
2,466,000 6.62% 
2.606.000 7.24% 
2,57s,ooo 6.91 % 
1,583.000 4.251 
1,5x0.000 4.24% 
I ,33s,000 3.59%; 
1,013,000 7.72% 

970,000 2.602 
859,000 231 Yo 
7!)1,000 2.12% 
790,000 2.12% 
435,000 1.17% 
207,000 o m h  
282,000 0.70 Q 
724.000 0.60%, 
130,000 0.37% 
56,000 0.1 2L;c 
2 I,000 0.0hQ 
2 1,000 0.06 4.;. 
6.000 0.025; 
5,000 0.01 n 
4,000 0.01 5 
3.1)00 0.01 %; 
3,000 0.01 Yo 
- 0.00% 
- 0.00% 

5,128,500 13.77% 

3 I,034,000 X3.?3% 

16.67% 
5.30% 
5.79% 
5.53% 
3.40% 
3.39% 
2.874 
2. I 8 4  
2.08% 
I .85% 
I .70% 
1.70% 
0.93% 
0.64% 
0.61"i 
0.48% 
O.BOQ 
0.10% 
0.055 
0.0S'% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01 ':% 
0.Ol % 
O.OO%, 
0,005 

I I .02'% 

00.67% 

7.759,OOO 8.33% 16.6775 
7,758,000 S33% 16.67% 

15.517,OOO 16.67% 33.33% 

46,51.000 100.001& IO0.00Q 

( I )  Each U Share is entitled to 40 pcr cent. of the dividends o r  liquidation procccds pavahlc pcr A Share. 
(2) Each A Share and B Share is entitled to one vote. 
(3) In the Combined Offering, Ikutschc Tclckom will sell 1,241,000 FIlRs in rcspcct of 1.251.000 of its 7,448,000 A Shares. In order to restore its 

16.67 per cent. interest in the Shares, Deutsche .Iklckom will sirnultaricously (i) pui-chase 1,077,500 PDRs offered hy thc Joint Global 
Coordinarors a n d  the Lead Manager o f  the Luxembourg Offering in the Designated Oliering and (ii) exercise an option to purchase an 
additional 471,000 A Shares from Dresdner Uank Luxcmhourg S.A.  Dculschc Tclckom will own 7.758.500 FDKs and/or A Shares after 
completion of the Combined Offering and the exei-cise of its option to purchase A Shares from Dresdner Bank Luxembourg S.A. See 
"Surnrnary - The Combined Ollering" and "Subscription and Sale". 



(4) ,\ffiliate of Kleinwoi-t 13enson Limited, one of the Joint Glohal C:oordinaiors. Drcsdner Rank Luxembourg will sell 588,000 of its 3528,000 
FDRs in the Combined Offering and, upon the exercise of Deutsche klekom’s option to put-chase 474,000 Sharcs, will own 2,466,000 FDRs 
md;or A Shares alter completion of the Combined Offering. 

( 5 )  Follouing thc cnmplction of thc Cornliincd Offcririg and thc cxcrcise crf ihr: Over-allotmcni Oplion, Dresdner Bank Luxembourg S A . ,  Uanque 
Ginitale du Luxenibout-g S.A. and SG Capital Developpernetit will own 1,813,000 A Sharcs, 884,591 A Shares and 207.226 A Shares. 
rcspectively. 

( 6 )  Affiliatrd companies. 
(7) Alliliate of Deutsche Bank AG London, one of the Joint Global Coordinators. 
(8) Lend Managei- of the Luxcmhourg Oifering. 
(9) 1.uxcrnhourg public institutions. 
(10) I n  its capacity as a Selling Shareholder. BCEE is the Senior Co-Lead Manager of the Luxembourg Offering. 

Certain Rclationships and Hclatcd Party Transactions 

As of 33 March, 1998, the Company had outstanding two syndicated hank loans with Dcutschc Bank 1,uxcni- 
bourg, as agent, and one syndicated bank loan with Dresdner Bank Luxembourg, as agent. In addition, certain of the 
Company’s shai-choldcrc haw provided a suhordinated loan to the Company. The Company has cstablishcd a 
rcvolving facility with RCEE as well as a syndicated loan facility with Dresdner Bank Luxembourg, which has been 
fully undcrwrittcn by certain shareholder banks. All of the Company’s loans from its shareholders were negotiated on 
an arms-length basis. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rcsults of Operatioiis 
- Liquidity and Capital Resourccs - Indcbtcdncss of the Company” and “Subscription and Salc”. 



UESCRIP’I’ION OF SHARE CAPITAL 

The following description summariscs several aspects of the Company’s Share Capital, which is 
comprised o f  A Shares and B Shares (togcthcr, the “Sharcs”). This description must be read in conjunc- 
tion with the Articles and the relevant Luxembourg lcgislation and especially thc law of  10 August, 1915, as 
amended. on commercial companies (“Luxembourg Company Law”). 

Corporate Purpose 

The main purpose of the Company as defined in Article 2 of the Articles is: 

(i) to establish, use and operate a satellitc system within the framework of one or several Luxem- 
bourg concessions; 

(ii) to establish one or scvcral fixed or mobile ground stations which contribute to the operation of 
satellites and ensure the tracing, tclcmetering and remote control of these satellites as well as the 
communication links with them; and 

(iii) to conduct any other services relating thereto. 

General 

‘I’he authorised Share Capital of the Company is LUF 5,250,000,000. The subscribed capital of the 
Company is set at four billion four hundred and sixty-ninc million Luxembourg francs (LUF 4,469,000,000) 
consisting of forty-six million five hundred and fifty one thousand (46,551,000) Shares with no par value, all 
of which have been fully paid up and arc divided into two categories of Shares, 31,034,000 A Shares and 
15,517,000 B Shares. 

On 15 April, 1996, the shareholders’ meeting incrcascd the authorised Share Capital from LUF 
4,500,000,000 to LUF 5,250,000,000. Scc “- Increase and Reduction of Capital”. 

On 20 May, 1.998, the par value of the Shares was abolished, 2,482 B Shares were converted into 
1,241 A Shares, the then remaining 12,415 B Shares were divided into 15,517 B Shares and each Share 
then in issue was divided into 1,000 Shares, resulting in 31,034,000 A Shares and 15,517,000 B Shares. 

Subsequent to these amendments, the economic right of one R Share compared to one A Share has 
been reduced from 50 per cent. to 40 per cent. See “- Payment of Dividends” and “- Liquidation of the 
Company”. 

Founder Shares 

Fifty Founder Shares without voting rights have been issued to Whitehead. These are discussed under 
“Dividends and Dividend Policy - Founder Shares”. Scc “Business - Legal and Regulatory 
Proceedings”. 

F0l-m 

The Shares arc exclusively held in registered form. Pursuant to Article 39 of Luxembourg Company 
I,aw, the Company holds a I-egister of shareholders in which all holders of registered shares are registered. 

Tkansfer and Restrictions on Ownership of Shares 

A Shares are freely transferable. R Shares may only be issued to or held by Luxembourg public 
institutions or by entities or organisations which are controlled directly or indirectly. by such institutions, 
whether by way of voting rights or otherwise. Transfers of Shares are made by inscription thereof in the 
Company’s register of shareholders. 

Ownci-ship of Sharcs is subject to the following restrictions: 

(i) without the prior written consent of the Government, no one may hold, directly or indircctly, 
more than I O  per cent. o f  the Sharcs; 
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(ii) without the prior writtcn consent of the Government, shareholders who are directly or indirectly 
users L)f the transmission capacities of the Company may not together hold more than 30 per 
cent. of the Shares: and 

(iii) without the prior written consent of the Government, shareholders who ai-c dircctly or indirectly 
manufacturers of satellites or satellilc launch vchiclcs or satellite operators may not together hold 
~ J ~ O K  than 30 per cent. of the Shares. 

In tlic event of  a Ixeach of one of the thresholds by a pcrson or by persons acting in concert or under 
the common control of one person, the ownership of the Shares exceeding the threshold will not be valid 
against the Company and no right with respect to such Sharcs, including voting rights or entitlements to 
dividends and other distrihutions, will be rccogniscd. 

The Fiduciary bcncfits from an authorisation of the Government in respect o f  its holding of A Shares 
in rcspcct of which it issues the FDRs. Pursuant to the Articles. the holding of FDRs will not be considered 
an indirect holding of Shares as described in the restrictions set out above unless a holdcr of FDRs 
requires the Fiduciary to withdraw A Shares against thc surrender of its FDRs or resolves to cause the 
exercise of the voting rights attaching to the A Shares underlying its FDRs. 

If there is a breach of a threshold or of a provision concerning ownership and iiotwithstanding any 
other right, the Company shall notify the sharcholdcr of record or, if applicable, the person having 
requested thc rcgistratioii into the shareholders’ register by registered mail. The relevant person shall 
benefit fimm il period of one  month from the mailing date of the notification to reduce or transfer his 
ownership. Failing that, the Company may either rcdccni or sell the relevant Shares t o  one or several 
buyei-s 01- transfer the relevant Sharcs to the Fiduciary against the issuance of FDRs and redeem or sell the 
FDRs. 

The net proceeds attrihulahle to the pcrson whosc Shares have so bccn rcdccined or sold shall he 
equal to 75 per cent. of the LuxSE mid-market price on tlic date of thc 1-cdcmption or of the LuxSE price 
obtained for the sale of the FDKs or of the mathematical value of the Shares sold by private agreement as 
of the date of sale, iT1 each case less costs and cxpcnscs of the Company. 

Disclosure uf Interests 

Pursuant to applicable 1.uxembourg law, R holdcr of Sharcs is 1-cquircd to disclose the percentage of 
voting 1-ights held by it to the Company and thc Commissariat aux Bourscs in Luxembourg within seveii 
calendar days of when the holders knows or should have known that such percentage, as a result of an 
acquisition: sale or other transfer of Shares, equals, exceeds or falls below 10 per cent., 20 per cent., 3 3 Y ~  
per cent., 50 per ccnt. or 66% per cent.: of the total voting rights of the Company existing at the time 
thereof, subject to certain cxccptions. The pcrccntage of voting rights hcld is calculated by inclucling voting 
rights directly and indirectly controlled by any such holdcr. F:iilmc to comply with such disclosure 
obligations is subjcct to criminal sanction and suspension of voting rights until such disclosure is duly 
made. Holders or bcncficial owners of the Shares and holders or beneficial owners of FDRs are subject to 
this disclosure obligation with respect to the Shares and to Shares underlying the FDRs so held directly or 
heneficially by such holders or beneficial owners. 

Indivisibility 

Each Share is indivisible, and the Company will recogriise only one holder per Share. In case the 
ownership of ;I Sharc is divided bctwccn two or more pcrsons or is disputed, the persons claiming 
ownership of thc Sharc will have to name one single proxy to rcprcscnt such sharc in tlic relations with the 
Company. Failure to appoint such proxy triggcrs the suspension of the cxcrcisc uf all rights attached to 
such Sharc. 

Voting Rights 

appointing a proxy who need not bc a shareholder. 
Each A Share and each B Sharc is cntitled to onc vote. A shareholder may appear at any meeting by 
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In order t o  he authorised to attend and vote at any meeting. shareholders must he recorded in the 
shareholders’ register at least eight Luxembourg business days prior to any such meeting. All transfers o f  
Shares shall be suspcndcd during that period. 

General Meetings of Shareholders 

The Aiinual General Mccting of shareholders is held on the 15th day of April of cach ycar, or if such 
day is a legal holiday, on the next following business day. A inccting may he called by the Board at any 
time. IJpon request of shareholders holding an aggregate o f  one-fifth of all Shares, the meeting shall, 
within 30 days. be called by thc Chairman or, in case of impediment, by one of the vice-chairmen. 

Thc shareholders will be given notice of the mccting at least 21) days prior to the holding O F  the 
niccting hq‘ registered mail. The meeting is called at the I-egistered office or at any other place in 
Luxcmhourg, as indicated in the notice. 

The meeting may validly deliberate only i r  one-halC of cach of the A Shares and R Shares :ire present 
or represented. I n  the event that the required quorum has not bccn rcachcd, the meeting will he 
reconvened in accordance with the terms sct out in the Articles and may validly dcliherate without 
considcration of the number of Shares present or rcprcscntcd. 

The resolutions of the meeting are adopted by n simplc niajoi-ity vote. oxccpt that ii majority of more 
than two-thirds of the votes is rcquired for: ( i )  the approval of the halance sheet and thc profit   id loss 
account; (ii) the distribution of niore than 75 per cent. of the annual pmlit; (iii) the election of the 
directors and auditors; (iv) the dctcrrnination of their term (of office. number and remuneration; and 
(17) the approval or ratification of the following resolutions passed by thc Roard: 

(i) 
(ii) thc conclusion of ii concession agreement and thc acceptance of the Cahicr des Charges; 

(iii) appointment and dismissal of rncmbcrs of thc Management Committee; 

(iv) the appi-oval or interim dividends; and 

(v) thc development of new activities within the framework of the Companv’s purpose. 

Aincndments to the Articles arc subject to 21 more than two-thirds majority of the Shares prcscnt or 
represented at an extraordinal-y gcncral meeting of shareholders. Any such aincndincnt requires in 
addition the approval of thc C;ovcriimcnt. 

the issue o f  Shares within the authoriscd capital; 

Payment of Dividends 

Annual Dividends arc dccidcd upon hy the Annual Gcncl-a1 Mccting of sharcholders. Payments of 
dividends shall be niadc sc) that payment on one B Share cqu;ils 40 pcr ccnt. of the payment on one A 
Share. For ST) long as thcrc shall he Founder Shares. thc total  payments in favour of the A Shai-cs and R 
Shares shall represcnt 95 per ccnt. of the total dividends, wilh tlic rcniaining 5 per cent. being retained in 
respect of the Founder Shares. Scc ”DivideIids and Dividend Policy”. 

Interim dividends may he decided and paid out by the Board i n  accordance with thc provisions of 
Luxemboui-g law and the Articles. subject to the ratification by a more than two-thirds ml-ljority vote at a 
shareholdcrs mecting. 

Piirchasc by the Company of its Shares 

The Company may rcpurchasc Shares and pi-chase FDRs within the limits and in accordance with 
the conditions set forth in article 49-2 of the Luxcinbourg Chnpaiy Law, which requires in part, Board 
approval. Currently. the Company does not own any o f  its Sharcs, but the Company will own 177,167 
FDRs as ii result of the Ernplovcc Offering for the purpose of the Warrant Scheme. See “Board of 
Ilircctors and Management - Employee Share Clption Scheme”. 

Ikpidation of the Company 

In case of  liquidation of the Company, the assets availahlc will first bc used for payment or clischai-gc 
of all liabilities, including thc payments to which the holders of Founder Shares may he cntitlcd (if any). 



The net proceeds will then be distributcd to the holders of the A Shares and the B Shares so that the 
payment on one B Share equals 40 per cent. of the payment on one A Share. 

Iiicrcase and Reduction of Capital 

The authorised and issucd capital of the Company may be increased or reduced by a resolution of the 
meeting of shareholders in accordance with the procedure set forth for the amcndmcnt of the Articles 
which requires a majority of more than two-thirds of thc votes, subject to the approval of the Government. 
Pursuant to Luxembourg Company Law, the Board may be authorised by an extraordinary general meeting 
to increase the share capital within the limit of the authorised share capital on one or several occasions 
within a maximum period of five years from the date of the corresponding publication in the Mkmorial C. 
Rccucil dcs Sociktes et Associations. 

Jn  the case o f  an issue of A Shares, holders of A Sharcs have the following preferential subscription 
rights: subjjcct to the threshold restrictions on shareholdings described above, holders of A Shares may, 
within a period of thirty days following the opening of thc subscription announced by a notice determining 
the duration o f  the subscription, subscribc in proportion to their rights to the A Shares or propose onc ur 
several candidates who fulfil the shareholding threshold restrictions to exercise the subscription rights. If 
the subscription rights arc no1 exercised or if the proposed candidates do not fulfil the shareholding 
threshold restrictions: tlic Board may limit or cancel the subscription rights of these shareholders. 

In the case of a capital increasc, thc holders of R Shares have a preferential subscription right for such 
number of new €3 Shares, resulting in the ratio of issucd A Shares to issued B Sharcs bcing maintained at 
2:l at all times. R Shares are issued at an issuing price cqual to 40 per cent. of the issue price of the A 
Shares. 

Under the current authorisation of the shareholders rnccting, 'the issued share capital may be 
increased by the Board to the amount of the authorised share capital within a period of five years from 
15 April, 1996. This period may be extended by the shareholders meeting for those Shares which the Board 
has not issucd during the five-year period in progrcss. The Board is further authorised to dctcrminc the 
terms of all subscriptions and to submit the issue of Shares to the payment of their accounting par value 
and of iiii issuing premium related to thc market value of the Shares at thc momcnt of the issue. Before 
issuing authoriscd shares: the Board shall inform all shareholders by notice published in thc Financial 
Timcs and the Luxemburger Wort. 
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TERMS ANI) CONDITIONS OF THE FIDUCLARY DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS 

The following ternis and cmnilitions which will apply to the Fiduciuy Depositary Receipts, together with the 
F i d u c i q  Deposit Agreement (subject to completion and amcnilment and excepting sentences in itulics), 
constitute u contract between the Holders (us defined below) unci the Fiduciary, und such terms und conditions 
will he enrlor.sed on each Fiduciary Depositaiy Receipt certificate: 

The Fiduciary Depositary Receipt(s) (the “FDK(s)”) evidenced by this certificate (the “Certificate”) 
is (are) issued in respect of one (or more) category A share(s) with no par value (the “A Share(s)”) in 
Societe Europeenne des Satellites (the “Company”) deposited on a fiduciary basis with Banque et Caisse 
d’Epargne de I’Etat, Luxembourg (the “Fiduciary”) pursuant and subject to a fiduciary deposit agreement 
dated 5 July, 1998 as amended from timc to time (the “Deposit Agreerncnt”). The Fiduciary has received 
and may rcccivc from time to time, as fiduciary assets, A Shares (the “Deposited A Shares”) from the 
holders of A Shares, from the Company or upon request of Holders and has, or as the casc may bc, will, 
upon registration of its name in the share registcr of the Company in respect of Deposited A Shares, issue 
a number of FDKs equivalent to the number of A Shares so dcposited in fiduciary deposit. 

The FDRs will be represented I y  a permanent global certificutc (the “Global Certijkate”) in hearer form, 
which will be deposited with u common depositary (the “Conimon Depositay”) for Cede1 Bank, socikti 
unonjrne (“Cede1 Rank”), und MoEan Girarunw k i s t  Cornpuny of New Njrk, Brussels orice, as operator o f  
the Eurocleur System (“Euroclear”), and any other clcaring sy.stem which may be selected from time to time hy 
the Fiduciary in agreement with the Cornpuny (together with Cede1 Bank and Eurocleur; the “Clearing 
Systems”). Except as set forth belolv, beneficid interests in the FDRs will be shown on, and transfers thereof will 
he cjjectcd only through, records tnuintuined by the relevant Clearing System. 

The Global Cert$cate will only be exchanged for certijicutes in definitive bearer form evidencing FDRs in 
the circumstances described below in whole but not in part. Subject to the terms and conditions liereof the 
Fiduciary hereby irrevocably imdertakes to deliver certricates evidencing FDRr in definitive bearer form in 
exchange [or this Global Certificate to perLsotts entitled to interests in this Glohul CertiJi:cute within 60 days in 
the event that: 

(i) either Cede1 Bank or Euroclear: us the cure muy he, announces an intention to cease to make their 
respective hook-enity systems avuihble for the F D f i  and no alternntive clenring system satisfoctor); to the 
Fiduciary is available within 60 d u y ;  or 

(ii) the IIolder of the Global Certificate is unwilling or unable to cntztinue as the Common Depositury and u 
successor Common Depositary is not uppointed by the E-iduciuty within 90 calendar days; or 

(iii) the Fiduciuly has determined that, on the occusion of the next payment in respect of the FDRs the 
Conipaiiy, the Fiduciary or its Agent would be required to mirke m y  iicduction or withholding from any 
payment in respect ofall  the FDRs which would not be required were the FDRs in definitive form. 

Rcfcrcnccs in thcsc tcrms and conditions (the “Conditions”) to the “Holder” of any FDR shall mean 
il pel-son holding a Cci-tificatc and whilc in global form. the holder of the Global certificate or, depending 
on the context, the owner of an interest in the Global Certificate. Rcfcrcnccs in these Conditions to an 
“owner of an interest” in the Global Certificate shall mean any pel-son who has an account with a Clearing 
System (collectively, “participants”) and whose account is credited b y  the relevant Clearing System with an 
interest in such Global Cel-tilicate, o r  any person on whose behalf a participant so holds an interest. These 
Conditions include summaries of. and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Deposit Agreement. 
Copies of thc Deposit Agrccmcnt arc available for inspection at the specified office of the Fiduciary and 
each Agent (as dcfincd in Condition 17). Holders are deemed to havc notice of and be bound by all of the 
provisions of the Deposit Agrccrncnt. Terms used in these Conditions and not defined herein but which are 
defined in the Deposit Agreement havc the meanings ascribed to them in the Deposit Agreement. 

1. Fiduciary Contract 

The Deposit Agrcement and each FDR together constitute a fiduciary contract (contrut 
fiduciuire) (thc “Fiduciary Coiltract”) hctwccn thc Holdcrs and the Fiduciary governed by the 
Luxembourg Grand Ducal Regulation or July 19, 1983 regarding fiduciary contracts of credit institu- 
tions (the “Grand Ducal Regulation”) undcr which the Fiduciary holds the Deposited A Shares and 

65 



its rights and bcncfits thcrcundcr on a fiduciary basis for the Holders of FDRs, and the Fiduciay 
accordingly undertakes to comply with thc fiduciary obligations set out in the Fiduciary Contract. 

2. Deposit of A Shares 

(A) After thc initial fiduciary deposit of A Shares, unless othcnvise agreed by the Fiduciary and 
the Company and subject to applicable law and the Deposit Agreement, only the following A Shares 
may be deposited on a fiduciary basis under the Deposit Agreement: 

(i) any  other A Shares in issue (including A Shares held in treasury by or on behalf of the 
Company); 

(ii) A Shares issued as a dividend, free distribution or bonus issue on Dcposited A Shares or 
otherwise as contcmplatcd in Condition 5; 

(iii) A Shai-cs subscribed or acquired by the Fiduciary for the benefit of Holders through the 
exercise of rights grantcd by law or distributed in rcspcct of Deposited A Shares as contcni- 
plated in Condition 7; and 

(iv) any A Shares issued by the Company to the Fiduciary for the bencfit of the Holdcrs in respect 
of Deposited A Shares as a rcsult o f  the introduction of a par value of the A Sharcs, any 
change in the par value or the subdivision, consolidation or other reclassification of Depos- 
ited A Shares or otherwise as contemplated in Condition 9. 

(E) The Fiduciary will issuc one FDR in respect of cach A Share accepted for fiduciary dcposit 
under this Condition. Under thc Deposit Agrccmcnt thc Company must info]-m the Fiduciary if any A 
Shares issued by it do not. by reason of the date of issue or othcnvisc, rank puri passu in all respects 
with the other Deposited A Shares in which case such shares may not bc deposited hereunder until 
siicli time as they do rank pari passu with Deposited A Shares. 

Subiect to the terms und conditions of the FDRs und of the Fiduciary Deposil Ageenzcnt, und to /he 
extent permitted by upplicnhle lutv, the Articles and the Contrat de Concessiori, iipon delivery to the 
Fiduciary (IJ; rimong other things, (i) the A Shares, (ii) the Accession Letter substantiully in the form of 
Schedule I to th.e Fiduciary Deposit Agreement, (iii) puynzcizt o f  nccessury stock lriinsfer or other tuxes or 
other Goverrtrnental charges or c h q e s  imposed by the LraSE or any other stock exchange and uny other 
fees, expenses and charges set forth in Condition 16 qf the FDRs und C1uu.w 10 o f  tlic Fiiiiiciuiy Deposit 
Agreement and (iv) ull necessaiy approvals from Ihe Government, the Fiduciary will accept the fiduciav 
truunsfer qfA Shares to it und will issuc Junher FDKs in definitive hearerjom ol; as long as the FDRs are 
held in the form qf’ the Global Certijkutc, cause thc Gbhul CerlQcate to 1~ increased hy lite relevant 
amount qf new FDR.!,. 

(C) ‘Ihe Fiduciary will refuse to acccpt A Shares for fiduciary deposit whenevci- i t  is notified in 
writing that the Company has restricted the transfer o f  such A Shares to comply with shareholding 
rcstrictions under applicable Luxembourg law (supported by an opinion of counsel) or that such 
deposit would result in any violation of applicable governmental or stock cxchangc rcgulations or the 
Articlcs of Association of the Company or the coritrut de concession bctwccn the Company and thc 
J..uxcmbourg Government and/or the cahier des charges attached thereto (thc “Concession Agrcc- 
ment”). Thc Fiduciary may also refuse to accept A Shares for fiduciary deposit if such action is 
determined in good faith by the Fiduciary to be required hecause of any requirement of law or of any 
government or govcmncntal authority, body or commission or stock exchange or under any provision 
of thc Deposit Agreement. 

3. Transfer of Ownership 

FDRs are in bcarcr fwm, cach issued in respect of one Deposited A Share. Title to the FDRs will 
pass by dclivciy. Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as rcquircd by law, the 
Holder of any FDR will bc treated as its absolute owner for all purposcs and shall not bc rcquircd lo 
deliver any proof thereof and notwithstanding any notice of ownership, trust or any interest thereon, 
thcft or loss thereof or any writing thereon and no  pcrson will be liable for so treating the Holder. 



For so  long 21s the FDRs t11-c helct in globid form, ownership c:)f intcrests in the Global Cerlificatc 
will be limited to participants in the Clearing System or to persons holding an intcrcst indirectly 
through par~icipants. Ownership uf interests in thc Global Certit‘icatc will be shown onlv on. and thC 
triinsfcr of those intcrcsts will he cffcctcd only through, records maintained by the rclcvilnt Clearing 
Systcitls (with respect to interests of participants) and thc rexords of pilrticipnts (with rcsptxt to 
intercsts of persons held by such participants con thcir bchalf). I’aymcnrs, transfers, withdrawals and 
other matters relating to interests in such Cilotial Ccrtificatc may he subjcct to  various policies and 
proccdurcs adopted by the relevant Clearing Sysicin from time to timc. None of thc Company. t h ~  
Fiduciay, thc Common Depositai? or anv (:If thcir agents will 1i:lvc any responsibility o r  liability for 
any aspect of tbc Clearing System o r  any participant’s rcccircls relating to, or for paymcnls or other 
distributions niiirie by any Clearing Systcni or participint rw account of, intcrests in thc Glol?al 
Ccrtificate, or for maintaining, supervising or rcviewirlg a n y  rccords relating tu such intcrcsts. 

4. Cash Uistrihutions 

Cl’hencvc1- the Fiduciary shall reciivc from the Ginipnny any cash dividend o r  other cash 
distributicin 011 OI- in respect 01.‘ thc Deposited A Shares (inclrrding any liquiciation surplus or other 
amcriints received i n  the liquidation of thc Cc.Jinpany) or othciwise in conncction with the Deposited A 
Sharcs, the Fiduciary shall as soon as practicable and in uny went not latcr than thc Luxemhaurg 
Rusintxs Day following the day of receipt thcrcof hy thc Fiduciary distributc i11ly such arnounts, in the 
currc.ncy receivcd from the Company, to r;ich Holder in proportiot~ to thc FDRs held by such Holder, 
subject to and i n  accordancc with the provisions of Conditions 8 and IO. 

5. Uistributions of A Shares 

Whenever the Fiduciary shall receivc from the Conip;iny any distribution in respcct of Deposited 
A Shares which consists of a dividend ill, or a lrcc distribution or bonus issue of A Sharcs or shall 
subscrihc or acquire A Shares by way of  rights or othenvisc whcre rhe subscription pricc of the A 
Sharcs is to be settled by ayplicalion of arnounts standing to thc credit of the profit and loss account, 
any carricd fcirward profit account o r  any rescwc or premium iiccwnt of thc Company at that time, 
lhs, Fiduciary shall issuc to the Holdcrs entirlcil thcreto, in proportion to thcir FDRs, adciitioiial 
FDRs iIi a n  amount equ;iI t o  the numbcr of A Shares received (and therealtcr held on a fidiiciav 
h c i 5  for the 1Tuliiers) pursumt to such dividend, distribution. issuc, subscription or acquisition. In 
such case the Fiduciary sliall increase Lhc number c)C FDRs evidenced by the Glr~bal Certificate, and 
ca~isc thc new FDRs to he ci-ctlitcd to thc rclevant I Toldcrs or issuc Ccrtificates in definitive bcmcr 
form in respect of FDRs. according to Ihc itianncr in which the I Ioldcrs hold thcir FDKs. Notwith- 
standing the forcgoing, if and in so far ;is the Fiduciaiy deems any such distribution to all or any 
Holticrs not to be reasanably practicnhlc (including, without limitation, owing to  fractions) or to he 
unl;twful (suppurtcd by opinion of financial adviscn or counsel, ;IS thc case may be) the Fiduciary shall 
sell such A S h a m  so receivcd (cither by public o r  private, sale and othcnvise at its discretion, subject 
to Luxembourg laws and replutions) and  distrihutc the net proCecds of such sale as a cash 
distribution pursuant to  Condilion 4 to the ITolders entitlcd thereto. 

6. Distributions other than in Cash or A Shares 

Whcncver the Fiduciary shall receivc from the Company any  diviticnd or distributirrn in sccurities 
(other than A Sharcs) or in othcr propcrty (other than cash) on or in rcspect of the Deposited A 
Shares, thc: Fiduciary shall distribrltc or causc tci \,e &ti-ibuted such securities or other propcrty to the 
I Iolders cntitled thercto, in proportion to lhc nuinhcr of their FURS, in any maniici that thc Fiduciary 
may reasonahly deem practicahlc for effcctiny mch distrihutinn. I r the holding of any such securities 
or othcr rights issued by the Company is sthiect to restrictions under q~plicablc law, rhc Concession 
Agreerncnt or the Articles of Association o r  may fill1 witliin the sc.crpc of any such restrictions U ~ I  

cschangc, ccmversion or otherwisc i n t o  such ;i security or right pursuant tn thcir terms, the Fiduciary 
shall hold such securities or other rights as fiidL&ry assets undcr a fitfnciaq contract o n  terms 
substantially similar to thcsi: Conditions (to hc agreed hctwcen the Fiduciilr): and Ihc Company) Cor 
the bcncfit of thc Holders entitled thci-cto in proportion to thcii- iiumber 0 1  FDKs. Providcd that if  the 
Fiduciary deerns a n y  such arrungerncnt and ciistriburioti to all o r  m y  H o l d ~ r s  not to be reasonahly 



practicable (including. without limitation, due to fractions) or to he unlawful (supported by opinion of 
financial ;idvisers or counsel. as tlic case may be), the Fiduciav shall sell the securities ur property so 
reccivcd, 01- any part thereof (eithcr by public or private sale and otherwise at its discrction, subject to 
L~i~~11ibot.1t-9 laws :ind rcgulaticms) and distrihute thc net procccds of such salc iis ;I cash distrihution 
pursuant lo Condition 4 to the Holders entitled thcrcto. 

7. Rights Issoes 

Subject to Condition 5 above. if and whenever the Coiiipany announces its intention to makc any 
offer or  invitation to the holders of A Shares to subscribe lor or to acquire A Shares. securities or 
other asscts b y  way of rights (the “Rights Assets”). the Fiduciay shall as soon as practicable give 
riotice t o  the Holders in accordancc with Condition 22 of such offer or invitation, specifying. if  
;ipplicahle. the carliest datc cstahlished for acceptance thcreof, the last date established for accept- 
ancc thereof (which shall be tlic same date as the corrcsponding date set by the Company for A 
sharcholclers or ,  i f  not reasonably practicable, as near as possible to such date). the manncl- and date 
by which payment (‘or value has to he madc to the Fiduciaiy (which shall be the same date as the 
correspunding date set by the Company for A shareholders) and the 111iiiinc1- by which Holdcrs may 
request the Fiduciaiy 10 exercise such rights on ;I fiduciay hasis as providcd below or, if such be the 
case. give clctails of  how the Fiduciary proposes to distribute thc rights or the p~-oceecls of salc. T h e  
Ficluciar?, will deal with such rights in the manner described hdow: 

(i) uiilcss othei-wisc set out herein, the Fiduciary shall makc arrangements whereby the Holders 
i i i : ~ ,  upon payment of the subscription price to the Fiduciary in the relevant currency 
togcther with such taxes m d  duties ;is may be due undcr applicablc law and complction and 
rciiiittance of such undertakings, declarations, certifications, coupons and other documents as 
the F id i i c iq  rniiy i-easonably require (to thc extent (a) the same or substantially thc same 
undertakings, declarations. certifications and othcr docunients are required b y  the Company 
o f  Iioltlers o f  A Shares cxcrcising such rights or (13) are requir-cd in order to comply with any 
app1ic:iblc securities or other la\vs and regulations), cause the Fiduciary to exercise such I-ights 
on ;I fiduciary basis in its nrimc (hut for the benefit o f  tlic relevant Holders). 

In case tlic Kights Assets consist in A Shares which rank pari pissic with the Deposited A 
Sharcs, I hc Fiducial-y shall iiicrcasc the numbcr of FDRs evidenced by thc Cilobal Ccrtificate 
by ii nuniber of FDKs equal to the numbcr o f  A Sharcs so subscribed or acquircd on a 
fiduciary basis and cause thc rights in  such Cilohal Certificate to be credited to the relevant 
Holders or issuc Certificatcs in definitive form in respect of such FDKs, according to the 
inanncr in which the I Iolders hold their FDRs. 

In ciisc the Rights Assets do not consist in A Shares which rank pari pmsu with thc Depositcd 
A Sliai-es, tlicn: 

if tlic Rights Asscts consist in securities cir other rights issued by the Conipany the holding o f  
which is subject to restrictions undcr applicable law, thc Concession Agl-cement or the 
Articles of Association or may fall within the scope of a n y  such restrictions upon exchange, 
conversion or othciwise into such a security o r  right pursnant tu thcit- terms, the Fiduciary 
shall hold such Rights Asscts as fiduciary assets under a fiduciary contract on terms 
substantially similar to thesc Conditions ( t o  he agrccd behvecn the Fiduciary and the 
Company) for the benefit of the Holders entitled thci-cto in proportion to their number of 
I-’DRs; 

for Rights ,Issets other than those referred to in a )  above, the Fiduciary sliall djstrihute such 
Rights Assets to the Holders entitled thcrcto, in proportion tu thc nurnber of thcit- FUIls, i n  
any miinner that the Fiduciary may reasonably deem practicable lor effecting such distribu- 
tion; or 

( i i )  if ;ind in so far as the Fiduciary is of the i-eason:ihlc opinion that any such arrangernciit and 
ciisli-ibution to all or any I Iolders is not reasonably practicablc (including. without limitation, 
owing to fr-;ictions) or is unlawful (supported by opinion of financial advisers or counscl, as the 
caw rnay bc), the Fiduciary will sell such rights (either by public or private sale or otherwise at 
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its discretion, subject to Luxembourg laws and regulations) and distribute the net proceeds of 
such sale as a cash distribution pursuant to Condition 4 to the Holders entitled thereto. 

I f  however, the Fiduciav shall bc of the reasonable opinion that it is unlawful or unpracticablc 
(suppoi-tcd by  opinion o f  counsel or financial advisers, as the case may be) (for reasons outside its 
control) to sell rights in the nianncr providcd ;ibovc the FiduciaiS; shall. as soon as i t  hccomcs w a r e  of 
such unlawfulness or irnpracticability, give notice to the I lolders and permit the rights to lapse. In the 
absence of its own wilful default, ncgligonce or bad faith, the Fiduciary will not he responsihlc for any 
failure to determine that it may be lawful or practicsble t o  make rights available to Holders in general 
or to  any Holder in particulai-. 

The Company has agreed in the Deposit Agreement that it will. unless prohibited by applicable 
law, give its consent to, and use all reasonable endeavours to allow for and facilitate any such 
distribution. sale or subscription by the Fiduciay or the Holders, as the case may be, contemplated in 
Conditions 4, 5: 6, 7, X and 9. 

If the Company ccrtifics to the Fiduciary that registration is required in any jurisdiction under 
any applicable law of the rights, securities or other property to he distributed under Conditions 4, 5, 6, 
7 o r  9 o r  thc sccui-itics t o  which such rights relate, in order for the Fiduciary to offer such rights or 
distribute such sccuritics UJ- other property to Holders, the Fiduciary will not offer such rights or 
distrihutc such securities or other property to Holders to which it is not so authorised to make such 
offer or distribution unless and until the Company notifics the Fiduciary that the ncccssary rcgistra- 
tion has been effected. Neither the Coinpany nor  thc Fiduciary shall hc liahlc to i-cgistcr such rights, 
securities or other property or the securities to which such rights relate (otherwise than in those 
jurisdictions in which the FDlis are admitled to olficial stock exchange listing or have, with the 
consent o f  the Company: been authoriseci for public offer where the laws of such jurisdictions require 
such registration prioi- t o  the distribution or offer of such rights, securities or other property or 
sccurities to which such rights relate) and they shall not be liable for any Ic)sscs, damages or expenses 
resulting from any failure to do so. 

8. Distributions by thc Fidiiciav 

(A) Anv distribution uiider Conditions 3, 5 .  6, 7 01- 9 will be made t y  the Fiduciaiy tu the I-Ioldc~s 
of  Certilicatcs in dcfinitivc form upon presentation arid surrcnder of the specified coupon or, in case 
of the final liquidation distribution, of the Certificate. In the case of the Global Certificate, the 
Fiduciary will make the distributions to the rclcvmt Cleariiig Systems and Holders will be credited in 
accordance with the operating rules and procedures of the relevant Clearing System. In case the assets 
t o  be distributed cannot under the operating rules and proccdurcs of 21 Clcaring System be distributed 
through such Clearing System, the Fiduciary shall, subject to Conditions 5, 6 ,  7 or 9, make the 
ncccssary arrangements to ensure distribution of such assets to the relevant Holders. The Fiduciary 
inriy deduct and retain from all moneys in respect of any FDK all fees, taxes, duties, charges, costs and 
cspcnses which may become or hmc bccomc payable under the Conditions, the Deposit Agreement 
or undcr applicablc law in respect of such FDR c)r the relative Deposited A Shares. 

(E) Delivery of any secui-itics 01- other property or rights other than cash shall be made as soon as 
practicable to the entitled Holdcr, subjcct to any laws or regulations applicable thercto. I F  any 
distribution made by the Company with respect to the Deposited A Shares and received by the 
Fiduciary shall rcniain unclaimed at the end of I O  years from the first date upon which such 
distribution is made av;iilablc to Holders in accoi-dance with the Conditions and subject to any 
applicable laws, all rights of the Holders to such distribution or the proceeds of the sale thereof shall 
be extinguished and the Fiduciary shall (except for any distribution upon the liquidation of the 
Company when the Fiduciary shall pay such amount to such charitable organisationls) as it may 
select) icturn the same to the Company for  its ciwn use and benefit aiid the Fiduciary shall have no 
obligation therefor or liability with respect thcl-cto. 

9. Capital Reorganization 

Upon the introduction of a par value o r  any change in the par value. sub-division, consolidation 
or other classification of Deposited A S h a m  or upoil m y  reduction or amortization of capital, or 



upon any reorganizaticsn, merger or consolidation of thc Company or tci which it i s  a party (except 
whcrc the Company is the continuing corporation), the Fiduciary shall, as soon as practic:ible, give 
noticc (of such cvcnr to the Holdcrs in accordance with Condition 22 and, in its discretion, may treat 
such event ;is a distribution iind coniply with the relcvant provisions of Conditions 4, 5, 6 and S with 
respect thci-cto, or may cxcculc and deliver addition:il FDlis in rcspcct o f  Deposited A Shares o r  ntay 
call for thc. siirrerlder of outstanding FDRs to bc cxchanged for ncw FDRs which rcflcct thc cI‘fcct of 
such change or t o  be stainpcd in the aypropriiitc inanner so as to ii~dicate the new iiuinbcr of A Shares 
and/or thc new securities underlying such outstanding FURS or niay adopt more than one ol these 
courses of acticrn, 

10. Withholding Tares and Applicable Laws 

(A) Payments to I Iolders of clividcnds i)r other distributinns ni;idc LO Holders in respcct of the 
Dcposiitcd A Sharcs will he sub,jject to deduction of Liurcmhourg and othcr withholding taxes, i f  any, at 
the npplicahle ratcs, If under Luxembourg tax law, ally applicable GU Directive or Regulation and/or 
any tax trcaty or othcr xrailgement betwccn the Grand Duchy of Lnxcmbourg and the country wittiin 
which the Holder o r  beneficial owner of FDRs is rcsident, a Huldcr or heneficial owi~cr o f  a FDR is 
cnritled to anti wishes to rcccivc the benefit of tlic application o f  an  exemption from, or ;i reduced rate 
(ji, withholding tax in relation t o  the payment of dividends or othcr distributions by the Conipany, the 
Holder CII-? as appropriate the heneficial owner, entitled to rcceive such dividcnd or other distribution 
must: subinit to the Fiduciary a ctuly conlpleted forin of ccrtification with rcspect to the tax rcsidcnce 
of such Holder vr bcneficial mwicr and other evidcncc required. Thc Fiduciary will forwerd any such 
ccrtilication or any such widencc rcccived hy it prior to the specified time to the Coinpany in order 
for thc Cornpany to cstnhlish the applicability. if any. of any exemption from or rcduccd rate of 
withhitlding tax under Liixerrilmurg tax law: any applicable EU Directive or Regulation anr1;ur any tax 
t.rcaty existiny bctwcen the Grand Duchy of Luxcmbourg and the country of t8x residence of each 
Holder or bcncficial owner of ;i FDR. For thi; purposes of swh certification. thc Company has agreed 
in the Deposit Agrcement in such circumstances, from timc to time, to apply, in each case with the 
;ipprtwal of the 1-clevant Luxcmbourg tax authorities. such cscmptions frum o r  rates of withholding as 
are prcscribcd by the rclcvant Luxembourg tax law: ~ipplical.rle EU Dircctive or lie,gulation or tax 
treaty. The Fidticiuy and the Company shall haw ti(? liability whatstmer in respcct of any cletermina- 
lion made hcrcunder by any in\: authority in rclation to thc appropriate rate of withholding applicable 
to any Holder or beneficial owncr of a FDR. Tn so relying o n  the evidence provided by such Holdcr or 
Ixneficial ctwncr in respcct (:)I‘ his identity and residency, the Cn1np;iny and the E-iduciary shall 1~ 
indcrnnified by such Holder or bcnefjcial owncr lrom any and all losses. cfanir.lgcs or expenses it incurs 
as a conscqiietice of such reliancc, Tn particular, jf thc Company is required by t h c  tax authorities of 
tho Grand Duchy 0 1  1.uxembourg in respect of such Holder or beneficial owner to deduct or withhold 
tax at the normal rate, such I-lolder or beneficial owner shall indeninify thc Compaily and the 
Fitiuciary against such differcncc in the relevant tax rates and cxpenses incurrcd. 

(T3) If any governmental or administrative aulhorisation, consent, registration or permit or any 
rcpcwt t o  any governmental or adniinistrativc authority is rcquired undcr any applicable law in the 
GI-and Duchy of Luxembuui-g in order for the Fiduciary to rcceive from thc Company A Shares to bc 
held under tlic Conditions or in ordcr Ibr A Shares, other securitics or other property to  bc 
distributccl uiidcr Condition 4, 5,  6 vr 9, o r  to he subscribed undcr Condition 7, the Company shall 
apply for such authorisation, consent, rcgistration or pcm’ilit or shall file such report within the timc 
pcriod rcquired undcr such law. In this conncctiun, the Cctmpatiy has undcrtaken in thc Dcposit 
Agrccinent, to thc extent reasctilably practicahlc, to take such action as inup be required in obtaining 
or filing the s;mc pi-cxkied that the Companv shall always apply fur such authorisation, consent, 
I-cgihtratinn ur pcrmit or mrikc such report if it applies for ;my o f  thc above or tnakcs any Such report 
in respect of the A Shar-cs. 

I n  cast thc Fiduciary determines that it mill not chtain any necessary anthorisatic,n, wnsent or 
permit or that it will nut seek such uuttlorisatinn, comcnt nr permit or file any such report whcrc filing 
hy thc Fiduciap is required, thc Fiduciary shall use its hest cndcavours to give timely iioticc thereof to 
thc Holders in order 10 enablc thcm to exchange their FDRs against A Shares in order to be able to 
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participate as  ;I sliarcholdcr in the distribution conrcniplatcd by the Cc\mpany. The Fiduciay shall not 
clisrributc FDRs. A Shares, other securities 01- orlicr properly with I-cspcct to which such authorisation. 
consent o r  permit or such report has not bccn obtained or filed, as the case may he, and shall havc no 
clutics to ohtain a n y  such nuthorisntion, cunsciit or pcrmit, or to file any such rcpcli-t cxccpt in 
cii-oumsl;inccs whcrc the satnc may only lie obtained or filed by the Fiduciary without, i n  the sole 
opinion of rlic Fiduci;ii-y, unrcasonalile lmrden (:)I- cxpcnsc. 

11. Voting Rights 

(A) Voting rishts with rcspcct t o  the Deposited A Shares shall be solely as set out in Conditions 
11 (n )  and 11 (C) below and in the  Deposit Agreement. ‘171e Cornpany will emu]-c that the Fiduciary 
rcccives ntitices of the meetings of shareholders of the Company and the agendas therefor in good 
time for the Fiduciary to be :iblc to give notice to the IIoldci-s a t  1c;ist within thc time limits set out 
under L~i~cn-iho~ii-g law a i i c l  the Articles of Association of the Coinpiiiiy. The Fiduciary shall. :is st:)on 
as practicahle aftcr rcc-cipt of notice froni the Conip;tny, t o  the cstcnt rcquircd by Condition 22. give 
notice to thc Holders thereof which shall contain (a) the agenda, datc arid time of the meeting and the 
placc(s) wid time where dncurrients m;dc m~ailablc hy the Company niay hc inspcctcd or copies 
received. arid (17) ii statement that the flvldci-s :IS at tlic close of husiness on a specificd datc aftcr thc 
issuance (71’ the cc-)nvcning notice by the Iducini-y will bc entitled, suL>ject to any applicable provisions 
of Luxembourg law and thc Articles of Associ;ilion of thc Company and in particular the sharcholding 
thresholds set out therein and the Conccssion Agrcernent. t o  instruct the Fiducial? as to the exercise 
of the voting rights. if any, pertaining t o  the numhcr of A Shares underlying their icspcctive FDRs and 
(c) a statement ;is t o  the manner in which such instructions may he given. LJpon the written request of 
a I-Ioldcr. received on or IieI‘oi-c tlic datc cstahlishecl by the I~kluciai-y for such purpose in the form of a 
block voting instruction with such certifications nnd evidence ;IS the Fiducial.), shall reasonably deem 
appropriatc or thc Company may. from timc to time: reasonably require, the 1:iduciai-y shall remit to 
the Company the relevant certifications and supporting evidence and the Company shall verify (as the 
ciisc niay he, in consultation and cooperation with the T,uscmbourg Government) whcthcr the 
relevant Holders of FDKs (-)I- tlic beneficial owners thcrcof would qualify ;IS A shareholders of the 
Chiiipnny if in lieu of FIIRs thcy would hold thc cori-csponding number of A Shai-cs. If, within X 
(ciglit) I,uxemhourg husiness days from the receipt of such certification and supporting cvidcncc, the 
C~oiiipmy has not  notiiicd the Fiduciay of its ircjcction of thc rccluest of a Hnldcr to exercise its voting 
rights pertaining to thc A Shares undei-lying its FDRs: the Company shall bc dcciiicd to have accepted 
the relevant voting requcst. Aftcr receipt of Ihi. written approval o f  the Company, the Fiduciary shall 
votc o r  cause to  lie voted the amount o f  A Shares relating to the FDRs on which voting has been 
appi-ovcci in accordance with tlic instructions set toi - th  i n  such rquest .  Notice of such approval shall 
he given to Holders only upon request. 

(R) In order for each voting instruction to be valid. thc block voting instruction form must he 
cornplctc and duly signed hy the respective I Ioldcr and. if different, by its bcncficial owner. and 
returned with the appropriate certifications arid cvidciicc referred to in Condition 11 (A) to the 
Fiducixy hy such date as the Fiduciary may specify. Subject to Condition 1 1  (C), thc Fiduciary shall 
dcsignatc and appoint a n  authoriscd repi-cscnlative to attend the meeting m d  vote at the TilcctiIlg on 
hchalf of  the Fiduciary in ;iccordance with thc provisions of this Condition 11. 

(C) If, IOI- wliatcver reas(m, thc Fiduciarly. has not by  the date specified by i t  received instructions 
fi-om Holders to votc in respect of a n y  rcsolutiori the Fiduciary shrill he deemed Lo have bccn 
instructed to vote in icspcct of Deposited A Shares for which i t  has not timely reccivcd voting 
instructions at the relevant mcering in the manncr proposed b y  thc boai-d of directors of the 
Company. Tf the Fiduciary is infoi-rnccl by the C’omp;iiiy that it is not permitted t o  votc the Deposited 
A Share o r  on Deposited A Sharcs underlying tlic FDR or FDRs of the respective Holder at the 
rclcvant shareholders’ meetins in the iiiiiiiner provided for in  this Condition. the Fiduciary shall 
proiiiptly advise the relevant Holdcr(s) of the same ; r i d  shall not participatc for such Deposited A 
Shares in the I-clcvant meeting of sharcholders. 

(D) The Fiduciary shall not vote (>I- attcmpt to cxercise the right lo  votc that attaches to  the 
Deposited A Shares. other than in accordance with instructions validly given in accordance with this 
Condition. 
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(E) The Company has undertaken in the Deposit Agreement to use its best cnclcavours to 
process swiftly all  Voting Cci-tificates. All determinations made by the Luxcmbourg Government shall 
be binding on the Company. All determinations imide hy the Company shall be hinding on the 
Fiduciary. 

5hhnres iv l i i rh haw b e ~ n  wirlidra wn under /lie tcnns 14 tlrc Fiduciuq. Deposit Agrcenzrsnt and 
transJenad OH the Cornpanfs register cf .shareholders to [I pmon other thun [lie Fiduciunl or its nornilice 
ma! be votcd ty tlic Holrim tlierco$ Howevcl; Holrlers tnny iiot receive srijjicient udvutrcc notice of 
me&g.r oJ .xhurelioldcrs lo enable them to witlidruw the A Sliures und i'otc' ut suclz meetings. 

12. Withdrawal of Deposited A Shares 

(A) Subject to Condition 12(B) below and the Deposit Agreement, any IJolder may request 
withdrawal of m d  the Fiduciar): shall, after receipt of the consent of the Company. relinquish the 
Deposited A Share attributahle to cach FDR upon production of such evidence that such pcrson is 
the Holdcr, lcgal owner or beneficial owner of and ciititled to thc relative FDR at the specified office 
o f  the Fiduciary accompanied hy: 

(i) a duly cxecuted ordcr and certificate (in the rorm of Schedule 5 to the Deposit Agrccment) 
supported hy the evidence required therein and requesting the Fiducialy to ciiusc the 
Deposited A Shares being withdrawn to be rcgistered in the name of  the Holder in the share 
i-egister of the Company and the rclevant registered sharc certificate k i n g  delivered a t  the 
i-quest ,  risk and expense of the Holdei- at the specified office from tiinc to time of the 
Fiduciaiy; 

(ii) ally other evidcncc that thc Fiduciary reasonably dccms appropriate and that the Company 
m;iy from tiinc to time reasonably rcquii-e; 

(iii) thc payment of such fecs, duties, charges and expenses as m a y  he required under these 

(iv) the surrcndcr (if appropriate) of the Certificates in definitive bearer foi-m or the transfer of 
the relevant i-ights in thc Global Certificate to the account of the Fiduciary with any relevant 
Clearing System or the receipt by the Fiduciary of appropriate ccrtiricntions from the 
Common Depositaiy. The Fiduciary shall not deliver in any mannci- Deposited A Shares 
hereundci-, except upon the receipt and cancellation of corresponding FDKs and except :IS 
otherwise provided in the Conditions and i n  the Deposit Agreement. 

(E) Certificates for withdrawn Deposited A Shares will contain such legends, and withdrawals of 
Deposited A Shares will be subject to the grant of such approvals ;is may be i-cquired by applicable 
laws, the Articlcs of Association of the Company or the Concession Agreement and to such transfer 
restrictions or ccrtifications, as the Company, the Luxembourg Government or the Fiduciary ma): 
from time to time determine to be necessary for compliance with applicable laws, thc Articles of 
Association of the Coinpany and the Concession Agreement. Forthwith upon receipt of the elements 
set out in Conditiun 1 ?(A) the Fiduciary shall remit to the Company the relevant certifications and 
supporting e~7idencc and thc Company shall verify (as the case niay he. in consultation and coopera- 
tion with the Lu?tcinhour_e Government) whether thc relevant Holder of the FnRs or the beneficial 
ownci- thereof could qualify as A shareholders of the Coiripany if in lieu of the FURS with irespect to 
which they havc applied for the withdrawal of the underlying Depositcd A Shares they would hold a 
corresponding number of A Shares. All determinations made by the Luxembourg Government shall 
hc binding on the Company. All determinations made by the Company shall bc hinding on the 
Fiduciary. 

Condi tinnx or thc Deposit Agreement; and 
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(C) Upon approval of the withdrawal of Deposited A Shai-cs by the Company, the applying 
Holder shall be recorded in the shai-c register o f  the Company and the rclcvant registered share 
certificates he delivered to  i t  by the Fiducia? foi -  collection by such Iloldcr. In ciisc not all the 
Deposited A Shares underlying FDRs rcprcscntcd by i i  binglc Ccrtificatc in definitive form are 
withdrawn. the Fiduciary shall issue, a t  thc cost of the Holder. a new Certificate for the balance of 
FDRs. 

13. liccovery of Taxes, Duties and Other Charges 
The Fiduciary shall not be liahle for any taxes, duties, charges: costs c)r expenses which may 

lxcomc payable in respect of the Deposited A Sharcs o r  the FDRs. whether undcr any present or 
future fiscal or other laws or regulations, and such part thereof as is proportionate 01- referable to an 
FDR shall be payable by the Holdcr thereof (i) directly or ( i i ) .  if a call in respect thcrcof is made or 
has been made o n  the Fiduciarp, at any time on request of the Fiduciary or may be dcductcd from any 
amount duc or bccoming duc on such FDK in respect of any dividcnd or other distrihution. In default 
thcrcof thc Fiduciary may for the account of thc Holder, upon giving no less than 30 days’ notice to 
thc rclcvant Holder, discharge the sanic out of the procccds of sale on the over-the-counter market in 
Cuxcinhourg, and suliject to Luxembourg law and regulations, of an appropriate number of Deposited 
A Shares underlying FDlis of such Holder and subsequently pay any surplus to the Holder. Upon 
such sale a number of FDRs held by the relevant Ilnldci- cquivalcnt to the number of Deposited A 
Shares sold shall hc cancdlcd. Any such request shall he made b y  giving notice pursuwt to Coiiditiaii 
22. 

14. Rights and Duties 

(A) In acting under thc r:iduciuy Contract, the Fiduciary is acting as fiducial-!. Accordingly, the 
Fiduciary shall, in accordance with Luxembourg law and suliject to the provisions of the Deposit 
Agi-ccnicnt and the Conditions. at all times act in good faith and exercise its 1-ights, powers and 
discrctic:)ns under thc Deposited A Sharcs and perform its obligations under the FDRs in t.hc best 
interests of the IIoldcrs. I n  acting as fiduciaiy under thc Fiduciaiy Contract: the Fiduciary shall m1y 
1i;ivc the obligations specifically provided for in the Fiduciary Contract. 

TIoldcrs shall have no ~-ccoui-sc against the Fiduciary i n  respect of amounts and distributions 
owing but not paid or distributed t o  the Fiduciary in respect of the Deposited A Shares. 

Consistent with the Grand Ducal Kcgulation, Holders shall have no direct right of action against 
the Company to enforce their rights under the Fiduciary Contract or to compel the Company to 
comply with its obligations under the Deposited A Shares even in the casc of the Fiduciary’s failure to 
act. 

(E) The rights and benefits of the Fiduciary in and towirds the ncposited A Shares and any 
payment or distribution in respect thcrcof (the “Fiduciary Assets”) do r i o t  rcii-ni part of the geiieral 
assets of the Fiduciary and are not avnilablc for the satisfaction of the general creditors of the 
Fiduciary but arc reserved solely for the benefit of the Holders. The FiduciaiS; shnll at all times 
segregate the Fiduciary Assets from its own general assets and record all I-:iduciai-y Asscts in its 
xcounts sepal-ate from its other assets. 

(C) The Fiduciary makes no representation or wirranty and assumes n o  responsibility for: or 
liability o r  obli@ion in respect of, the business. financial condition, prospects. creditworthiness, status 
and affairs of the Company and tiny rcpresentations niaric i n  t h a t  respect hy the Company. 

(TI) For the solc bcncfit of the Fiduciary, each Holder by its acquisition ol‘a FDR will be deerned 
to haw declared that it has made its own assessment and has rclicd on its own judgment and on the 
advice of its own finmcial and other advisers regarding the matters refen-cd to in Condition 14(C). 
Between the Fiduciary and thc Holders, each IToldct has itself heen, and will at all titiics continue to 
he. solcly responsible for making its own independent appraisal m d  investigation into the business, 
financial cundition, prospccts. crcditworthiness, status and affairs of the Company. 

Except as otherwise provided for herein, none of the Holders will bc entitled to rely on the 
Fiducixy to provide i t  with any information relating to, or to keep under review on its behalf. the 
busincss, financial condition, prospects, creditworthiness or status of affairs of thc Company. 
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(E) The Fiduciaiy o r  any of ils affiliates may accept deposits from, make loans or otherwise 
extend credit to: and generally he engaged in any kind of commercial or investment hanking business 
with. the Company or its affiliates (including the right for one or more of its officers to act as members 
of the board of dircctors or of any conimiitcc or the Company) and may act with respect to such 
business freely and without accountability to the Holders in the same manner as if the FIIKs did not 
exist. 

(F) The Fiduciary may consult on any legal matter aiiy Icgal counsel sclcctcd by it and it shall 
incur no liability for actions taken, permitted to bc taken or omitted, with respect to such matter, in 
good faith and in accordance with the opinion of such legal counsel, unless the FiduciarlJ has been 
negligent or has cngagcd in wilful misconduct. 

(G) The Fiduciary shall be protected and shall incur no liability for or in respect of any action 
taken or permitted by it in reliance upon aiiy docunicnt rcasonably believed by it to be genuine and to 
have been sigiicd by the proper parties. 

(H) ~l’lie Ficiduciaiy shall bc undcr n o  obligation. and shall liave no authority: to cxcrcisc any rights 
of set-off, hanker’s lien, combination or counterclaim that arisc or niay arisc out of any other 
transrictions between the Fiduciary and the Company shall apply the proceeds thereof in payincnt of 
any amount due from the Company under the Deposited A Sharcs. 

( I )  Neither the Fiduciary, nor the Company nor any of their rcspcctivc agents, officers, directors 
or employccs shall incui- any liability to any other of thein or to any Holder if by reason of any 
provision of any future law or regulation of Luxembourg, of the European Union or any other county 
or of any relevant govcrnmcntal authority, or by reason of the interpretation or application of any 
such prcscnt or future law or regulation or any change therein, or by reason of any other circuni- 
stances beyond their control, or in the case of the Fiduciary and any of its agents, officcrs, directors or 
employees hy reason of any provision, present 01- future, of the Articles o f  Assuciation of the 
Company or the Concession Agreement, any of lhem shall be prevcntcd, delayed or forbidden from 
doing or pcrfcmning any act or thing which the terms of the Deposit Agreement or these Conditions 
providc shall 01- may be done or performed; nor shall any of them incur any liability to m y  Holdcr by 
i-casoii of aiiy non-performance or delay, caused :is aforesaid, in performance of any act or thing which 
the tcriiis of the Ilcposit Agreement or these Conditions provide shall or may be dolie or performed, 
or by reason of any exercise of or failure to exercise. caused as aloresaid, any voting rights attached to 
the Deposited A Sharcs or any of them or any other discretion or power provided for in the Deposit 
Agreement. Any such party may I-cly on, and shall be protected in acting upon. any written notice, 
request, direction or other document reasonably believed by it to be genuine and to have been duly 
signcd or presented (including a translation which is made by a translator I-casonably believed by it to 
be competent or which appears to he authentic). 

( J )  The Fiduciaiy shall endeavour to effect any such sale as is referred to or contemplated in 
Condition 5 ,  6, 7, 9, 13 or 21 on the best ternis reasonably available to it but shall havc no liability (in 
the absence of its own wilful default, negligence or bad failh or that of its agents, officers, dircctors or 
employccs) with respec1 to the terms of such sale 01- if such sale shall not hc possible. 

(K) Subject to Condition 14(0),  the Fiduciay shall not be required to enforce the ohsewancc 
and pcrfc-)~-mance by the Company of its obligations under or in conncclion with the Deposit 
Agrcc in en t . 

(L) Notwithstanding anything else contained in thc Deposit Agreement or thcsc Coiiditions, the 
Fiducial-y may refrain from doing anything which, in its reasonablc opinion, supported hy an opinion 
of counsel. could or might bc contrary to any law of ariy jurisdiction or any directive or regulation of 
ariy agency or state or would or might otherwise render i t  liablc to any person (unlcss in the latter case 
it is fully indemnificd) and the Fiduciary may do anything which is, in its reasonable opinion, necessay 
t o  comply with any such law, directive or regulation. Upon the Fiduciary bcconiing aware that it will 
he prevented, delayed or lorbidden from acting 21s aforcsaid, it shall promptly give noticc thereof to 
the I lolders. such noticc setting out in reasonable detail the reasons preventing the Fiduciary from 
laking any such rrction or being delayed from taking such action. 

(M) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Deposit Agreement or these 
Conditions: the Fiduciary shall not be liable in respect of any loss or damage which ariscs out of or in 
connection with the exercise or attempted exercise of, or thc failurc to exercise any of, its powers or 
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disci-ctions under the Deposit Agreement or thcsc Conditioris in the absence of its own wilful default: 
negligence or had faith or that of its agents. olliccrs, directors and employees. 

(N) No provision of the Deposit Agreement or the Conditions 4iall rcquit-c the Fiducial?; to 
expend or risk its owii funds or otherwise incur any financial ohligation in thc performance of any of 
its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers. if it shall havc reasonable grounds for 
believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity and security apinst  such risk (of liability 
is not assured. 

(0) I n  case a Holder wishes to takc action against the Chnpany.  such Holder shall, unlcss any o f  
suh-paragraphs (i) to (vi)  of the proviso to the next scnterice applies, withdraw the Deposited A 
Shares underlying his W l i s  and take action against the Company directly. '17ie Fiduciary shall be 
undci- n u  obligation to prosecute or defend any action, suit or other proceeding in respect of any 
Deposited A Shares provided that if: 

thc relevant Holder having complied with the relevant Conditions is unable for any reason to 
withdraw the rclcvant Deposited A Shares within 30 (thirty) calendar days after having 
submitted ;I duly completed request therefor; 

(ii) the cxpccted period 0 1  time to obtaiii ii withdrawal of Dcpositcd A Shares will jeopardise or 
adversely affect the contcmplatcci action or the rights to he protected or upheld tlicrehy: 
such position being supportcd b y  an opinicm o f  counsel lui-nished by the I loldcr. if rcquircd 
by the Fiduciar?;; 

(iii) the withdrawal of Deposited A Shares would n o t  allow the Holder to proceed with the action 
whilst the Fiduciary \voulri bc so allowed; 

(i.) the action would bc based in whole or in part o n  the Deposit Agreement; 

(v) the relevant Holder is undcl- any applicablc law, regulation, order, judgmcnt or injunction or 
uiidcr its constitutive documents or any contract: indenture or qruerncnt (not cntcrcd into 
for the purpose of this provision) pi-cvcntcd o i -  restricted to hold the Dcpositcd A Sharcs or 
other unquotcd instruments; 

(vi) thc rclcvant Holder would hecome subjcct to thc payment of any tmcs or duties by reason of 
thc withdrawal or Tlcposited A Shares, such position being suppoi-tcd by nn opinion o f  
counsel furnished by the TToldcr, if rcquircd by the Fiduciary, or such withdrawal would be 
unduly onerous or expensive; or 

(vii) the withdrawal o l  Deposited A Shares may in any way be detrimental to the relevant I Ioldcr 
or to the proposcd action: 

in such case the Fiduciary will: iipoii the request, and at the expense and risk, o f  thc relevant 
Holdcr, take action to presci-vc thc rights of such Holder in  respect of the Deposited A Shares 
undcrl\Ting the FDRs held ly such I Ioldcr so lone as such action is consistent with these Chnditions. 

The Fiduciary will not bc obliged to takc such action or deferid in any action in rcspcct or 
Depositcd A Sharcs unless it shall havc hccn ciircctcd to do so by the relevant Holdcr and 
arrangemcnts for its indemnification have been made to its reasonable satisfaction. 

I n  the event of any cnforccrnent hy the Fiduciery of rights under thc Dcpvsit Agreement and/or 
in respect o l  the Dcpositcd A Shares, the Fiduciaiy will be cntitlcd to he paid, out of the procceds of 
such enforcement, its costs and cxperises of such cnforccmcnt in priority to any claims of the 
Holder(s) having requested the Fiducial-y to take such action or which directly benefit lrrom such 
action t o  t h e  extent it had not bccn prcviously indemnified. 

I n  ciisc the Fiduciary 1)econics ohligcd to take action hereunder. the Fiduciary will havc fulfilled 
its obligation if it has furnished to the rclcvant Holders a valid mandate to take thc actiou proposed to 
be taken hy the Holder (a  marzrhrt uil litcnz) which it can make suhject t o  being covcrcd ;rnd 
inderririified t o  its i-casunablc satisfaction arid subject to such uthcr conditions and restrictions as the 
Fiduciarl; may reasonably rcquire (which may however noi prevent tlic action to proceed). 

r\;otwithstnnding anylhing to the contrary hcrcin, thc Fiducial), shall not he obliged to takc action 
in rcspcct of any Deposited A Sharc in case the FDRs of thc applying Holdcr are the subject of a 
cr i ni i ii a1 ii t t achmcn t. 

( i )  
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(P) The Fiducial-y and its affiliates may: whcthci- by virtue of the types of relationship dcscribcd 
above or otherwise. at any time hcrcaftcr be in possession of information in relation to the Company 
which is UJ may be material in the contcxt of the FDRs and which may or may not be known to the 
general public or the Holdcrs. Neither the Deposit Agreement nor the Conditions creates any 
obligation on the part of the Fiduciary or any of its affiliates to disclosc to the Holders any such 
relationship <)I- information (whether or not confidential). and neither the Fiduciary nor  any of its 
affiliates shall be liable to the Holders by reason of such non-disclosure. 

(0) .The Fiduciary may, in the performance of its obligations hcrcundcr: instead of acting 
personally, employ and pay an agent, whether an attorney-at-law or other person, to transact or 
concur in transacting any business and do OJ concur in doing all acts required to  he done by such 
party, including the receipt and payment of money. 

Keferences in these Conditions to the “Fiduciary” shall be to the Fiduciary acting in its capacity 
as I‘iduciary and not in any’ other capacity. 

15. Issue and Delivery of Replacement FDRs and Exchange of FDRs 

Sub,jcct to applicable laws and to the payment of thc relevant fees, taxes, duties, charges, costs 
and expenses and such tcriiis as to evidence and indemnity as the Fiduciaq may require, rcplaccment 
Cci-tiricates will he issucd by the Fiduciary and will be delivered in exchange for or rcplacement of 
outstanding lost: stolcn, mutilated, defaced or destrojTcd Certificates upon surrender thereof (except 
in the case of dcstruction, loss or theft) at the specified offices of thc Fiduciary. 

16. Fiduciary’s Fees, Costs and Expenses 

(A) The Fiduciaiy shall be entitled to receive the following i-emuneration and rcimburscinent 

(i) lor the issuc of FDRs (other than upon the issue of PDRs pursuant to the initial offering of 
I.TlKs the subjcc1 of the Deposit Agrecmcnt) or the cancellation of IWKs upon the 
withdrawal of Deposited A Sharcs: TSJF 1800 per 1000 FDRs (or portinn thereof) to be 
issucd or per 1000 A Sharcs (or portion thereof) to he withdrawn subject, in each case up to 
a maximum of T,UF 100,001) per application, together with all cxpcnses, transfer and 
i-cgistration fees, taxes, duties and charges payable by the Fiduciay in connection with such 
issue or withdrawal; 

(ii) as provided in Condition 15 fur issuing Certificates in definitive bearer form in rcplaccment 
for mutilated, rlcfaced. lost, stolcn 01- destroyed Certificates: a sum per FDR certificate 
which is determined by the Fiduciary to be a reasonable charge to reflect the work, costs and 
expenses involved; and 

(iii) reasonably docurncnted out-of-pocket cxpcnscs for services required by individual Holders; 

The fee set out in (i) above may be adjusted, from time to tinic, by the Fiduciary and the 
Company to account for- the evolution of the Fiduciary’s costs in respect of the considcrcd service. 
Any such adjustmcnt shall be in line with prevailing market practice in Luxembourg foi- similar 
services. 

(E) The Fiducial? is entitlcd to receive from the Company the fccs, taxes, duties, charges, costs 
iiiid expenses separately agreed by them. 

I n  thc Fiiiirciary Lkposil Agreement, tlie Cornpuiiy has agreed to indentnifi the liduciaiy ugiiiiisl ativ 
liubili[y tliul mu); arise U.I’ ii rccsult of or in coiiriection rvih its appointnicnl or the escrcise of its parvcrs and 
dutics under tlie I;idiiciriry Deposit Agreumcnt, excppt si.ich u.r mriy resiilt .fizlrn its own wi&d default, 
tiegligenw or brid jiiith. 

from the Holders in respect of its services under the Deposit Agrccmcnt: 

17. Agents 

(A) The Fiduciary shall be entitled, with the approval of the Company, to appoint one or more 
ugcnts (the ‘:\gents”) for the purpose, inter d i u ,  of making distributions to the Holders. 

(B) Notice of appointment cjr removal of any Agent or of any changc in the specified officc of 
the Fiduciaiy o i  any Agent will be duly given by the Fiduciary to the TIolders in accordancc with 
Condition 22. 



IS. Listing 

TIJC Company h a s  undertaken in the Deposit Agreement to usc all rcasonablc cndcavours to 
maintain. SO Ion2 as any  FDli is outstanding, ii listing for the FDRs o n  the Luxembourg Stock 
Exchange so  long 21s thc rcquircmcnts for such listing ai-c not  unduly onerous or burdensome and the 
cost of such listing is n o t  unrcasonahlc in each case when compared to othcr official stock cxchangcs 
hascd in Europe. For such purposc thc Company will pay all fees and sign and dclivcr all undertakings 
required by the 1,uscnihoui-g Stock Exchange i n  connection therewith. In  the event that such listing is 
not rnnintaincd, the Conipan): has undertaken i n  the Dcposit Agreement to use its best endeavours 
with thc assistance of the Fiducial?. to iihtain and maintain a listing of the FDRs on another 
iiiternationally recogniscd stock cxchangc in Europc. If thc Company determines that it shall not 
maintain a listing. the rules of the relevant stock exchange in respect of ;I de-listing of equity securities 
shall he applied. 

19. Amendnient of Deposit Agreement and Conditions 

(A) All and any of the provisions of the Dcposit Agrccincnt and these Conditions (othcr than 
this Condition 19) mav at a n y  tinic and from time to time be amended by agreomcnt bclwccn the 
Company and the Fiduciary in any rcspect which they may dccni ncccssary: suppoi-tcd by opiiiion of 
counscl, to amend thc Deposit Agreement andior these Conditions a s  required by changcs in 
Luscmbour_e or EU law (or the interpretation thereof) and/or by changcs in thc Articlcs of  Associa- 
tion of the Company or in the Concession Agrccmcnt. Notice of any such amendment (except to 
corrcct ;i nianifcst ci-1-or) shall he cluly given to the Holdcrs by the Fiduciary, in accordancc with 
Condition 22, and shall bccomc cffcctivc on the day such notice shall have been givcn. 

( R )  Any othcr micndmcnts 10 thc Deposit Agrccmcnt and these Conditions are subject t o  the 
prior approv;il or the Fiduciav: Ihc Companv m d  of the iiiccting of TTolders o f  FDRs convened and 
deliherating in accoi-dance with the terms ot‘ Schedule X of thc Deposit Agrccmcnt. Notice of any such 
amendment shall be dulj, given to the Holders by the Fiduciary. in Liccordancc with Condition 22. 

20. Substitution 

Subject to the provisions of this Condition, the Holders by acquiring any FDR expressly consent 
tu the Fiduciary at any tirnc, with the prior coriserit of the Company and thc Luxembourg Govcrn- 
mcnt, suhstituting for itself :IS fiducial?; undcr the Deposit Agrccincnt and thcsc Conditions any 
company established in Luxembourg qualifying as fiduc-iaiy under the Cirand Ducal Regulation (the 
”Substitute”) provided that such substitution niay not take place whilst a meeting of shareholders of‘ 
the Company or of the Holders has k e n  announced nor within one month after any such meeting or 
any postponed or reconvened mccting. Such substitution, cffcctcd in accordance with this Condition 
213, will rclcasc the Fiduciary from its rights and obligations hereunder and the Holders expressly 
consent thci-cto. The substitution shall be made by a written undertaking (the “Undertaking”) to be 
substantially in  tlic form set out in  the Deposit Agreement and may take place only if: 

all action, conditions and things required LO be taken, fulfilled and done (including the 
obtaining of  any necessay consents) to ensui-e that the Undertahng, the Deposit Agrccmeiit 
and the C:onditions rcprcscnt valid. lcgally hinding and cnforceable ohligations of the 
Su 1)s t i t  u t e ; 

(ii) the Suhstitute has heconic party lo thc Deposit Agrccmcnt and thcsc Conditions with any 
appropriate consequential arnendmcnts, as if it had hccn ;in oi-igind p;irty to it; 

( i i i )  all uonscnts (including o f  the Government and the Conipany) having been ohtaincd; 
(iv) the Substitute having bccn recorded in the sharc register of thc Company as holder of the 

then Deposited A Shares ;und all property and rights held by the Fiduciary pursuant to the 
1,’IIRs having bccn transferred to the Substitute: and 

(v) the Fiducial-y has given at least 30 days prior notice of such suhstitution to the Holdci-s 
stating that the Undertaking and other relevant documents remitted to it hy the Substitute in 
connection with the substitution, will bc availahle for inspection at the specified office of the 
Fiduciay and any Agent. 

(1) 
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21. Iermination of the Deposit Agrccmcnt 

(A) The Company may, with the prior consent of thc Luxembourg Govcrnment, terminate the 
Deposit Agreement and conscqucntly the Fiduciary Contracts by giving 100 days' notice to the 
Fiduciary, provided, howcvci-: that the Company shall not  tcrniinatc the Deposit Agrccnicnt until such 
time 21s the A S h a m  have hccn listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or any othcr rccogniscd 
stock exchange. Within 10 days after the giving of such notice. notice of  such termination shall be duly 
given by the Fiduciary to Iloldcrs ol the FDRs then out.standing in accordance with the Condition 22. 

(B) In addition: the Corripany may terminate the Deposit Agreement and consequentl?; the 
Fiduciary Contracts by giving 100 days' notice to the 1:iduciarl; it' required (supported by opiriion of 
counsel) by changes in 1,uscnibourg o r  EU I;iw (or the interpretation thereof) or by changes in the 
Cunccssion Agreement. I n  such event, the Company shall list the A Shares on the Luxembourg Stock 
Exchange or other recognised stock exchange unless the Company i s  pruhibitcd from or unable to 
cffcct such listing due to applicable law or regulation or thc Concession Agrccmcnt. 

(C) During thc period heginning on the date of the giving of such notice by the Fiduciary to thc 
I-Ioldcrs and cndirig on the date on which such termination takes effect, cach Holder shall be entitled 
t o  obtain dclivciy of Ihe Deposited A Share relating to each FDR held by it. subject to the provisions 
of and up011 cmnpliance with Condition 12, free of the chargc specified in Condition 16. 

(D) If any FDRs remain outstanding after the date of termination, the Fiduciary shall forthwith 
sell thc Dcpositcd A Shares lhen held by i t  under the Deposit Agreement and as soon as rzasonably 
practicable thereafter deliver the net proceeds of any such sale, togcthcr with any othcr cash then held 
by it iindcr the Deposit Agreement. pro rata to Hnlclers of FDRs which havc not previously bccn sc) 
surrendered or could not he exchanged. After making such sale, thc Fiduciary shall bc discharged 
from all obligations under the Deposit Agreement and these Conditions: cxccpt its obligations to 
account to Holdcrs for such net proceeds of sale and other cash. 

(E) The I-Iolders may not terminate thc Fiduciary Contract hut may withdraw 1hcrcfrom either 
l y  transfer of their FDRs or in ;-iccordiincc with Condition 12. 

(F)  Thc Fiduciary may terminate its participation iIi the Fiduciary Contract oiily in accordance 
with Chidition 20. 

(G) Ttic Fiduciary Contract shall remain unaffcctcd and shall c(:)ntiiluc in f u l l  force and effect, 
iiolwitlistanding h e  death, incapacity, insolvency, bankruptcy or similai- even1 allecling either a 
I Ioldcr or the Fiduciary. In  case any such cvcnt affccts the Fiduciary, the receiver or similar official 
:ippointcd in I-cspcct of the Fiduciarq. shall use its best cndcavours to substitute a I-cplncement 
fiduciary in accordiiiicc wilh Condition 20. Failure of such rcccivcr t o  makc such appoin tmcnt within 
30 days of the Fiduciai-y being dcclai-cd insolvent or hankrupt or being niudc suL?jcct to a similar cvcnt. 
will authorisc the Compmy to  appoint a replacement fiduciary aiid transfer the ncpositcd A Shai-cs 
rcgistcrccl in the ni:imc of the Fiduciaiy to such substitutcd fiduciaiy. 

22. Notices 

(A) For s o  long as the FDRs are held in the form ol  oiic or more Cjlohal Certificates. notices to 
the I Ioldcrs 0 1  I-UKs will be given by dclivci? of the rclcvant notice to the relevant Clearing Systems 
for communication by each of them to entitled participants. Notices shall be deernecl to be given hy 
the Fiduciary on the day of delivery of such notice to the rclcvant Clearing Systems. 

(B) If thc FDRs arc held in the form of Certificates in definitive f c ~ m  notices shall be given by 
the Chmpnny,  failing which by tlie Ficluciaq, to the Holdcrs by publicalioil of the relevant notices in a 
leading ncwspapci- having general circulation i n  Luxcmbourg (which is expected to be the LUX- 
cmburgcr Wort) and a leading newspaper in thc English language having an international circulation 
(which is expected to be the Financial Times). 

(C) So long ;IS the FDKs are listed on one o r  more stock cxchangcs and the rules of such stock 
excliange(s) sc1 rcquirc, notices shall also be published by thc Company, lailing which hy the lduciary,  
in such miinner i is the rules of such stock exchange(s) may I-cquire. 

78 



23. Heports and Information on the Company 

(A) The Company has undertaken in the Deposit Agreement (so long as any FDR is outstand- 
ing) LO furnish the Fiduciav with six copies (and to make available to the Fiduciary as many further 
copies as it may reasonably requirt. t o  satisfy requests f rom Holders) of: 

(i) in rcspcct of thc financial year encling on 31 December 1998 ancl, in respect of each financial 
!'car thcrcaftcr, the non-consolidated (and, if published for holders of shares. consolidated) balance 
sheets as at the end of such financial year and the non-consolidated (and. i f  publishcd for holders of 
shares, consolidated) statements of income Tor such financial year in rcspcct of thc Company, 
prepared iT1 conformity with I .uxcmbourg Accounting Standards and reported upon by independent 
public auditors appointed by thc  shai-choldcrs: ;is soon as practicablc aftcr thc same are published or 
made auailahle to sharcholdci-s, i f  earlier, (and in any event within 180 days) after the end of such 
year; and 

(ii) scm-annual non-consolidated ancl consolidatcd LinaLiditcd financial statcmcnts, as soon :is 
practicable ;iflei- the smic arc published or made available to shareholders, if earlier. 

(R) Tlic Fiduciary shall upon receipt thereof give due noticc to thc I Ioldcrs in accordance with 
C'ondition 22 that such copies are availahlc upon i-cqucs~ a t  its specified oflicc a n d  thc specified office 
of any Agent. 

24. Copics of Company Notices 

'The (hnpany has undci-taken in thc Dcposit Agreernent to  transmit to the Fiduciary o n  oi- 
hcforc thc day on which the Company first givcs noticc by mail, publication or othenvisc. to its 
Shareholdel-s, whether in rclntion to the taking of any action in respect thereof 01- in respect of any 
dividend o r  other distributioii thereon or of any nicetins 01- ndjoui-ncd inccting of such holders or 
otherwise. such number of copics of such notice and any othei- material lui-nishcd to Holders hy the 
Company i n  cc:)nncction therewith as the IiidLiciary m a y  reasonably rcqucst. The Fiduciay shall, as 
soon as practicablc after receiving noticc ol' such trmsmission, give duc notice to the Holders in 
accordnncc with Condition 33: if required thereby. 

25. Moneys held by the Fidiiciary 

' lhe  E'iduciaiy slinll be cntitlcd to deal with moneys paid to i t  by thc Company for the purposes of 
the Deposit Agreement in the same niiiiiiier as other moneys paid to it as a banker by its customers 
and shall not be liable to account t o  tlic Company or any Holder or any other person for any interest 
thereon, cxccpt :IS othcnvise provided lor hcrcin. 

26. Severability 
If any one o r  more of the provisions contained in thc Deposit Agreement or in these Conditions 

shall be or bccoinc invalid, illegal or uncii hi-ccahlc in  any rcspect, the validity, legality and cnforcc- 
ability of thc 1-cmxiniiig provisions contained therein or hcrcin shall in no way be affectcd, pi-cjudiccd 
OI- othcnvise disturbed thcrchy. 

27. Governing Law and Jurisdiction 

(A) 'l'he Deposit Agreement and the FDRs arc governed by and shall hc construed in accor- 
d:incc with Luxernhoui-g law, m d  in  particular the Grand Ducal Regulation. The rights and obligations 
attaching to the Deposited A Shares will l x  governed hy Luxembourg law. Thc Company has 
submitted in rcspcct of the Deposit Agrecmcnt to the jurisdiction of the courts o f  Luxembourg, Grand 
Duchy of Luxembourg. 

(H) Thc courts of Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of I .uxcmbuurg shall have exclusive jui-isdiction to 
settle any disputes which niay arise out of or in conncction with the FDRs and accordingly any legal 
action or proceedings arising out of o r  in connection with the FDRs ("Pi-occcdinys") may be lxought 
only i n  such courts. The Fiduciary irrevocably submits to the .jurisdiction of such courts and waives any 
objection t o  Pi-occcdings in such courts whether on the gi-ound of V C ~ U C  or on the ground t h a t  the 
Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum. 



TAXATION 

‘The following discussion is :I summary of ccrtain Luxembourg tax consequences to holders of FDRs 
;ind h Shares. The discussion is based on current law and is for gcncral information only. The discussion 
docs not address all possible tax conseqiiences relating to an investment in the FDRs or A Sharcs, and 
prospective investors in the FDRs or A Sharcs are urged to consult thcir tax adviscrs regarding the 
applicablc tax conscyucnces of acquiring, holding and disposing of the PDRs and A Shares based on their 
particular circumstances. 

General 

Undcr current Luxembourg law, assets held by a fiduciary in that capacity and any revcnuc paid on 
such assets t o  the fiduciary arc, for the purposes of taxation on income and net wealth, attributable to the 
persons for whom thc fiduciary holds such assets. As a result: 

(i) any A Shares held by the Fiduciaiy pursuant to the FnRs  (the “Underlying Shares”) and any 
dividend. liquidation proceeds or other distributions paid to the Fiduciary as holder of the 
Underlying Shares will, for taxation purposes, including for thc purpose of any applicable 
douhlc tax avoidance treaties. be attributable to the holders of the FDRs; 

(ii) any payments reccivcd by the Fiduciary in respect of the Underlying Shares will riot he 
included in the taxable income of the Fiduciary, but will, subject to applicability of Luxem- 
bourg ~IBx (as hcrcinafter defined), be included in thc taxable income of the holders of the 
FDRs; 

(iii) the Underlying Sharcs will not be included iii the assets of the Fiduciaiy for the purpose of 
the net wcalth tax payable by the Fiduciary; but will, subject to applicability of Luxcmbourg 
tax, haw to be included in the taxable wcalth of the holders of the FDRs; and 

(iv) the exchange of I:DRs into A Shares or the exchange of A Shares for FDRs will not give rise 

All payments made by thc Fiducial-y to the holders of FDRs in respect of the EDRs may be made by 
the Fiduciary without withholding or dcduction for or on account o f  any taxes, duties, asscssincnts 01- 

chai-ges o f  whatever nature imposed or levied by or on bchalf of Luxerrihourg or any political subdivision 
or authority thereof or thci-ein (“Luxembourg Tax”). 

to Luxcrnbourg Tax. 

Jlividends 

0 I 
to 

Dividends paid on the A Shares (including on the Underlying Shares) ai-c subject to a withholding tax 
25 per cent. which, subject to certain conditions: shall not apply to dividends distributed by  the Company 
a Corporatc Entity, a Non-Kesident Corporatc Entity, a Permanent Establishment (all as hereinafter 

defined) or the Fiduciary on Underlying Sharcs in respect of FDRs held by a Corporate Entity, a Non- 
Residcnt Corporate Entity or a Pcrmancnt Establishment, whcrc such Corporate Entity, Noli-Resident 
Corpoi-ate Entity or Permancnt Establishment (a) holds at least 10 per cent. of the Share Capital of the 
Company directly in the form of A Shares and/or indirectly in the f o r i  of FDRs or (1)) holds A Shares and/ 
or FDKs the aggrcgatc acquisition pricc of which was at least LUF 50 million (each of (a) and (b), the 
“Suhstantinl Participntion Exemption”) provided, in the case of ii Non-Resident Corporate Entity and in 
the casc of ii Pcrrnanent Estahlishmcnt, such Non-Resident Corporate Entity is, o r  such Pcrmancnt 
Establishment is the Perinancnt Establishment of a Non-Kesident Corporatc Entity which is. resident in a 
member state of thc EU and qualifying under Article 2 of the European Community Directive 90/435 of 23 
July, 1990. The Substantial Participation Exemption also applies to the Permanent Establishment of a Non- 
Resident Corporatc Entity resident in a country which has entered into ai1 applicable double taxation 
avoidancc treaty with Luxembourg. In addition, the withholding tax on dividends may be waived, reduced 
or irnputcd by  applicable double taxation avoidance treaties. 

For the piirposes hereof: 

“Resident Holders” means holders residcnt in 1.uxembourg (except (i) holding companies govcrncd 
by the law of 31 July. 1979 (“Holding Companies”) and (ii) undertakings for collectivc investment 
(“UCls”) which arc not  subject to inconic tax and net wealth tax. 



"Corporate Entity" means ;I corporate enti@ (so( idt dc c q & a ~ x )  which is a Resident Holdcr. 

"Non-Resicfcnt Corporatc Entity" means 21 corporate entity (toci& c k  wpifollLx) which is not residcnt 
in Luxembourg. 

"Pcrinancnt Establishmcnt" meails a I ,uxcmbourg permanent establishnieiit of a non-resident. 

Holders of A Shares (othcr than the Fiduciary in that capacity) and holders of FDKs who ;ire 
Resident Holdcrs o r  who Iiavc: B Permanent Establishment with whom thc hnlding of thc A Shares rindicx 
FDRs is el'fectivcly connected r j ]  must, for incumc tax purposcs, include any dividend paid o n  the h Sharcs 
o r  the LJndcrlying Shares in rcspcct of thc FDRs in their taxable incoinc and (,ii) must for net wealth tax 
purposes. includc the A Sharcs held or thc Underlying Sharcs in respect of the FDRs held in their net 
assots. unless in casc ol' both (i) and (ii) and subjjcct to similar conditions. the Suhstantial Participation 
Esernptinn applics. 1 Iowever (,and where the Substantial Participalion Exemption does not apply), 50 pcr 
ce,nt. of any dividend paid on A Shares to Rcsident Holders 01- such a Pcrnianent Estrhlishmerit or to thc 
Fiduciary o n  Underlying Shares in respcct of the FDIls hcld by such Rcsiderlt Holdcr or sudi  I'erinancnt 
Establishment will be exempt from income tax payable by such Kesidcnt I Iolder or Permanent 
Est ahlishmeil t. 

Capital Gains 

Individual Resident F-lnlders of X Sharcs o r  FDRs w c  not subject to taxation on capital sains unlcsn 
the disposal o f  the A Sharcs o r  I:DKs preccdcs the acquisition thereof or the A Sharcs or FDRs arc 
disposed of within six ~nonths of thc date of thc acquisition thercof; provided, howcver, that a n  individual 
Resident Holticr- who owns mort than 25 per cent. of the Share C'iipital is liaklc to taxation on capilal gains 
even after such six month period. 

A Corporate Entity or Permmcnt Establishment holding A Shares or FDRs will, for incomc tax 
purposes, nccd to includc any capital gain rcaliscd on rhe disposal of A Shares or FDRs in its taxaiablc 
incornc, provided that, subject tn certain conditic:)ns, capital gains realiscd or which might othcnvise be 
realiscci o n  :i disposal of A Shares or t-'DRs by (1) any such Corporate Entity holding at least 25 pcr cent. 
of thi: Share Capital directly in  the form of A Shares and/or indircctly in thc: form of FDRs or holding A 
Shares and!or FDRs the aggregate acquisition price of whidi  was at  least LUF 250 million will be escmpt 
froin incomc t u  01- ( 2 )  by a Corporate, Entity or a Ycrmancnt Establishment acquiring a new fixed asset 
with the procccds from such disposal in ctmiection with a contribution o f  a busincss (cnrrq2r.i.w j o r  a 
business scgrncnl (pciriiLi niitotiimrc d'rturcpi+.w) to anothcr Corporatc Entity in rcturn for shares of such 
Corporatc En ti ty  may he defcrrcd for iricorne tax purposcs. 

A holder of A Sl ims  or ~f FDRs who is il non-residcnt of Luxenibourg or a non-resident holder who 
\vas a Resident Holdcr during a period of murc than 15 years? but has not been resident in Luxembourg at 
any time, in thc five ycar period prior to thc sale o f  any A Shares or FDRs. i s  not liablc for 1,uxernbonrg tax 
on capital gains on  any A Sharcs or F'nRs; provided howcvcr, (and subjcct to any applicablc double t a x  
awidancc trcaty) thrit a non-residcnt holder who holds murc than 25 per cent. of the Share Capital directly 
jn thc form of A Shares and/or indircctly in the f c ) m  of  FDKs is subjcct to tax on cilpital gains on thc 
rlispcssal of A Shrtrcs or FDRs held for not mort than six. months. 

Other Luxemboiirg 'hs Aspects 

Individual holders subject ti:) Luxembourg tax should be aware thai the acquisition of FDRs (or of A 
Shares u p n  excliangc against FDKs) will not cntitle them to thc benefits providcd lor by articlc 129 
(c.) L.I.K. (hi Kuu)  iis this provision is not applicahle t o  the ncquisitinn of existing shares. 

Thc FDRs qualifv for invcstment by L u x n i b w i g  undertakings for  collective investment which arc 
approvcd purmant to  article 120 (c) I L R .  (hi Rat4 funds). 

N o  stamp, valuc addod, issue, registration, transfer or similar taxes or dutics will, under prcscnt 
Luxembourg law: bc payatble in Luscmbourg by the holders o f  FDRs or A Shares in connection with the 
establishment of the FDR pmgrammc, thc issue o f  the FDRs 01- tho transfer of A Sharcs to B FDR holdcr 
upon his orchange tsf FDRs into A Shares. 
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SUBSCRIPTTON AND SALE 

Under the terms and subject to the conditions of the subscription agreement (the “Suhscription 
Ayeenlent”) datcd 5 July, 1998 among the Company, the Selling Shareholders. thc Fiduciary and thc 
Managers named helow, for  whom Deutsche Bank, Dresdner Kleinwort I3cnson and Morgan Stanley Dean 
Wii.tcr arc acting as loint Global Coordinators and Joint Lead Managers of the International Offcring, and 
for whom Banque GenLralc du Luxembourg S.A. is acting as thc Lcad Manager of ihc Luxembourg 
Offering. the Managers have scvcrally agreed to procure purchasers for or to purchase from thc Selling 
Shai-choldcrs the following respective numbers of FDRs: 
Internatioiial Offering 

Dcutschc Rank AG London . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Kleinwort Bcnson Limited. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Morgan Stanlcy & Co. International Limited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Banque Gdndralc du Luxembourg S.A. 

Baring Brothcrs Limited (as agent for ING Bank N.V.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Argentaria Eolsa, S.V.B.: S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
HSBC lnvestment Rank PIC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Paribas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
‘liital - International Offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Luxembonrl: Offering 

Ranque Cikneralc du Iuxcinbourg S A .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ranquc et Caisse d’Epargnc dc l’Etat, Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Di-csdncr Bank Luxembourg S A .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Morgan Stanley Bank Luxembourg S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total - Luxembourg Ofcring . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dcutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Employee Offrriiif 

Lkutsche Bank AG 1.ondon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Klcinwort Benson Limited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Morgirn Stanley XL Co. International Limited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Banqiic Gdndrale du Luxembourg S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total - Employee Offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Designated Offering 

Yiimber of FDRs 

990,267 
090,267 
990.267 
198,053 
108,053 
198,053 
198,053 
108.053 

3,961,066 

405,134 
237.567 
82,522 
82.522 
82,522 

990.367 

47,245 
411244 
47:245 
35,433 

177,167 

Ilcutschc Bank AG London . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  305,292 
Klcinwort Benson Limited. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  305,297, 
Morgan Stanley Sr Co. International Limited . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  m , m  I 
Banque Cihiralc du 1,uxcnibourg S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  161,625 

Total - Designated Offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,077,500 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,206,000 

Pursuant to the Subscription Agrccnicnt, the Managers will, subject Lo certain conditions, pi-ocurc 
pili-chasers for or purchase the FDRs at t i c  Offer Price of LUF 6.000 per FDR, less a commission o f  
IUJF 255 pcr FDR (with the exception of the 1,077,500 FDRs to be purchased by Dcutsche Telekom in the 
Designated Offering, which will be subjcct to a reduced conmission per FDR). The Managers arc scvcrally 
obliged to procure pui-chasers for or to purchase all the FDRs offered in the Combined Offel-ing if any arc 
taken. The obligations of the Managcrs under the Subscription Agreement to procure purchasci-s Tor 01- 

purc hasc the FDIis are subjecl t o  cert;iin conditions, which may be waived by the Managers. 

Ccrtain of the Selling Shareholders havc granted to the Managel-s an option, cxcrcisable by the Joint 
C;lohal Coordinators, after prior consultation with the Lead Manager of the Luxernbourg Offering! until 30 
days after the Closing natc, to purchase up to 755,183 additional FnRs, cach with respect to onc A Sharc, 
solely to covcr over-allotments, if any. 
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Each of the Company and the Selling Shareholders has agreed that, without the prior written consent 
of the Joint Cilohal Coordinators, after prior consultation with the Lead Maniagcr of the Luxembourg 
Ofrering. (such consent not  to bc unreasonably withheld), it will not, for a period of 180 days after the datc 
of this Offering Circular, (1) offer. pledge. scll, contract to scll, scll any option or contract t o  purchase, 
purchase any option or contract to scll, grant any option, 1-ight or warrant to purchase, or otherwise 
transfer and disposc of, directly or indirectly, any FDRs, Sharcs 01- any securities convertible into or 
exercisable o r  exchangeable for FDRs or Shares or (2) enter into any swap or other arrangement that 
transfers to another, in  whole or in part. any of the economic conscqucnccs of ownership of thc  FDRs or 
Shai-cs. whether any such transaction described in clause (1) or (2) abovc is to be settled by delivery of 
FURS, Sharcs or such other securities, in cash or othcrwise, provided, howevci-, that, with the consent of 
the Joint Global Coordinators and thc Lead Manager of thc Luxembourg Offering, a Selling Shareholder 
may sell FDRs or A Shares to a strategic purchaser if such purchaser agrees to bc bound by the foregoing 
restrictions. 

Each of the Company and the Sclling Shareholders has agreed to indemnify the several Managers 
against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and sale of the FDKs. In addition, the Compaiiy has 
agreed to I-cimburse the Joint Global Coordinators and the Lead Manager of the Luxembourg Wfcring for 
certain of their expenses. 

Except fool- applying to have the FDRs listed on thc LuxSE and to makc a public offering in 
I.uxcmbourg, n o  nction has heen or will bc taken in any jurisdiction that would permit ii puhlic offcring of 
the FDRs, or the posscssion, circulation or distrihution ol: this Offering Circular or any other niatcrial 
relating to the Cnnipany, the Selling Sharcholders, or such securities, in any jurisdiction where action for 
such purpose is 1-cquired. Accordingly, the FDKs may not be offered or sold, clircctly, or indircctly, nor 
m a p  this Offcring Circular nor any other offering material or advcrtiscmcnt in connection with such 
securities be distributed or published, in or from any country or jurisdiction cxccpt under circumstances 
that will result in compliance with any applicable rules and regulations of any such country or  jurisdiction. 

The FDKs and the underlying A Shares have not heen and will not bc rcgistcred under thc Sccurities 
Act and, subject to certain cxceptions, may not be nrfercd or sold within the Unitcd States. In addition, 
until 40 days after thc commencement of the Combined Offering, an offer or sale of FDRs within the 
United States by any dcalcr (whether or not participating in the Combined Offering) may violate the 
registration requirements of the Securitics Act. 

‘I’hc Managers havc rcpresented and agreed that (i) they have not offcrcd or sold and prior to the 
expiry of the period of six months from the payment datc will not offer or scll any FDKs to pcrsons in the 
United I n g d o m  except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing 
or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for thc purposes of their business or otherwise in 
circurnstanccs which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the puhlic in the United Kingdom 
within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995: (ii) they havc complied and will 
comply with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services Act 1986 with respect to anything done by 
them in relation to tlic FDRs in, from or otherwise involving the Unitcd Kmgdom, and (iii) they haw only 
issued or passed o n  and will only issue or pass on in the Unitcd Kingdom any documcnt received by thcin 
in connection with the issue of the FDRs to a pcrson who is of a kind described in Article 1 1  (3) of the 
Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996 or is a person to whom 
the document niav otherwise lawfully be issucd or passed on. 

No  sales prospectus (L+rkaufs/lro.rpckt) under the German Securities Sales Prospectus Act (Werlpupier- 
ve~kaiil:~i?m.s~?cktgesefz) has bcen, or will bc, prepared in connection with thc offering of the FDRs, and the 
Managers have offered and sold, and agree to dfe1- or sell the FDRs in the Federal Rcpublic of Germany 
only in full accordance with the German Securities Sales Prospecttis Act, 

Each of the Managers has severally representcd and agreed that it has not offcrcd or sold, and will not 
offer or scll FDKs to any individual or legal entity in The Netherlands other than to individuals or legal 
entities who or which trade or invcst in securities in the conduct of their profession or tradc, which includes 
banks, brokers, dealers. insurance companies, pension funds, other institutional investors and commcrcial 
enterprises who regularly, as an anci1lar)l activity, invest in securities. 

Each of the Managers understands that the FDRs havc not been arid will not be registel-cd under the 
Securities and Exchange Law of Japan, and severally rcpresents that i t  has not offered or sold, and has 
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agreed not to offer of sell, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to ur for the account of any resident thereof, 
any of the FDRs, except pursuant to any exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities 
and Exchangc Law of Japan and otherwise in compliance with applicable provisions of Japanese law, Each 
Managcr has agreed t o  send to any dealer who purchascd from it any of the FDRs a notice stating in 
substance that, by purchasing such FDRs, such dealer represents and agrees that it has not offcrcd OT sold, 
and will not  offer or sell, any of such FDRs, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the account of any 
resident thereof exce,pt pursuant to any exemption from the registration requirements a f  the Securities and 
Exchange Law of Japan, and that such dealer will send tn any othcr dealer to whom it sells any of such 
FDRs a notice containing substantially thc same statement as is contained in t h s  sentence. 

In order to facilitate the offering of the FDRs, thc Joint Global Coordinators, on behalf of thc 
Managers, may, to the extent permitted by applicable law, over-allnt or effect transactions which stahilisc 
o r -  maintain the markct price of the FDRs at levels which might not otherwise prevail on the open market. 
The Joint Global Cocsrdinators, on hchalf of the Managers, are not required to cngage in these activities 
and, if commcnced, such activities m a y  he discontinued at any time. 

The initial offcring price for the FDRs was determined by negotiation among thc Company, the 
Selling Shareholdcrs and Joint Global Coordinators togethcr with the Lead Manager of the Luxembourg 
Offering. Anlong the factors considered in determining the Offer Pricc, in addition to prevailing market 
conditions, wcrc the future prospects of the Company and the satellite industry in general, sales, earnings 
and certain othcr financial and operating information of the Company in rccent periods, and the price- 
carnings ratios and market prices of securities of cornpanics engaged in activities similar to those of the 
Company. 

Dresdncr Rank Luxembourg SA., an affiliate of Kleinwort Benson Limited, held 3,528,000 A Shares, 
o r  9.47 per ccnt. of the economic interest, of the Company representcd by Shares prior to the Combined 
Offering. In addition, Dresdncr Bank Luxembourg S A .  is a lender to the Company undcr its existing 
syndicatcd bank loans and is the arranger uf ;I ncw syndicated loan facility with thc Company. E Otto 
Weudt, Managing Director of Dresdner Bank Luxembourg S.A., is a Director of the Company. Deutsche 
Bank Luxembourg S.A., ii Manager in thc Luxembourg Offering and an affiliate of Deutsche Bank London 
AG, held 1,896,000 A Shares, or 5.09 per ccnt. of the economic interest, of thc Company representcd by 
Sharcs prior to the Combined Offering. In addition, Deutsche Rank Luxembourg S.A. is a lender to the 
Company undcr its exisring syndicated bank loans to the Company and a lender to thc Company under its 
new syndicatcd loan facility. Dr. Ekkehard Storck, who was the Managing Director of Dcutsche Bank 
Luxembourg S.A. until 1 July, 1998, is a Director of the Company. Banque Cjin6rale du Luxembourg SA. 
held 1,164,001) A Shares, or 3.33 per cent., of the economic interest of the Company represented by Shares 
prior to the Combined Offering. Banyuc Gknirale du Luxembourg S.A. is ;i Icnder to the Company under 
its cxisting syndicatcd bank loans. Paul Meyers, Managing Director of Banque Gin6rale du Luxembourg, 
S A . ,  is a Directur of the Company, Raymond I r s c h ,  President and Chief Executive Officer of BCEE, a 
Manager in the 1,uxernbourg Offering and thc Fiduciary, and Hcnri Germeaux, Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer and a Director of RCEE, are Directors of the Company. Dresdner Kleinwort Benson, Deutsche 
Rank, Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, Banque Ginka le  du Luxembourg SA. and certain of the othcr 
Managcrs have engaged, and may in the future engage, cither directly or through affiliates, in normal 
banking or investment banking activitics with the Company in the ordinary course of their business. See 
“Selling Shareholders - Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions”, “Management’s Discus- 
sion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources - 
Indebtedness of the Company” and “Management”. 

Thc PDKs are being olfered to the public in Luxembourg on the basis of the Public Offcring Circular 
datcd 17 .June, 19c18. 
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LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the FDRs and the underlying A Shares will be passed upon for the Company and the 
Selling Shareholders by Arendt & Medernach, members of the Luxembourg Bar, and for the Managers by 
Elvinger, How & Prusscn, members of the Luxembourg Bar. The validity of the FDRs will be passed upon 
for the Fiduciary by Schaeffer, Hcngel, Dcnncwald & Hellenbrand, members of the Luxembourg Bar. 
Certain legal matters will be passcd upon for the Company and the Selling Shareholders by Linklaters & 
Paincs, counscl for the Company and the Selling Shareholders, and for thc Managers by Sullivan & 
Cromwell, counsel for the Managers. 

AUDITORS 

The Company’s independent auditors are Ernst & Young, S.A., Luxembourg (“Ernst & Young”). The 
consolidated financial statements of the Company included in this Offering Circular as of and for the years 
ended 31 December, 1995, 1996 and 1997 were audited by Ernst & Young, as stated in their report 
appearing herein. 
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LISTING AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

The following information is furnished for purposes of the application to list the FDRs on the LuxSE. 

(1) In connection with the Luxembourg Offering and the application to list the FDRs on the LuxSE, R 
legal notice of the Company relating to the issue of the FDRs and a copy of the Articles has been 
deposited with thc Chief Registrar of the District Court in Luxcmbourg (“Grefler en Chef dz~ Tribunal 
dilnonclissernent de et a Luxembourg”) where such documents may be examined and copies obtained. ‘The 
Company is registered in the ICegistre du Commerce et des SociL:tL:s, Luxcinbourg under No. B22589. 

(2) Thc Company and thc Selling Shareholders havc obtained all necessary consents, approvals and 
authorisations in Luxembourg in connection with the Combined Offering. The Combined Offering was 
authoriscd by a resolution of the Board passed on 11 June, 1998. 

( 3 )  Except as discloscd in this document, ncithcr the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are involved 
in any litigation or arbitration proceedings relating to claims or amounts that arc material in the context of 
the issue of the FDRs nor, so h i -  as the Company is aware, is any such litigation or arbitration pending or 
t lire a t en cd . 

(4) Exccpt as disclosed in this document, there has been no significant change in the financial or 
trading position or prospccts of the Company since 31 December, 1997. 

(5) Copies in English of the latest annual report and the financial statements of the Company and the 
Fiduciary may be obtained. the official English translation of ( i )  the Articles, (ii) the Fiduciay Deposit 
Agrccment, (iii) the Contrat de Concession and (iv) the Cahicr des Charges may be inspected, and copies 
of the unaudited semi-annual financial statements of the Company will be available, at the specified offices 
of the Listing Agent and the Fiduciary during usual business hours, so long as any of the FDRs remain 
outstanding. 

(6) The FDRs havc been accepted for clearance through Ccdel Bank and Euroclear. The ISIN for thc 
FDRs is LU 0088087324 and the Common Code is 008808732. ‘I’he official listing name for the Company is 
SES. 

(7) The Company has h7e wholly owned subsidiaries, Astra Marketing Limited, Astra Marketing 
Iberica S.A., Astra Marketing France S.A.: Astra Marketing GmbH and SES Ri, and one majority-owned 
subsidiary, ESM (which it holds through a 53 per cent. interest in ESMF). Astra Marketing Limited, Astra 
Marketing Ibcrica, Astra Marketing France S.A. and Astra Markcting CimhH have bccn established to 
provide advertising, marketing, consultancy and gcncral advisoy services to or for the benefit of or in 
relation to any company, undertaking, individual UJ body in relation lo any business activity or other 
activity whatsoever and to cnter into any agreement or arrangement for such purposes with any such 
company, undertaking, individual or body cxcept marketing o r  marketing serviccs of satellites or space 
scgnient capacity or services and all rights and interest therein. SES Rd has been established to carry both 
in 1.uxembourg and abroad all and any reinsurance operations in all branches of the insurance business to 
thc exclusion of dirccr insurance opcrations; the taking of direct or indirect participations in any cornpanics 
or cnterprises whose object is identical or similar to its own or which are of a naturc to promote the 
devclopnient of its activities, and morc generally all and any financial, commercial, privatc, real estate or 
personal transactions which are directly linked with its purpose. 

The registered office of SES Ri, LSM and ESMF is Chiteau dc Retzdorf, L-6815 Rctzdorf, 
Lu~cinbourg. The registered office of Astra Marketing J,imited is The Progression Centre, Mark Road 42, 
TTemel Hempstcad, Hertfordshire HP2 7DW, U.K. The registered office of Astra Marketing Iberica S.A. is 
Paseo de la Castellana 52, 7A, 28046 Madrid, Spain. The registcred office of Astra Marketing Francc SA. 
is A x n u e  Charles de Gaulle 83, 92200 Neuilly Sur Seine, France. ‘lhe rcgistered office of Astra Marketing 
Gmbl I is Mergenthalcrallee 79/81, 6236 Eschborn, Gcrmany. 

(8) Notices to FDR holdcrs will be published in a leading newspaper having general circulation in 
Luxembourg (which is expected to the LiLternhuqer Wor?) and a lcading newspaper in the English language 
having an international circulation (which is expected to be the Finuizciul Times). 
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(9) Thc Company was incorporated on 1 March. 19x5 . which incorporation was published in the 
Mchot-ial C. . Rr:c.ueil des S'ncid&s er Associrifinrrs f"Mhnoriu1 C ' )  No . 93 on 2 April. 1985 . The Articles havc 
been amended several times on the dates set forth below: 

Date of iiotarial deed anieiiding the Articles 
Date of the publication of the 

amendments in the .W 4moriul C Mhnorial C 

12 Dcccmbcr. 1985 
3 December . 1985 
1 6 l u n e  . 1986 . .  
27 August. 1986 . . 
28 April. 1987 . . 
25 June. 1987 . . 
30 March. . I988 . . 
15 April. 1988 . . 
31 August. 1988 . . 
27 Scptcmbcr. 11388 
29 Novcmbcr. 1988 
7 December. 1988 
7 April. 1989 . . 
15 April. 1991 . . 
25 November. 1993 
10 Junc . 1994 . . 
21 Septcmhcr. . I995 
15 April. 1996 . . 
20 hlay . 1998 . . 

. .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  * *  . .  . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

17 February. 1986 
17 January. 1986 
2 September . 1986 
12 Novcmbcr . 1986 
2.2 August. 19x7 
9 October. 1987 
14 Julie. 1988 

12 October . 1988 
28 December . 1988 
2 March. 1989 
7 March. 1989 
13 September . 1989 
8 October . I991 
2 kebruay . 1994 
25 October. 1994 
7 December. 1995 
23 July. 1996 
h J L I ~ ~ .  1998 

7 July. 1988 

C-NO 39 p . 1531 
C-NO 14 p . 619 
C-No 249 p . 12012 
C-NU 316 p . 15502 
C-No 231 p . 12094 
C-NO 278 p . 14710 
C-No 162 JJ . 7724 
C-NO 184 p . 8754, 
C-No 272 p . 12x02 
C-No 340 p . 16080 
C-NO 54 p . 2544 
C-NO 54 p . 2546 
C-NO 255 p . 12182 
C-No . 370 p . 177563 
C-No . 44 p . 2.102 
C.No . 418 p . 20027 
C.NO . 622 p . 29824 
C.No . 353 p . 16934 

(10) The Principal Paying Agent is B E E  ;ind thc sub-Riving Agent is Ranquc Gdnbralc du 
1-uxcmbourg S.A . 

(1 1) Thc Fiduciary. BCEE. is an autonornous public cstablishmcnt with legal personality cstablishcd 
in I856 . I t  is currcntly cxistiiig under a law of 24 March . 1989 and its entire capital is owncd by the 
Luxernhoui-g Statc . Thc Fiduciary is a universal hank oovei-ing the whole range o f  banking activitics and 
playing mi activc part iii the Euromarkets . As of 31 Uccemhcr. 1997. its capital and rcscrvcs amountcd tc) 
approximately LUF 24.8 billion . 

87 



(This page has been left blank intentionally.) 



INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Rcpor tofErns t& Young . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-2 

Profit and Loss Accounts for the years cndcd 31 Dcccmbcr. 1995. 1996 and 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-3 

Balance Sheets as of 31 December. 1995 . 1996 and 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-4 

Cash Flow Statcmcnts for thc years ended 31 December. 1995. 1996 and 1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-S 

NOtCS to the Accoullts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  F-6 

F- 1 . 



EY ERNST&YOUNC 
Ernst & Young &’I& hone: 42 124-1 
Sociiti Anonyme X d a x :  42 124-421 

El6x: 2188 . .  
s i i  e social: “Centre itoile” 
5, ki de la hire 
B.P. 351 TVA LU 16063074 

R.C. Luxembourg B 47 771 

1-2013 Luxembourg 

Bureaux: “Kirchbcrg” 
Rue Richard Coudenhove-Kalergi 
B.P. 351 
1-2013 Luxembourg 

Report of the Independent Auditor 

To the Shareholders of Sociktk Europkenne des Satellites 
Re tzdorf 
Luxcm bourg 

Wc havc audited the accompanying consolidated accounts of Sociitd Europdcnnc des Satcllites for 
the years ended 31 December 1995, 1996 and 1997. These consolidatcd accounts a1-e thc responsibility cjf 
thc Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on thcsc consolidated accounts based on 
o u r  audit. 

WC conducted our audit in accordance with Intcrnationa] Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonablc assurance about whether the consolidated 
accounts are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosurc in the consolidatcd accounts. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used arid significant estimates made by thc Board of Directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall consolidated accounts presentation. We believc that our audit provides a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion thc attached consolidated accounts give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial position of Snciiti Europeenne des Satellites as of 31 Dcccmbcr 1995, I996 and 1997 and of the 
consolidated results o f  its operations for each year then ended in accordance with International Account- 
ing Standards. 

ERNST & YOUNG 
Sociiti Anonyme 

Riviscur d’cntrcpriscs 

Werner Weynand 

Luxembourg 17 June, 1998 

Jean-Jacqucs Soisson 
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Profit and Tdss Accounts 

The consolidated profit and loss accounts of the Group are set out below: 

Year ended 31 December 
1995 1996 1997 

Note LUF million LUF million LUF million 

Net turnover . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 10,269 14,062 17,874 
Other operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  67 98 200 

10,336 14,160 18,074 

External charges bcforc cxccptional chargcs. . . . . . . . .  (1,ISS) (1,675) (2,383) 
Exceptional charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3 (700) - - 

Extcrnal chargcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Staff costs-Wages and salaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Staff costs-Social security costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and amortisation of tangible and 

Othcr operating charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Share in I-esults of associatcd undertakings . . . . . . . . .  

Operating charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Interest receivable and similar inconic . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Intcrest payable and similar charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Profit on ordinary activities before franchise fee and 

taxation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Franchisc fcc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
‘laxation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Result for thc financial year after franchise fee and 

taxa tion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Share attributable to the minority interests . . . . . . . . .  

Operating profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Earnings per share (LUF) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Asharcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
B shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(1,858) 
(475) 
(40) 

(5,581) 

(949) 

4,755 
172 

3,978 
5 (601) 
6 -  (499) 

2,878 

2,878 

77.3 
30.9 

7 

(1,675) 

(50) 
(542) 

(4,287) 
(115) 
(29) 

(6,698) 
7,462 

40 1 
(1,007) 

6,856 
(1,376) 

(684) 

4,796 

4,796 
= 

128.8 
51.5 

(8,215) 
9,859 

322 
(1,172) 

6,313 
93 

0,406 

172.0 
68.8 
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Balance Sheets 

Tlic consolidated balancc sheets of the Group as at 31 Dcccmbcr 1995, 1996 and 1997 are set out 
below: 

As at 31 Decemher 
1995 1YY6 

LUF million LUF million 
1997 

LUF million Note 

ASSETS 
Formation expenses 
Costs of formation and capital incrcascs . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Fixed assets 
Tangible assets in usc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tangiblc assets in course of construction . . . . . . . . . . . .  

10 29 19 10 

12 
13 

20,468 30,863 
17,143 15,766 
37,611 46,629 

33,733 
19,300 
53,033 

Financial assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Associates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other financial asscts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

14 
1 13 I 

5 ,7 4 
17 

- 
3 5 

Current assets 
Debtors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash at bank and on deposit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1s 3,530 
1,843 

3,843 
3,180 

5,266 
5,595 

10,861 
63,909 

7,023 5,373 
4x01 6 53,688 

CAPITAL AND LMILITIF,S 
Capital and reserves 
Share capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Share prcmium account . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Lcgal 1-eserve . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other rcsen’es . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Result brought forward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Result for the financial year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Sharcholders’ funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority Interests 
In capital and reservcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
In the profit (loss) for the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

16 
17 
17 
17 
17 
17 

4,469 
220 
447 

11,706 
82 

2,878 
19,802 

4,469 
220 
447 

15,195 
93 

6,406 
26,830 

4,469 
220 
447 

12,684 
86 

4,796 
22,702 

24 
- 

24 
1,526 

217 

124 
1,798 

(93) 
- 

1,285 18 Provisions for liabilities and charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Creditors 
Amounts payable after more than one year 
Subordinatcd loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amounts owcd Lo credit institutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

19 
20 

1,500 
15,567 
3.377 

2,251) 
18,326 
2,706 

23,282 

- 

11,410 
2.154 

13,564 20,444 
Amounts payable in less than one year 
Subordinatcd loans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amounts owed to credit institutions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Trade creditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred incomc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Taxcs and social sccurily payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
0 t h  accruals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

19 
20 

I ,500 
2,750 
2,409 
2,960 
1,561 

695 
11,875 

63,901) 

- 
4,497 

964 
1,845 
1,206 

480 

- 

3,305 
1,239 
2,080 

634 
1,107 
8,365 

43,016 

8,992 

53,688 
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Cash Flow Statements 

The consolidated cash flow statements of thc Group for thc three years ended 31 December 1997 are 
as set below: 

Year ended 31 December 
1995 

LUF million 
1996 

LUF million 
1997 

LUF million 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Operating profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Result of companies consolidated by the equity method . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation and amortisation 
Amortisation of clicnt upfront payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for pcnsion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
0 the r pi-ovision s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Loss on disposal of fixed assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash operating profit before working capital changes . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 
(Increase) in trade debtors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
(Incrcasc) Dccrcasc in othcr dcbtors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
(Increase) Decrease in prepayments and deferred charges . . . . . . . . .  
Incrcase in payments rcccivcd on account . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
lncrcase (Decrease) in trade crcditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Incrcasc (Dccrcasc) in othcr crcditors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Increase in upfront payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Increase (Decrease) in short term advance payments . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash generated from working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Returns on investment and servicing of finance 
Tntcrcst paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest received . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

4. 755 

(935) 

(20) 

. 

3.  090 

4 

13 

7. 462 
29 

4. 287 

9 
232 

1 

(979) 

9. 859 

4. 629 

1 2  
261 

9 

1 

(974) 

6. 907 11. 041 13. 795 

(739) 
32 

394 
. 

(275) 

(230) 

(609) 
2. 197 

(1. 179) 

(87) 
(157) 

428 
1. 445 

138 
551 
438 

(623) 
11 

(594) 
. 
345 
477 

475 
91 

. 

770 1. 577 
6. 998 11. 813 15. 372 

(755) 
I72 

(984) 
401 

( 3  . 085) 
322 

(583) (583) (763) 
Investing activities 
Purchase of tangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment in foi-mation expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment in financial asscts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Disposal of financial assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash used by investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Taxation and franchise fce 
Tax paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Franchise fee paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash used by taxation and franchise fee . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash flow from financing activities 
New borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Repayment of borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividendspaid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Increase in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash at beginning of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash at end of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . .  

(9. so1 ) (13. 297) 
. . 

(42) 
. . 

(9,502) (13. 339) (1 1. 020) 

(523) 
(1. 007) 

(473) 
(1. 878) 
( 2 .  351) (1,530) 

7. 048 
(827) 

(2. 207) 

IO. 077 
(3. 228) 
(1. 896) 

25 

7. 755 
(4. 493) 
(2. 278) 

193 . 

4. 014 4. 978 1. 277 
4 

1. 839 
1. 337 
1. 843 

2. 425 
3. 180 

3. 180 5. 595 1. 843 
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Notes to the Accounts 

1. Accounting policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

The accounts arc prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable 
International Accounting Standards. For the purposes of thcsc accounts certain prcsentation changes have 
becn made from that adopted in the Company’s annual financial accounts and as such these accounts do 
not mcct all of the disclosure requirements under Luxembourg law. 

1.2 Basis of consolidation 

The accounts consolidate the results of the Company and its subsidiary undci-takings. All transactions 

Undertakings, othcr than subsidiary undertakings, in which the group has an investment representing 
not less than 2@% of the voting rights and over which it exerts significant influence are treated as associates 
and are accounted for by the equity method. 

between group companies are eliminated. 

1.3 Formation expenses 

The costs of formation of the Company and the costs related to increases in issued share capital arc 
capitalised in the balance sheet at cost and arc amortised over five years from the date of expenditure on a 
straight line basis. 

1..4 Depreciation on tangible assets 

Land und buildings 

Land is rccorcicd at acquisition cost. Buildings are shown in the balancc shcct :it cost lcss depreciation. 
Buildings arc dcpi-cciatcd over their estimated useful life on a straight linc basis. Thc depreciation pel-iod 
is 25 years. 

Plant and machinely - space segment 

Thc cost nt’ the space segment includes thc procurcment nl the satellites together with launch 
expenses, insurance and other relatcd costs. Thcsc arc depreciated over each satellite’s anticipated useful 
life of 10 years on a straight linc basis commencing at the date on which each satellite commences 
commercial service. 

Plant atid machinery - ground segment 

Machinery and equipment is dcprcciatcd evenly over its estimated useful life, which is cither 10 or 15 
ycars. 

Plunt and muchinety - irtitiul opemting rxpenses 

The costs incurred prior to the commissioning of the first satcllitc were capitaliscd and arc being 
amortised over the 10 year design life of that satellite, on a straight linc basis. 

Other fitiires, fittirigs, tools and equipnterit 

All such items are depreciated evenly over the estimated uscful ljvcs: which are less than 1 0  years. 

Assets in c o u m  of cotistruction 

Amounts payable in respect of the purchasc of future satellites, launch costs and othcr related 
expenses including ground segment expcnditurc are included in the balancc shcct when billed. The 
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expenditure is transfci-rcd to  assets in use and deprcciatjun of all assets commences whcn they are put into 
conini crci a1 scrvice. 

Borrowing cost.\ 

Borrowing costs in relation to the purchase of fixed assets are expensed as incurred. 

1.5 ‘lkanslation of foreign currencies 

The Company maintains its accounting records in Luxenibourg Francs (LUF) and the consolidated 
accounts arc expressed in this currency. Subsidiary companies kcep thcir accounts in their respective 
national currcncics. Those subsidiary cornpanics that do not maintain their accounts in LUF are a11 
marketing companies which arc dependant upon thc Company for funding and represent an integral part 
o f  the Company’s operations. Accordingly the temporal method of currency translation is applied to these 
cornpanics’ accounts for the purposes of presenting the consolidatcd accounts. 

The cost of fixcd assets is translated at thc rate applicable on thc date of payment, except whcn 
currencies arc bought in advance undcr forward contracts spccifically for the acquisition of such assets, in 
which casc thc cost of acquisition is translated at the lorward rate. 

Other asscts and liabilities are translatcd at closing rates of exchange. 

During the year expenses and income expresscd in foreign currencies are recorded on the basis of 

All cxchange differences resulting from the application of thcsc principles are included in the profit 

exchange ratcs prevailing on the date they occur or accruc. 

and loss account. 

1.6 Debtors 

Debtors arc stated at anticipated realisable valuc. 

1.7 Revenlie recognition 

All amounts i-cccived from customers under conti-acts for satellite capacity are recogniscd evenly over 
thc duration of thc rcspective contracts. Payments received in advancc are deferred and included in the 
balancc sheet as deferred income. Payments receivable in arrears arc accrued and included in trade 
debtors. Where the aniount of revenue receivable under a contract includes variable amounts that are 
determincd by refetencc to the number of households able to reccivc thc rclevant service thc variable 
elements arc not recognised until they are billed. 

1.8 Dividends 

Dividends arc declared after thc accounts for the ycai- havc been approved. Accordingly dividends are 
recorded in the subsequent ycar’s accounts. 

1.9 Pensions 

The Company opcratcs an unfunded defined benefit pension plan to provide for the cxccss of the 
employccs’ pension entitlement over that covered hy the state statutory pension scheme. Provision for this 
liability is madc in the accounts by rcfcrence to an annual actuarial valuation and is made in accordance 
with Luxemboui-g law, which requii-cs ii provision to he made cquivalent to the liability that would arise in 
the event of the tcrmination of the employment of‘ all employees at the balancc shcct date. 

The effect o f  this accounting trcatrncnt does not dilfcr materially from that calculatcd in 
accordancc with International Accounting Standards. 

1.10 Capital instruments 

contain an obligation to transfer economic bencfits and if not they arc included in shareholders’ funds. 
Shares are included in shareholders’ funds. Other instruments are classified as liabilities if they 
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2 7urnover 

Turnovcr represents the revenue earned from a single activity, the provision of satellite capacity within 
Europe, stated net of taxes. 

3 Exceptional charge 

‘Ihe exceptional charge relates to amounts paid to antenna suppliers to  support the development of 
Low Noise Block Converters compliant with D-band and digital satellite reception technology. 

4 Depreciation and amortisation 

This comprises: 

1Y95 1996 1997 
LUE’ million LUF million LUF million 

Amortisation of formation expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 10 21 
Deprccjation of tangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,080 4,277 4,608 - - - 

3,090 4,287 4,629 - - - - - 

5 Franchise fee 

The franchise fcc, for which the Company obtains the right to use certain orbital positions, is payable 
tu thc Luxembourg Government and is calculated based o n  an agreed percentage of profits. Under the 
franchise agreement the aggregatc amount of taxation payments and franchise fee payable by the 
Company in any one year up to and including 1997 cannot exceed 47.5 per ccnt of profits before taxation 
and franchisc fee. Franchise fee and taxation have therefore hccn grouped togethcr in the profit and loss 
account. 

6 Taxation 

Taxation comprises: 

1995 
LUF million 

Business tax . . . . . . .  .,. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  310 
Net worth tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  187 
Corporate incomc tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 
Other tax - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

499 
I_ - 

1996 1997 
JUF million LUF million 

474 65 7 
196 113 

3 1  57 
3 1 

829 
~ ~ 

~ ~ 

~ - 684 

Business tax is levied by the Luxembourg tax authorities at 9.09 per ccnt o f  profits. Net worth tax is 
lcvied by the Luxembourg tax authorities at 0.5 per cent of opening net assets. 

No significant liability to corporate incumc tax in Luxembourg has ariscn because the majority of 
trading expenses, including deprcciation and amortisation, are deductible against profits for taxation 
purposes, and in addition thc Company has qualified for investment tax credits under Luxembourg law 
which amounted to approximately 14 per ccnt of expenditure on plant and equipment. Accordingly there is 
n o  significant provision for Luxembourg corporate incomc tax, either current or deferred, for the three 
years endcd 31 December 1995, 1996, and 1997, nor is thcre a potential deferred tax liability at any of the 
respcctive year ends. 
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7 Earnings per share 

Earnings per share have been calculated on the following basis: 

l Y Y S  1996 1997 
LUF million LUP million LUF million 

Results for the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,878 4,796 6,406 

A shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  31,034,000 31,034,000 31,034,000 
B shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15,517,000 15,517,000 15,517,000 

Weighted average number of shares ranking for dividend: 

The weighted average numbcr of shares is based on the revised capital structure of the Company as 
described in note 16. Because A shares will have two and a half tirncs the dividcnd cntitlernent of B shares 
the earnings per share of A sharcs is also two and a half times that of B shares. During the three years 
ended 31 December 1997, A shares had twice thc dividend entitlcmcnt of B sharcs. However, earnings per 
share have lieen calculated on the basis of the revised capital structurc. 

For thc reasons set out in Note 21 no allowance has been made for potential dividends relating to 
founder shares. 

8 Employees 

Thc avcrage number of employees for 1995, 1996 and 1997 was 173, 198 and 240 respectively. 

The analysis of personnel as of 31 December 1995, 1996 and 1997 was: 

1995 

Socied Europkenne des Satellites, Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  160 
8 
5 
4 
4 
- 

181 

Astra Markcting GmbH, Germany. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Astra Marketing Ltd, United Kingdom. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Astra Marketing Iberica S A . ,  Spain. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Astra Marketing France S A . ,  France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
European Satellite Multirncdia Services S.A., Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

~ 

1996 - 

185 
11 
S 
4 
4 
- 

1997 

214 
11 
9 
4 
5 

18 

~ 

9 Directors’ remuneration 

Dircctors’ remuneration combines fixed fees and payments based on attendance at board and board 

The amounts of dircctors’ remuneration for the past thrcc ycars arc as follows: 

committcc meetings. 

Amount in 
Year TUF Million Date of approval - 

1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  34 annual meeting held on April IS, 1996 
1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  35 annual meeting held on April 15, 1997 
1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  35 annual meeting held on April 15, 1998 
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10 Formation expenses 

issued share capital developed as follows: 
During the course of 1995, 1996 and 1997, thc formation expenses and costs related to incrcascs in 

1995 
LEF million 

lYYh 
LUV million 

IYY7 
LKk' million 

Cost at hcginning of the year.  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10s 
Additions - 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  105 Cost at the end of thc year 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  __ 

- 
. . . . . . .  Amortisation at beginning of the year 

Amortisation during the year 

Net book value at the end of the year . . . . . . .  

(66) 
- (10) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Amortisation at the end of thc ycar . . . . . . . . .  (76) 
29 
- 
__ __ 

105 105 
12 

105 1.17 

(107) 
~ 

10 

11 lnvcstments 

The Company has four wholly-owned subsidiaries, Astra Marketing GmbH in Gschborn, Germany, 
Astra Marketing Lld in Hemel Hcmpstead, United Ingdom,  Astra Marketing Ibcrica S.A. in Madrid, 
Spain and Astra Marketing France S.A. in Paris, France. 

The purpose of these four wholly-owncd subsidiaries is to promote satellite television undcr specific 
consideration of the Astra satellite system in German, English, Spanish and French spcaking countries of 
Europe respectivcly. 

Additionally: in 1991; thc Company set up SES RC'SA., a captivc re-insurance company in Luxem- 
bourg, as well ;is European Satellite Multimedia Services Finance S.A. and European Satellite Multimedia 
Scrvices SA. ,  its opcrating subsidiary. 

Thc multimedia companies were formed with partners to providc a platform for satcllitc delivered 
multiincdia scmices in Europe. 

'The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the subsidiaries listed below: 

Effective interest 
LYY.5 1996 1997 
% % %  ~ - -  

hstra Marketing CirnhH, Gcrmany. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100 100 100 
Astra Markcting Ltd, United Kingdom. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100 100 100 
Astra Marketing Iberica S.A., Spain. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100 100 100 
Astra Marketing France S.A., France . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  100 100 100 
SES R i  SA., Luxembourg. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 100 100 
European Satellitc Multimedia Services Finance SA.,  Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 77 53 
European Satellitc Multimedia Scrviccs SA., Luxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 77 53 

All shares are held directly except thosc in respect of European Satellite Multimedia Services S.A., 
which arc held directly by European Satellite Multimedia Financc S.A. 
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12 Tangible assets in use 

C;os~. at 1 Jan  1995 
Accuniulated dcprcciation 

at 1 Jan 1995 . . . . . . . .  

Net book valuc at 1 Jan 
199s . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Movements in 1995. . . . . .  
Additions 
Disposals . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Transfers from assets in 

course of construction . . 
Dcpreciation . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation on disposals . 
Cost at 31 Dcc 199s 
Accumulated dcprcciation 

Net h o o k  viiluc a t  31 Dec 

. . . . . .  

. . . . .  

at 3.1 I k c  1995 . . . . . . .  

1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Movements in 1996 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Disposals . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Transfcrs from assets in  

Dcpreciation . . . . . . . . . .  
course of construction . . 

Depreciation on disposals , 

Cost at 31 Dec 1996 . . . . .  
Accumulated dcpreciation 

at 31 Dec 1996 . . . . . . .  

Net book valuc at 31 Dec 
1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Movements in 1997 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Disposals . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Transfers from assets in 

course of construction . . 

Depreciation on disposals . 
Cost at 31 Dec 1997 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value at 31 Dec 

Ucprcciation . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . .  

at 31 13cc 1997 . . . . . . .  

1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Plant & hlachinen 
- 

Land & buildings 
LUF million 

segment 
LWF million 

970 

(147) -- 

823 

578 
- 

62 I 
(98) 
- 

19,314 

(7,257) 

12,057 

338 

7,159 
(2,569) 
- 

2,169 

(245) 

.I ,924 

2,3 15 

(462) 

1,853 

26,811 

(9,876) 

16,985 

2,477 
- 

I 1,490 
(3,739) 
- 

30,778 

(13,565) 

27,213 

2,874 
- 

3,800 
(4,017) 

47,452 

(17,582) 

29,870 

- 

segment 
LIJF million 

1,497 

(675) 

822 

67 
(52 )  

224 
(193) 

40 

1,736 

(828) 

908 

162 
(1) 

372 
(206) 
- 
2,269 

( I  ,034) 

1,235 

361 
- 

224 
(236) 
- 

2,854 

(1,270) 

1,584 

Initial 
operating 
expenses 

IJUF million 

Other fixtures 
and fittings, 

tools and 
equipment 

LUF million 

354 

(203) 

151 

129 

- 

(8) 

(74) 
- 

7 
47s 

(270) 

205 
~ 
~ 

101 
(4) 

(79) 

- 

3 
572 

(346) 

226 

~ 

- 

- 
~ 

146 
(4) 

(99) 

- 

3 

714 

(442) - 

212 - 
~ 

Total 
LUF 

million 

23,599 

(9,154) 

14,445 

1,112 
(60) 

8,004 
(3,080) 

41 

32,655 

(12,187) 

20,468 

2,812 
(3 

(4,277) 
I 1,862 

3 

47,324 

(16,361) 

30.863 

3,4ss 
(4) 

4,024 
(4,608) 

3 

54:799 

(2 I .066) 

33,733 
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13 Tangible assets in course of construction 

Cost and net book valuc at 1 Jan 1.995 . . . . . . . . . . .  
Movements in 1995 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tmnsfers to assct in use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost and net book value at 31 Dcc 1 Y Y S  . . . . . . . . . .  
Movements in 1996 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Transfers to asscts in use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost ;ind net book valuc at 31 Dcc 1996. . . . . . . . . .  
Movements in 1997 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Transfers to asscts in use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost and net book value at 31 Dec 1997. . . . . . . . . .  

14 IGnancial assets 

Satellites 
LUF millinn 

Land & 
Buildings 

LUF million 

Chund 
segment 

LIJF million 

15.778 

8,133 
(7, z 59) 
16,757 

10:250 
(1 1,490) 
15,517 

7,319 

19:(336 
(3,800) 

621 

(621) - 

I 

58 

Associates 
LUF million 

~ 

338 

252 

386 
(224) - 

235 
(372) 
349 
- 

181 

206 
(224) 

Other financial 
assets 

LUF million 

Total 
LUF million 

16.757 

8,390 
(8,004) 
17,143 

10,485 
(11,862) 
15,766 

7,558 
(4,024) 
19,300 

Total 
LIJF million 

At 1 Januaiy 1996 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 
Additions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  41 
Share of result of associates (29) 
At 31 December 1996. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13 
Additions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 

r)isposals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
At 31 Deccmber 1997. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(13) - 
- 
I - 

3 
43 

17 
I 

p) 

(13) 
I 

5 - - 
The Companv's share of the results of the following associatcd is included in the accounts. 

Sharehnlding 
1993 1996 1997 
% % %  

H'1'Astra S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  50 50 - 
Satcllitc Promotion Services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  SO SO - 

50 - 
In 1996 the Company took cquity intercsts in EU Multimedia Finance SA. and in EU Multimcdia 

S.A.. its operating subsidiary. 

Investments in participating interests previously reported werc cither sold (EU Multimedia Finance 
S.A. and EU Multimedia SA.)  or the companies liquidated (BT Astra and Satellite Promotion Services 
S A . )  during 1997. Thcrcfore. they are not includcd in the consolidated accounts as at 31 Deccmber 1997. 

~-~ 

EU Multimedia Finance S.A., 1,uxembourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 50 - 

EU Multimedia SA., Luxeinbourg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
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15 Debtors 

1995 1996 
LUF million LIJP million 

Trade debtors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,558 3,297 
Prepayments and deferred charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $57 463 
Other dcbtors . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  115 83 

3,530 3,843 
- - 
- I_ - - 

1997 
LIJF million 

4,476 
550 
240 

5,266 
- 
- - 

Trade dchtors at 31 Dcccmber 1995, 31 December 1996 and 31 December 1997 included LUF 2,205 
million, LUF 2.749 million and LUF 3,968 inillion respectively, which rcprcsented the revenues recognised 
Tor the use of satcllite capacity under long-tcrm contracts but not yet billed in accordancc with the terms of 
thc contracts. 

Trade debtors at 31 Dcccmber 1095, 31 December 1996 and 31 Dcceniber 1997 included LSJF 355 
million, LUF 3.36 million and TUF 152 million rcspectivcly of amounts becoming due and payable in morc 
than one year. 

16 Sharc Capital 

The authorised capital of the Company amounted to LUF 5,250 million rcprcsented by 35,000 A 
sharcs and 17,500 B sharcs cach having ii iiorninal value of LUT: I00,OOO. Since 31 necemhcr 1997, the 
share capital of the Company has been restructured such that there are now 31,034,000 shares of category 
A and 15,517,000 shares of category B. Thc shares havc no par valuc. 

At 31 December 1995, 31 Decembcr 1996 and 31 December 1007 the issued share capital was LUE‘ 
4,469 million repi-osciited by 44,690 shai-es, each with a noniinal valuc of LUF 100,000 divided into two 
catcgories, 29,793 of category A and 14,897 of catcgory B. 

‘I’hc I3 shares arc resewed for Luxembourg Ciovcrninent institutions or organisations dil-cctly or 
indirectly controlled by such institutions. One third of the nicmbers of thc board of directors are appointed 
by holders of the B shares. During the three years ended 31 Deccmber 1997, the issue price of the B shares 
was always half thc level of A shares, and cadi B sharc was only entitlcd to half thc dividend payable to an 
A sharc and also half the suni distributable tn an A shareholder in the event of liquidation of the 
Company. Sirice t h c  capital rcstructuring, cach B sharc is only entitled to 40 pel- ccnt of the dividend 
payable to an A shareholder and also 40 per cent of the sum distributahle to an A shareholder in thc event 
of liquidation of  the Company. 

The acquisition and disposal o f  shares require, under certain conditions, the approval of the Luxem- 
bourg Government. 

At 31 Dcccmber 1995, 31 December 1996 and 31 Ilcccmher 1997 the share capital was as follows: 

1995 1996 1997 
LUF million LUF million LUE’ million 

Issued and fully paid 
Sharc capital 
Asharcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
T3 shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Total share capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2,Y79 2.979 2,979 
1,490 1,490 1,490 
4,469 4,469 4,465) 
- - - 
- - - - - - 
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18 Provision for liabilities and charges 

1995 1996 1997 
LUF million LUF million LUF million 

36 4s 56 
1,245) 1,481 1,742 
1,285 1,526 1,798 
- - - 
- - ~ - - ~ 

Provision for pensions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Thc movements on the provisions are set out below: 

Pension 
provision 

LUF million 

Other 
prnvisions 

LVF millinn 
Total 

LUI? million 

At 1 January 1995 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 Provision (releasc) for 1995 

At 31 December 1995. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I:, Provision for 1996 

At 31 Decembcr 1996. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  45 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 1 Provision for 1997 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  56 At 31 Dccember 1997.. 

- 

- 

- 

- - 

1,269 

1,249 
232 

1,481 
261 

1,742 

(20) 

- 

- 
- - 

1,301 
(16) 
1,285 

24 1 

1,526 

Proiivion for pmsions 

The Company has set up a complementary pcnsion plan undcr article 24 of the Luxembomg 
fiscal code. Thc charge in the profit and loss account and the resulting provision in the halancc shcct 
ai-c made by rcference to the annual actuarial valuation. 

Other provisions 

In previous financial periods the Company madc full provision for a potential liability in 1-cspcct 
of matters raised by tax authorities in territories outside of Luxembourg. In the light of currcntly 
availablc information and legal advice thc Company cxpccts that this matter will be satisfactorily 
resolved at no significant cost to the Company. However, as this matter has not yet been finally 
concluded the directors consider that it is appropriate to retain the provision for thc purpose of the 
consolidatcd accounts. 

Also included within other provisions is a technical rcserve set up in SES Re (thc Company's 
captive reinsurance subsidiary) in rcspect of potential insurancc claims. 

1 Y  Subordinated loan 

On 14 June 1996, the Company arranged with a group o f  its shareholdcrs for the provision of a 
subordinated loan facility of LUF 3,750 million, with interest payable at base rate plus 3 pcr cent. 
This facility is unsecured and is repayahlc by 30 Scptcmber 1999. 

At the cnd of 1996, LUF 1,500 million had been drawn under this facility, and it was fully drawn 
at thc end of 1997. 

20 Amounts owed to credit institutions 

O n  30 Septembcr 1992 thc Company raised a five year loan with a syndicatc of Luxembourg 
banks amounting, in total, to LUF 5,500 million. During 1996 LUF 800 million was repaid and the full 
facility was repaid at the end of 1997. 

On 4 February 1993 the Company also arrangcd a syndicated loan with a group of Luxembourg 
and forcign banks amounting, in total, to LUF 8,750 million. This loan facility is repayable by 30 
June 2000. During 1996, repayments of LUF 500 million wcre made and during 1997 repayments of 
LUF 1,500 million were made. 
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On 15 Scptcmber 19135, the Company arranged :I further syndicated loan with a group of 
I..uxernbourg and foreign banks amounting, in total, to TlJF 6,750 million. This facility is repiiyable by 
30 September 2000. 

‘I’hese syndicated loans are secured by the assignment of specific customer contracts and 
insurance policies covering certain assets. 

Additionally, o n  15 July 1996 the Company arranged ii syndicated loan with a group of 
Luxembourg and foreign banks amounting to LUF 14,000 million. Drawings on this facility can be 
madc up to 31 March 1998. The repayments are to bc completed by 31 December 2001. This facility is 
secured hy the assignment 0 1  insurancc policies covering certain assets. 

~ l h e  following loans were outstanding at 31 Dccember 1097: 

Ainounl Ainonnt outstanding Interest rate 
Facility drawn down at 31 Dec 97 at 31 Dec 

Datc of facility LIJF milliun L1JF milliun LIJF milliun 1YY7(per cent.) 

3 February 1993 . . . . .  8,750 7,425 5,527 between 4.75 
and 556 

15 September 1995 . , . 6:731 6,750 6,764 between 4.75 
and 5.3125 

15 .July 1996 14,001) 8,785 8.785 between 4.75 
and 5.2813 

. . . . . . . .  

‘ihc maturity profile of these loans at 31 December 1995, 1996 and 1997 is: 

Amounts outstanding 

Pwahle 
1995 1996 1997 

LUF inillion I.UF million LUF million 

Within one vear . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,305 4.497 2,750 

Between one and two years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,497 2,750 6,969 
Behvccn two and five ycai-s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6,4 13 123  I7 11,357 
More than one year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11,410 15,567 18,326 

21 Cotnmitmcnts and contingent liabilities 

kbuizcler .shares 

In connection with the formation of the Company, 50 Founder Shares, without voting rights, 
were issued to the foundcr shareholdcr, subject to certain conditions. The Articles provide that for a 
period of 30 years from I March 1985, the date of formation of the Company, the holder of thc 
Founder Shares is entitled to a 5 per cent. participation i n  the net profits of the Company, after tax, 
resulting from television activitics (except ;iccessor)r provision of services), provided that the profits 
have heen achieved cxclusivcly within the Company’s purpose as defined in Articlc 2 of the Articles at 
[he timc o f  its incorporation in 1985, excluding all bendits resulting from an enlargemen1 or 
extension of the initial purpose. Article 2 of the Articles, in turn, established the original purpose of 
the Company as the exploitation. by way of a concession, of communication satellites, using for 
televisiun purposes frequency hands attributed currently or subsequently for fixcd satellite service on 
cmc of the oi-bital positions obtained or to be obtained by the Government of thc Grand-Duchy of 
Luxembourg in conforniity with the procedures provided by the International Telecommunication 
Union. Article 31) of the Articles provides that, at the expiration of‘ the 20 year period, the Company 
shall repurchasc,the Founder Shares at a price equal to Ihe difference, if any, between the 5 per ccnt. 
participation in net profits described above and the aggrcgate amount of dividcnd distributions 
I-cceived by the holder of the Founder Shares during the 20-ycar period. The Company ceased making 
payments in rcspect of the Founder Shares since the 19’32 financial year, and is currently a party to 
legal proceedings in the United Statcs and Luxembourg initiated by the founder shareholder. 

All of these lawsuits relate to an agreement dated 23 September 1985 bctween the Company and 
the I’oundcr shareholder and certain other parties, under which Founder Sharcs in the Company were 
issucd to thc founder shareholdcr subject to certain conditions. Payments to the founder shareholder 
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undcr thc Founder Shares have been withheld by the Company on the ground that the founder 
shareholder brcachcd ii non-competition clause contained in the agreement. 

In April 1994, the founder sharcholdcr sought recovery of dividend payments for the 1992 
financial year in an urgency proceeding in the District Court of Luxcmbourg. The matter was ruled 
not suitable for urgency proceedings by the District Court: and the Luxembourg Court of Appeal 
affirmed in J U ~ Y  1995. 

In April 1997, the foundcr shareholder filed suit in the US. District Court for the Eastcrn 
District of Virginia against the Company, Board member Ms. Candace Johnson and the Government. 
The suit allcgcd five claims for relief relating in varying ways to the agreement between the founder 
sharcholder and the Company. One count allcgcd that thc Company had breached the agreement by 
withholding dividend payments on thc Founder Sharcs; a sccond allcgcd that the Government and 
the Company had expropriated the Foundci- Shares; ii third &gcd that the Government, the 
C.:ompany and Johnson had converted the Founder Sharcs (and conspired to that end); a fourth 
allcgcd that thc Government, the Company and Johnson had defamed thc founder shareholder’s 
tmsiness rcputation and intcrfcred with his business prospects (and conspired to that end); and a fifth 
alleged that the Government and Johnson interfered with the founder shareholder’s contract with 
SES (and conspired to that end). The complaint sought compensatory darnages totalling U.S.$200 
million as the alleged valuc of the Founder Shares, as well as statutory and punitive damages in an  
amount of three to live times thc founder shareholder’s actual damages. On 5 Deccmbcr 1997, thc 
U S .  District Court cntcrcd :I final order of dismissal in favour of all three defendants on jurisdic- 
tional grounds. Whitehead has filed an appeal, and a decision is expected in the sccoiid half of 1998. 

In addition, the founder shareholder seivcd a writ on thc Company in Luxembourg on 31 March 
1098 seeking outstanding dividend paynicnts relating to the Founder Shares for the financial years 
1992 t o  I995 (approximately LUF 357 million) plus interest and daiiiagcs (LUF 15 million), reserving 
his rights to dividend paiynicnts relating to 1996 and subsequent financial years, rights which he claims 
will continue until 2008, and seeking an order prohibiting cancellation o r  alteration of the Founder 
Shares. No date has bccn sct to adjudicate the matter in Luxembourg. 

Thc Company believes tha t  i t  has acted appropriately and will defend itself vigorously against the 
claims. However, thcrc can be no assurance that the jurisdictional appeal in the United States will not 
be determined in favour of the founder sharcholdcr or that his claim will not prevail in the court that 
ultimately dccidcs thc case oil the merits. I f  the loundcr shareholder’s claims ultimately are success- 
ful. the C:onipany could be subject to signilicant financial liability. 

Cnpitul crpenditure 

The Group had cwtstanding commitments in rcspcct of contracted capital expenditurc totalling 
LUF 17,542 million at 31 Decernher 1995, LUF 18,008 million at  31 December 1996 and I,UF 14,428 
million at 3 I ncccmbcr 1997. These cnmmitmcnts largely reflect the purchase and launch of futurc 
satellites for the cxpansion of the Astra satcllite system. together with necessary cxpansion of the 
associated ground station and control lacilitics. 

Ciistnrnrr contmcts 

The Company is liable l o  refund the unearned portion o f  advance payments received from 
customers in thc cvent of technical friilurc of the satellite. This contingent liability is adequately 
covered by insurance. 
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Forwnrd foreign exchange cmiructs 

The Company has forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding as of 31 December 1995, 31 
December 1996 and 31 December 1997 to cover part of its future liabilities in respect of thc 
procurement of satellites and other equipment as follows: 

Currencies bought ( : u r r e n c i e s Average 
forward sold forward exchange rate 

1995 USD 174,045,000 DEM 247,769,424 1.4236 
Thesc contracts mature 

bctwcen Janumy I996 
and May 19%. 

1996 USD 188,788,000 DEM 276,866,225 I .4665 
These contracts mature 

betwccn January I Y97 
and ,\ugust 1999. 

19Y7 USD 100,313,000 DEM 145,265,764 1.448 
USD 300,000 LUF 9:703,500 32.345 

These contracts mature 
between 
J 2 .lanualy 1998 and 
2 August 1999. 

In accordance with the Company’s accounting policy any gain or loss realiscd on these contracts 
is treated as part of the cost o f  the item of expenditure to which the contract relates. Therefore no 
profit or loss on cxchangc in connection with such fonvard foreign exchange contracts has been 
recognised in the profit and loss account in 1995, 1996 or 1997. 

22 Related parties 

The Luxembourg Govcrnment holds an indirect interest in the Company through the state 
owned banks, Banque et Caisse d’Epargne de 1’Etat and Sociktk Nationale de Credit et 
d’lnvestisscment which own 16.67% and 16.66% respectively of the shares of the Company. Thesc 
sh;ii-es constilute the Company’s R shares which are described in more detail jn Note 16. The a n n u d  
aniounts of fi-anchisc fce and taxes, which arc payablc to the Luxcnihourg Government, arc discusscd 
in Notes 5 and 6 respectively. 

23 Post balance sheet events 

Subsequent to thc year ended 31 December 1997, ii dividend of LUF 3,043 million was declared 
in rcspect of thc results €or that year and paid on 15 April 1998. The Company declared a special 
dividcnd amounting to TSJP 1,862 million which was approved by the shareholders suljcct to the 
initial public orl’ering tit an extrmrdinary mccting on 20 May 1998. 

Rcvisions to thc Company’s share capital sincc the balance sheet date are dctailed in note 16. 
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ANNEX A GLOSSARY OF CERTAIN INDUSTRY TERMS 

analogue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

asymmetric transmission . . . . . .  

bandwidth . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

heam ..................... 

broadband . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
sss ..................... 

C-band . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

cellular . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

dB ...................... 

DBS ..................... 

dBW ..................... 

digital .................... 

downlink .................. 

DTH ..................... 

D T O . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

DVB ..................... 
earth station ............... 

A method of storing, processing or transmitting information through 
a continuous varied (rather than pulsed) signal. 

Transmission with different required bit rates for the downstream 
and the upstrcain channcl (c.g., high downstream and low upstream 
data rate). 

A range of frequencies, expressed in Hertz (Hzj occupied by a 
modulated carrier or the range of frequencies which can be 
transmitted through a communications systcm. Bandwidth is one 
measure of the information carrying capacity of a transponder. The 
wider the bandwidth, the more information which can be transmitted. 

The directcd electromagnetic rays cmanating from a satellite or 
ground station. On satellites, typically refers to aggregates of these 
rays such as a China (coverage) beam or global (coverage) beam. 

High capacity l~andwidth. 

Broadcast Satcllitc Service band that is used for high-powercd direct 
broadcast satcllitc systems. The ASTRA Satellite System ittilises the 
frequency band from 11.7 CiHz to 12.5 GHz for digital satellite 
transmission. 

In satellite conimunications (FSS) used to rekr  to downlink 
frequencies bctween 3.4 GHz and 4.2 GHz and uplink frequencies 
bctween 5.85 GHz and 7.075 GHz. Often referred to as 4/6 GHz. 

Public mobile radio telecornrnunications service. Cellular systems are 
based on multiple basc stations, or “cclls”, that permit efficient 
frcqucncy rcusc and on software that pcrniits the system to band 
rniohile calls froin ccll to ccll as subscribers move through the cellular 
service area. 

Decibel. A unit for expressing the ratio of two amounts of electric or 
acouslic signal power cqual to J O  timcs thc common logarithm of this 
ratio, which is oftcn used as a rncasurc of i-I satellite’s power. 

Direct broadcast satellite. A satellite capable of transmitting direct- 
to-home tclcvision programming. 

Decibel relative to one watt. A measure of a satellite’s power (e.g., SO 
dBW is 10 times more powerful than 40 dBWj. 

Referring to a incthod of storing: proccssing, or transmitting 
information through a pulsed (rather than continuously varied) 
signal. 

The receiving portion of ii satcllitc circuit extending from the satellite 
to the earth. 

Direct To TTomc. The rcccption of satcllitc programmes with a small 
fixed dish in an individual honic. 

Direct To Office. The reception of satellite programmes with an 
individual dish or shared dish in an office. 

Digital vidco broadcasting. 

The dishcs, rcccivers, transmitters and other equipment needed on 
thc ground to transmit and receive satellite communications signals. 
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EIRP ..................... 

elevation angle. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

encrypted broadcasts . . . . . . . . .  

fixed satellite service (FSS) .... 

footprint .................. 

G E O . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

GHL ..................... 
geostationary orbit ........... 

geosynchronous orbit . . . . . . . . .  

hertz . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
ISDN .................... 

1sos. .................... 
ITU ...................... 

Ka-band . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Ku-band . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

L E O .  .................... 
M E 0  .................... 
M H z . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
microwave . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Equivalent isotropic radiated power. the product of thi: power 
supplied to the antenna and the antcnna gain in a given direction 
relative to an isotropic antenna (absolutc o r  isotropic gain). 

The angle at which an antenna must be pointed to  receive signals 
froin a satellite. 

Programming signals which require a decoder for purposcs of 
viewing. 

A radjocommunication service between earth stations at specified 
fixed points when one or  more satellites arc used; in some cases this 
service includes satellite-to-satcllite links or feeder links for other 
space radiocommunications services. 

The geographic area covcrcd by a satellite, the outer edge of which is 
gencrally defined as that area wherc the quality of communication 
degrades below an acceptable commercial level duc to thc satellite’s 
antenna pattern, power of the signal and curvaturc of the earth. 

Gcostationary orbit: oi-bit at an  altitude of 36,000 km, where 
satcllitcs turn at the same angular speed as the earth and thus appear 
to be on a fixed spot, allowing for rcccption of transmissions on a 
fixed dish. 

Gigahertz, a measure of frequency. Onc billion cycles per second. 

The orbit of a geosynchronous satellite whose circular and direct 
orbit lies in the plane of thc earth’s equator. 

An orbit in which the satellite revolvcs about the earth in the same 
period of time as thc earth revolves about its own axis. 

Unit of frcqucncy equal to number of cycles per second. 

Integratcd Services Digital Network. Digital telephone linc typically 
offering data rates of 128-plus Kl)its/s. 

International satellite organisations. 

TTU is thc IJnited Nation’s spccialized agency for 
telecommunications. The ITU holds pcrjodic conferences at which 
telecommunications issues of global importance are discussed; the 
main conferences are the World Radio Conference (WRC) and the 
World Telephone and Telegraph Conference (WTTC). 

In satellite communications (FSS), used to refer to downlink 
frequencies between 18.6 GHz and 23.,2 GHz and uplink frequencies 
between 27 GHz and 31 GHz. Often rcferred to as 20/30 CiHz. 

In satellite communications (FSS), used to refer to downlink 
frequencies bctween 10.7 G H z  and 12.74 GHz and uplink 
frequencies bctween 13.75 CiHz and 14.8 CiHz. Often rcfcrred to as 
11/14 or 12/14 GHz. 

Low-earth orbit of up to 800 km above the earth. 

Mid-earth orbit of up to 12,000 km above the earth. 

Megahertz, a measure of frequency. One million cycles pcr second. 

Radio frcqucncy carrier waves with wavelengths of less than one 
meter-frequencies above 300 MHz. Typically used to refer to 
frequencies above 1 GI-Iz, but nominally includes all of UHF 
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Ml’EG . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

MPEG-2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
multicast .................. 

mu1 tiplex .................. 

operational life ............. 

output power. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

PCS. ..................... 
radio frequency . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

satellite . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

signal .................... 

SMATV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

SOH0 .................... 
switch .................... 

TT&C .................... 

telemetry . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

total output power . . . . . . . . . . .  

transpondcr.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

travelling-wave-tube amplifier . . , 

Moving Pictures Experts Group. An International Standards 
Organisation suh-group which developed standards (e.g., MPEG-2) 
for the digital compression a n d  multiplexing of vidco, audio and data 
signals. 

The current DVB standard for compression technology. 

Broadcast transmission i s  the sending of information from one to all 
recipients. Multicast is the sending of information from one to niany, 
but not all (i.e., a subset of broadcast). 

A variety of individual signal sciurccs asscmblcd into one composite 
signal for onward transmission. 

‘I‘hc timc for which ii satcllitc is capable o f  operating in its allotted 
position. The expected end of a satellite’s in-orbit operational life is 
mainly based on the period during which the satellite’s on-board fuel 
permits proper station-keeping manoeuvres for the satellite. 

The transmission power of a transponder and not a measurc of the 
signal power received on earth. 

Personal computcrs. 

A frequency that is higher than the audio frequencies but below the 
infrared frequcncics, usually above 20 KI-Iz. 

Space-borne repeater usually capable of reception, on-hoard 
proccssing and transmission of commuiiications signals permitting 
one signal source based on earth to contact one or many other 
destinations sin1ultancc:)usly. 

A physical, tirnc-dcpendcnt cncrgy value used for the purpose of 
conveying information through a transmission line. 

Satellite delivered Master Antenna TclcVision system. A communal 
distribution system for satcllitc and tcrrcstrial T V  and radios signals, 
usually installed in a block of flats for shared use. 

Small Officc/Home Office. 

A device that opens or closes circuits or selects the paths or circuits 
t o  bc uscd for transmission of information: switching is the prc~ccss of 
interconnecting circuits to form a transmission path hetween users. 

Telemetry, tracking and command station, a land-bascd facility that 
monitors and controls the positioning. attitude and status of ii 

satcllitc in orhit. 

Radio transmission of coded or analog data from a satellite to a 
ground station. 

Aggregate powcr of all transponders on a satellite. See “output 

A microwave repeater on a satcllitc which provides a discrete path to 
receive communications signals. translate and amplify such signals 
and rctransmit them to earth or another satcllitc. 

The main transmitters (microwave repeaters) on a satellite used to 
amplify the signal before it is rebroadcast hack to earth. One of these 
is associatcd with each transponder and dctcrmines the available 
radio frcqucncy communications power. 

Sec travclling-wave-tube amplifier. 

power”. 

‘IWT or TWTA ............. 
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ULNB . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Universal Low Noise Block coiivcrtcr which allows for thc reception 
of the entire bandwidth from 10.70 GHz to 12.75 GHz covered by the 
ASTRA Satellite System for analogue and digital transmissions. 

uplink. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . In satellite communications, the signal from the earth station to the 
spacc station (satcllitc). 

VSAT , . . , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Very Small Aperturc Tcrminal. System for the reception and 
transmission of satcllitc signals using a small dish diameter (e.g., very 
often used for satcllitc newsgathering). 
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ANNEX 6: FOOTPRINTS OF THE ASTRA SATELLITE SYSTEM 

ASTRA 1A 
(1 1,20 GHz - 11,45 GHz) 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode 1 

Channel 1 11214 25 MHz 
Channel 5 11 273 25 MHz 
Channel 9 11332 25 MHz 
Channel 13 11391.25 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode 2 

Channel 3 11243.75 MHz 
Channel 7 11302.75 MHz 
Channel 11 11361.75 MHz 

Channel 15 
see ASTRA 1C 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode 1 

Channel 8 11317.50 MHz 
Channel 12 11376.50 MHz 
Channel 16 11435.50 MHz 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode 2 

Channel 2 11229.00 MHz 
Channel 6 1288.00 MHz 
Channel 10 1347.00 MHz 
Channel 14 1406.00 MHz 

Channel 4 
see ASTRA 1C 

ASTRA 1B 
(1 1,45 GHz - 11,70 GHz) 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode 1 

Channel 17 11464.25 MHz 
Channel 21 11523.25 MHz 
Channel 25 11 582.25 MHz 
Channel 29 11641.25 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode 2 

Channel 19 11493.75 MHz 
Channel 23 11552.75 MHz 
Channel 27 1161 1.75 MHz 
Channel 31 11670.75 MHz 

El - Canary Islands Beam -’:> f) ’ . Canary Islands Beam m 1 Vertical Polarization 
-/ I 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode 2 Mode 1 

Channel 20 
Channel 24 
Channel 28 
Channel 32 

1508.50 MHz 
1567.50 MHz 
1626.50 MHz 
1685.50 MHz 

Channel 18 1479.00 MHz 
Channel 22 1538.00 MHz 
Channel 26 1597.00 MHz 
Channel 30 1656.00 MHz 
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ASTRA 1C 
(10,95 GHz - 11,20 GHz) 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 33 10964.25 MHz 
Channel 37 11023.25 MHz 
Channel 41 11082.25 MHz 
Channel 45 11 141.25 MHz 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 34 10979.00 MHz 
Channel 38 11038.00 MHz 
Channel 42 1 1097.00 MHz 
Channel 46 11 156.00 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 49 10714.25 MHz 
Channel 53 10773.25 MHz 
Channel 57 10832.25 MHz 
Channel 61 10891.25 MHz 

[6”3{1-- Canary Islands Beam 

ASTRA I D  
(10,70 GHz - 10,95 GHz) 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 50 10729.00 MHz 
Channel 54 10788.00 MHz 
Channel 58 10847.00 MHz 
Channel 62 10906.00 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 15 11420.75 
Channel 35 10993.75 
Channel 39 11 052.75 
Channel 43 11 I 1  1.75 
Channel 47 11 170.75 
Channel 63 10920.75 

MHz 
MHz 
MHz 
MHz 
MHz 
MHz 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 4 11258.50 MHt 
Channel 36 11 008.50 MHz 
Channel 40 11067.50 MHz 
Channel 44 11 126.50 MHz 
Channel 48 11 185.50 MHr 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 51 10743.75 MHz 
Channel 55 10802.75 MHz 
Channel 59 10861.75 MHz 

Channel 63 
see ASTRA 1 C 

f2{’] --. Canary Islands Beam 
Vertical Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 52 10758.50 MHz 
Channel 56 10817.50 MHz 
Channel 60 10876.50 MHt 
Channel 64 10935.50 MHz 
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ASTRA 1E 
(11,70 GHz - 12,lO GHz) 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 65 11719.50 MHz 
Channel 69 11797.50 MHz 
Channel 73 11875.50 MHz 
Channel 77 11953.50 MHz 
Channel 81 12031 -50 MHz 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 66 11739.00 
Channel 70 11817.00 
Channel 74 11895.00 
Channel 78 11973.00 
Channel 82 12051 .OO 

MHz 
MHz 
MHz 
MHz 
MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 85 12019.50 MHz 
Channel 89 12187.50 MHz 
Channel 93 12265.50 MHz 
Channel 97 12343.50 MHz 
Channel 101 12421.50 MHz 

b-,{ - Canary Islands Beam F - l  p&sl -. .. Canary Islands Beam 

ASTRA I F  
(12,lO GHz - 12,50 GHz) 

Canary Islands Beam 
Vertical Polarization 
Mode positive 

Channel 86 12129.00 MHz 
Channel 90 12207.00 MHz 
Channel 94 12285 00 MHz 
Channel 98 12363.00 MHz 
Channel 102 12441.00 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 
Mode Negative 

Channel 67 11756.50 MHz 
Channel 71 11836.50 MHz 
Channel 75 11914.50 MHz 
Channel 79 11992.50 MHz 

Channel 83 
see ASTRA 1 F 

Vertical Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 68 11778.00 MHz 
Channel 72 11856.00 MHz 
Channel 76 11934.00 MHz 
Channel 80 1201 2.00 MHz 

Channel 84 
see ASTRA 1 F 

Horizontal Polarizatior 
Mode negative 

Channel 83 12070.50 
Channel 87 12148.50 
Channel 91 12226.50 
Channel 95 12304.50 
Channel 99 12382.50 
Channel 103 12460.50 

I 

MHz 
MHz 

MHz 
MHz 
MHz 

MHt 

~ ~ ~ - N l - - - - -  Canary Islands Beam 
Vertical Polarization 
Mode negative 

Channel 84 12090.00 MHz 
Channel 88 12168.00 MHz 
Channel 92 12246.00 MHz 
Channel 96 12324.00 MHz 
Channel 100 12402.00 MHz 
Channel 104 12480.00 MHz 
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Vertical Polarization 

Channel 106 12522.00 MHz 
Channel 108 12551.50 MHz 
Channel 110 12581 .OO MHz 
Channel 11 2 1261 0.50 MHz 
Channel 11 4 12640.00 MHz 
Channel 116 12669.50 MHz 
Channel 118 12699.00 MHz 
Channel 120 12728.50 MHz 

Vertical Polarization 

ASTRA 1G 
(12,50 GHz - 12,75 GHz) 

li G7, &:* ---- Canary Islands Beam 

ASTRA 1H 
(12,50 GHz - 12,75 GHz) 

Channel 106 
Channel 108 
Channel 110 
Channel 11 2 
Channel 11 4 
Channel 11 6 
Channel 11 8 
Channel 120 

12522.00 MHz 
12551.50 MHz 

12610.50 MHz 
12640.00 MHz 
12669.50 MHz 
12699.00 MHz 
12728.50 MHz 

12581.00 MHZ 

ASTRA 1K(’) 

Horizontal P 

Channel 105 
Channel 107 
Channel 109 
Channel 11 1 
Channel 11 3 
Channel 11 5 
Channel 11 7 
Channel 11 9 

olarization 

12515.25 MHz 
12544.75 MHz 
12574.25 MHz 
12603.75 MHz 
12633.25 MHz 
12662.25 MHz 
12692.25 MHz 
12721.75 MHz 

Horizontal Polarization 

Channel 105 1251 5.25 MHz 
Channel 107 12544.75 MHz 
Channel 109 12574.25 MHr 
Channel 11 1 12603.75 MHz 
Channel 113 12633.25 MHz 
Channel 115 12662.25 MHz 
Channel 11 7 12692.25 MHz 
Channel 119 12721.75 MHz 

60cm 
75 cm 

H 90 rm 
120cm 
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ASTRA 2A 

90 cm 

120 cm 

ASTRA 2B 

90 cm 

120 crn 
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